From: lonin, Jonas (CPC)
To: Richards. Dennis (CPC); Johnson, Milicent (CPC); Koppel, Joel (CPC); Moore. Kathrin (CPC); Melgar, Myrna

(CPC); planning@rodneyfong.com; Rich Hillis; Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Andrew Wolfram (andrew@tefarch.com);
Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Ellen Johnck - HPC; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Eeliciano, Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** FORMER MAYOR EDWIN M. LEE MEMORIALIZED WITH OFFICIAL PHOTO AND
OPENING OF NEW EXHIBIT IN HIS HONOR

Date: Monday, May 07, 2018 9:06:25 AM

Attachments: 5.5.18 Mavor Ed Lee Exhibit.pdf

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309,Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Sent: Saturday, May 05, 2018 12:48 PM

To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** FORMER MAYOR EDWIN M. LEE MEMORIALIZED WITH OFFICIAL
PHOTO AND OPENING OF NEW EXHIBIT IN HIS HONOR

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Saturday, May 5, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-802-4266

*xx PRESS RELEASE ***
FORMER MAYOR EDWIN M. LEE MEMORIALIZED WITH
OFFICIAL PHOTO AND OPENING OF NEW EXHIBIT
IN HIS HONOR

City Hall exhibit to pay tribute to 43rd Mayor of San Francisco, who passed away last year

San Francisco, CA—Former Mayor Edwin M. Lee was honored today at City Hall with the
unveiling of his official photo and the opening of a new exhibit cataloging his long career in
public service.

The 43" Mayor in San Francisco history, Mayor Lee passed away unexpectedly on December
12, 2017. Today would have marked his 661 birthday.

“Mayor Lee embodied all that we cherish about this City—he was a man of dignity, truth and
compassion,” said Mayor Farrell. “Everything he set out to achieve was in service to the
people of San Francisco—a City that he loved deeply. San Francisco is an immeasurably
better place because of Mayor Lee, and this tribute is a fitting way to celebrate the legacy he
leaves behind.”
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MARK E. FARRELL
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Saturday, May 5, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-802-4266

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
FORMER MAYOR EDWIN M. LEE MEMORIALIZED WITH
OFFICIAL PHOTO AND OPENING OF NEW EXHIBIT
IN HIS HONOR

City Hall exhibit to pay tribute to 43" Mayor of San Francisco, who passed away last year

San Francisco, CA—Former Mayor Edwin M. Lee was honored today at City Hall with the
unveiling of his official photo and the opening of a new exhibit cataloging his long career in
public service.

The 43 Mayor in San Francisco history, Mayor Lee passed away unexpectedly on December
12, 2017. Today would have marked his 66" birthday.

“Mayor Lee embodied all that we cherish about this City—he was a man of dignity, truth and
compassion,” said Mayor Farrell. “Everything he set out to achieve was in service to the people
of San Francisco—a City that he loved deeply. San Francisco is an immeasurably better place
because of Mayor Lee, and this tribute is a fitting way to celebrate the legacy he leaves behind.”

As part of today’s event, Mayor Lee’s official photo was hung in the Hall of Mayors in Room
200. In addition, an exhibit was unveiled in the South Light Court, chronicling his lengthy tenure
as an advocate, civic leader and elected official. The exhibit, which will open to the public on
Monday, features photos of Mayor Lee and other items related to his life. Part of a collaborative
effort with the Chinese Historical Society of America, the exhibit will be on display through the
end of this year.

"Being able to see dad’s portrait unveiled in City Hall, a place where he dedicated so much of his
energy and passion for public service, is an incredibly profound experience for our family,” said
Brianna and Tania Lee. “We are comforted, moved and honored by the fact that there is a visual
reminder of his spirit here in a place that symbolizes so much about the city he loved."”

The first Chinese American Mayor in San Francisco history, Mayor Lee was first appointed to
the position on an interim basis in 2011, replacing Mayor Gavin Newsom, who left to become
Lieutenant Governor of California. Mayor Lee was subsequently elected by voters in November
2011, and reelected in 2015.

“Mayor Lee was a great leader, mentor and friend,” said City Administrator Naomi Kelly. “He

guided San Francisco through a time of unprecedented economic growth and provided prudent

fiscal stewardship over our City’s finances, creating a blueprint for a responsible budget process.

His investments in long-overdue infrastructure projects have ensured that San Francisco remains
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a safe, stable City for generations to come. History will be kind to the lasting positive impacts he
imparted on this City.”

When Mayor Lee assumed office, the country was in the grips of the great recession and the
unemployment rate was nearing double digits in San Francisco. He helped oversee the greatest
economic recovery in the history of San Francisco, with the City adding more than 160,000 jobs
during his tenure and unemployment dropping below three percent.

“Today is bittersweet - we honor the great Mayor Ed Lee, but he's not here to celebrate with us,”
said California Lieutenant Governor and former San Francisco Mayor Gavin Newsom. “His
impact on the City is enduring. His steady leadership as San Francisco emerged from the Great
Recession ensured the City would continue to thrive economically, culturally, and socially. He
led with his values, and he always kept his community close to his heart. San Francisco was
lucky to have him, and today's tribute is but one small way we will keep his memory alive.”

Mayor Lee created more housing than any other Mayor in City history, while advocating for
landmark affordability protections. In 2012, he helped create the $1.3 billion Housing Trust

Fund, and he advocated for the $310 million affordable housing bond that was approved by

voters in 2015.

“Mayor Ed Lee served the people of San Francisco with exceptional dignity and great
effectiveness,” said House Democratic Leader Nancy Pelosi. “Mayor Lee fundamentally
understood that the strength of a community is measured by its success in meeting the needs of
all its people. He was a champion for improving the lives and conditions of low-income families
living in public housing, and he worked tirelessly to build vibrant, dynamic communities by
expanding affordable housing and ensuring equal opportunity for all. He leaves an enduring and
inspiring legacy that will benefit generations of San Franciscans, and everyone who sees this
portrait will know the esteem in which he was held.”

While Mayor Lee was leading the creation of thousands of homes, he was also improving living
conditions for existing tenants. The City’s Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD) program, an
initiative Mayor Lee championed, is set to rebuild and rehabilitate more than 3,480 rental units in
San Francisco.

Despite the unprecedented growth occurring under his watch, Mayor Lee continued to pursue
sustainable and innovative environmental policies. As Mayor, the City’s greenhouse gas
emissions were reduced by 28 percent at the same time that San Francisco’s population increased
19 percent and the economy grew 78 percent.

Mayor Lee maintained a prudent fiscal stewardship of the City’s finances, leading to years of
balanced budgets and record reserve levels. He also led the efforts to create a 10-year Capital
Plan, ensuring that the City maintained its long-term services and infrastructure.

Mayor Lee created the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing, an agency with a

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





MARK E. FARRELL
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

singular focus of ending homelessness for every person it encounters. Mayor Lee launched the
City’s innovative Navigation Center program, a resource-heavy shelter model that has been
adopted by cities across the nation. Permanent supportive housing units for residents
experiencing homelessness increased by 50 percent under Mayor Lee, and now San Francisco
has more such units per capita than any other city in the country.

The Mayor also challenged partners in the private sector to aid the City in its efforts to end
homelessness. As a result, private donors helped contribute $30 million to combat family
homelessness, and the nonprofit organization Tipping Point pledged $100 million to reduce
chronic homelessness in San Francisco.

“Mayor Lee governed our great City by consensus,” said Steve Kawa, Mayor Lee’s former Chief
of Staff. “He was determined to ensure that San Francisco was safe, solvent and successful for
all. He is so dearly missed.”

Mayor Lee was a champion of civil rights policies, helping to create Mayors Against
Discrimination, a national group of City leaders who used economic pressure to prevent the
passage of discriminatory laws targeting LGBTQ communities. He created a senior advisor role
on transgender initiatives, making San Francisco the first City in the nation with such a position.

He consistently affirmed San Francisco’s status as a Sanctuary City and he increased funding
support for immigrant communities following the 2016 Presidential election. He also requested
that the United States Department of Justice undertake a thorough assessment on the San
Francisco Police Department, a process that has led to breakthrough reforms at the department.

“Throughout the time I knew Mayor Lee, a few things never changed,” said San Francisco
Assessor-Recorder Carmen Chu. “His values and how he carried himself. He was a son of
immigrants, started from humble roots and he understood the role government played in
protecting our vulnerable communities and in creating opportunities. As unexpected as it may
seem for a Mayor, Ed never sought the spotlight. He believed in people and in doing so he
inspired and empowered those around him to step up and share in the responsibility and
successes of leading this City. We will miss his laughter and his light.”

Prior to being appointed, Mayor Lee held numerous roles in City government, including
positions as the City Administrator, the Director of Public Works and the Executive Director of
the Human Rights Commission. Before his long career in public service, Mayor Lee worked as a
Managing Attorney for the Asian Law Caucus, advocating on the behalf of clients facing
discrimination and unlawful evictions.

“Mayor Lee always remembered his roots and cared deeply about serving immigrants, seniors
and tenants,” said Kitman Chan, President of the Chinese Chamber of Commerce. “As a son of
Chinese immigrants, he cared deeply about Chinatown and the Chinese American community.
Mayor Lee championed for small and minority-owned businesses, economic growth, civil rights
and language access for Chinatown and communities of color. He will be truly missed as a son of
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the Chinese community.”

HiHt

To view a video of Mayor Lee’s photo unveiling, click here.

To view images of Mayor Lee’s photo unveiling, click here.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141



https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/16pU8eu3m-WYfz46XgZ2i8bXTQQlLJt6T?usp=sharing

https://drewaltizer.com/event/10846-mayor-ed-lee-photo-unveiling-tribute-city-hall/lightbox/5ae9fcaabbddbd54477c6d74-xK0ePFUc13Yt2iuzkgsMtBNrphc9f7EG-5ae9fcaa1c3315-76636530




As part of today’s event, Mayor Lee’s official photo was hung in the Hall of Mayors in Room
200. In addition, an exhibit was unveiled in the South Light Court, chronicling his lengthy
tenure as an advocate, civic leader and elected official. The exhibit, which will open to the
public on Monday, features photos of Mayor Lee and other items related to his life. Part of a
collaborative effort with the Chinese Historical Society of America, the exhibit will be on
display through the end of this year.

"Being able to see dad’s portrait unveiled in City Hall, a place where he dedicated so much of
his energy and passion for public service, is an incredibly profound experience for our
family,” said Brianna and Tania Lee. “We are comforted, moved and honored by the fact that
there is a visual reminder of his spirit here in a place that symbolizes so much about the city he
loved.”

The first Chinese American Mayor in San Francisco history, Mayor Lee was first appointed to
the position on an interim basis in 2011, replacing Mayor Gavin Newsom, who left to become
Lieutenant Governor of California. Mayor Lee was subsequently elected by voters in
November 2011, and reelected in 2015.

“Mayor Lee was a great leader, mentor and friend,” said City Administrator Naomi Kelly. “He
guided San Francisco through a time of unprecedented economic growth and provided prudent
fiscal stewardship over our City’s finances, creating a blueprint for a responsible budget
process. His investments in long-overdue infrastructure projects have ensured that San
Francisco remains a safe, stable City for generations to come. History will be kind to the
lasting positive impacts he imparted on this City.”

When Mayor Lee assumed office, the country was in the grips of the great recession and the
unemployment rate was nearing double digits in San Francisco. He helped oversee the greatest
economic recovery in the history of San Francisco, with the City adding more than 160,000
jobs during his tenure and unemployment dropping below three percent.

“Today is bittersweet - we honor the great Mayor Ed Lee, but he's not here to celebrate with
us,” said California Lieutenant Governor and former San Francisco Mayor Gavin Newsom.
“His impact on the City is enduring. His steady leadership as San Francisco emerged from the
Great Recession ensured the City would continue to thrive economically, culturally, and
socially. He led with his values, and he always kept his community close to his heart. San
Francisco was lucky to have him, and today's tribute is but one small way we will keep his
memory alive.”

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
all its people. He was a champion for improving the lives and conditions of low-income
families living in public housing, and he worked tirelessly to build vibrant, dynamic
communities by expanding affordable housing and ensuring equal opportunity for all. He
leaves an enduring and inspiring legacy that will benefit generations of San Franciscans, and



everyone who sees this portrait will know the esteem in which he was held.”

While Mayor Lee was leading the creation of thousands of homes, he was also improving
living conditions for existing tenants. The City’s Rental Assistance Demonstration (RAD)
program, an initiative Mayor Lee championed, is set to rebuild and rehabilitate more than
3,480 rental units in San Francisco.

Despite the unprecedented growth occurring under his watch, Mayor Lee continued to pursue
sustainable and innovative environmental policies. As Mayor, the City’s greenhouse gas
emissions were reduced by 28 percent at the same time that San Francisco’s population
increased 19 percent and the economy grew 78 percent.

Mayor Lee maintained a prudent fiscal stewardship of the City’s finances, leading to years of
balanced budgets and record reserve levels. He also led the efforts to create a 10-year Capital
Plan, ensuring that the City maintained its long-term services and infrastructure.

Mayor Lee created the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing, an agency with
a singular focus of ending homelessness for every person it encounters. Mayor Lee launched
the City’s innovative Navigation Center program, a resource-heavy shelter model that has
been adopted by cities across the nation. Permanent supportive housing units for residents
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

“Mayor Lee governed our great City by consensus,” said Steve Kawa, Mayor Lee’s former
Chief of Staff. “He was determined to ensure that San Francisco was safe, solvent and
successful for all. He is so dearly missed.”

Mayor Lee was a champion of civil rights policies, helping to create Mayors Against
Discrimination, a national group of City leaders who used economic pressure to prevent the
passage of discriminatory laws targeting LGBTQ communities. He created a senior advisor
role on transgender initiatives, making San Francisco the first City in the nation with such a
position.

He consistently affirmed San Francisco’s status as a Sanctuary City and he increased funding
support for immigrant communities following the 2016 Presidential election. He also
requested that the United States Department of Justice undertake a thorough assessment on the
San Francisco Police Department, a process that has led to breakthrough reforms at the
department.

“Throughout the time | knew Mayor Lee, a few things never changed,” said San Francisco
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
positions as the City Administrator, the Director of Public Works and the Executive Director
of the Human Rights Commission. Before his long career in public service, Mayor Lee
worked as a Managing Attorney for the Asian Law Caucus, advocating on the behalf of clients
facing discrimination and unlawful evictions.

“Mayor Lee always remembered his roots and cared deeply about serving immigrants, seniors
and tenants,” said Kitman Chan, President of the Chinese Chamber of Commerce. “As a son
of Chinese immigrants, he cared deeply about Chinatown and the Chinese American
community. Mayor Lee championed for small and minority-owned businesses, economic
growth, civil rights and language access for Chinatown and communities of color. He will be
truly missed as a son of the Chinese community.”

ittt
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

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON ARBITRATION AWARD FOR POLICE OFFICER
ASSOCIATION CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS

Date: Monday, May 07, 2018 9:30:35 AM

Attachments: 5.4.18 Police Union Contract Agreement.pdf

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

Sent: Friday, May 04, 2018 4:35 PM

To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON ARBITRATION AWARD FOR POLICE OFFICER
ASSOCIATION CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, May 4, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON ARBITRATION AWARD
FOR POLICE OFFICER ASSOCIATION
CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS

“Today’ s arbitration award isafair and equitable pay increase that supports our police officers
and reflects aresponsible, sustainable approach to our City’s budget.

Our police officers have a difficult job and they deserve our respect and support. | am grateful
for the men and women of the police department who work every day to ensure the public
safety of our City.”
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

“Today’s arbitration award is a fair and equitable pay increase that supports our police officers
and reflects a responsible, sustainable approach to our City’s budget.

Our police officers have a difficult job and they deserve our respect and support. | am grateful
for the men and women of the police department who work every day to ensure the public safety
of our City.”

Hi#
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES ADDITIONAL PLANS FOR CITY TO PREPARE
AND RECOVER FROM NEXT ECONOMIC DOWNTURN

Date: Tuesday, May 08, 2018 2:27:51 PM

Attachments: 5.8.18 Economic Resiliency Executive Directive.pdf

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

Sent: Tuesday, May 08, 2018 2:11 PM

To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES ADDITIONAL PLANS FOR CITY
TO PREPARE AND RECOVER FROM NEXT ECONOMIC DOWNTURN

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, May 8, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCESADDITIONAL
PLANSFOR CITY TO PREPARE AND RECOVER FROM
NEXT ECONOMIC DOWNTURN

City now has detailed plans on potential recession strategies and policiesin place to monitor
and prepare for next downturn

San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today announced the next steps in San Francisco’'s
Economic Resiliency Plan, the City’ sfirst-in-the-nation policy to prepare, mitigate and
recover from the next recession.

San Francisco now has detailed information on potential recession scenarios and the various
impacts they would have on the City. Mayor Farrell issued an Executive Order today,
mandating that key City officials convene regularly to monitor potential signs of an economic
recession. Additionally, those staffers will devel op targeted recovery plans specific to each
potential recession scenario.

“We are enjoying unparalleled economic prosperity in our City, but we cannot forget the
lessons learned from the Great Recession,” said Mayor Farrell. “There is not a question of if
the next downturn will happen, but when. As Mayor, | have a duty to prepare our City and
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, May 8, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES ADDITIONAL
PLANS FOR CITY TO PREPARE AND RECOVER FROM NEXT
ECONOMIC DOWNTURN

City now has detailed plans on potential recession strategies and policies in place to monitor
and prepare for next downturn

San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today announced the next steps in San Francisco’s
Economic Resiliency Plan, the City’s first-in-the-nation policy to prepare, mitigate and recover
from the next recession.

San Francisco now has detailed information on potential recession scenarios and the various
impacts they would have on the City. Mayor Farrell issued an Executive Order today, mandating
that key City officials convene regularly to monitor potential signs of an economic recession.
Additionally, those staffers will develop targeted recovery plans specific to each potential
recession scenario.

“We are enjoying unparalleled economic prosperity in our City, but we cannot forget the lessons
learned from the Great Recession,” said Mayor Farrell. “There is not a question of if the next
downturn will happen, but when. As Mayor, | have a duty to prepare our City and determine
what steps we will need to take to recover. We will be poised to rebound and come back a better,
stronger City.”

San Francisco could lose more than 54,000 jobs and the City’s unemployment rate could
skyrocket to 9.4 percent with a severe downturn in San Francisco’s technology sector, according
to information collected from Economic Resiliency Plan consultants. Even the mildest scenario
investigated would result in the loss of more than 15,000 jobs and an unemployment rate of 6.4
percent.

As part of his Executive Directive, Mayor Farrell instructed the City group, with the assistance
of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development and the Office of the Controller, to
submit a list of concrete recession mitigation strategies for these scenarios by September 1, 2018.

In 2016, Mayor Edwin M. Lee established the creation of San Francisco’s Economic Resiliency
Plan, as the City became the first in the nation to embark upon such a strategy. Along with
developing recession models, the plan identified a number of national, regional and local
economic trends that could indicate a recession. Those include thresholds related to monthly
gross receipts filings, personal income tax revenue, commercial vacancy rates, stock prices,
monthly building permits and industrial production levels, among numerous other factors.
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The City group will act as the chief advisory body regarding recession mitigation efforts,
providing insight on short and long-term recovery strategies. The group will be comprised of the
City Controller, the City Economist, the City Administrator, the Mayor’s Budget Director and
the Director of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development (OEWD). The group will
work with relevant City departments to establish specific recession mitigation and recovery
strategies.

Between 2008 and 2010, the Great Recession led to the loss of 40,000 local jobs and severe cuts
to City services. Since then, San Francisco has added 189,000 jobs and lowered unemployment
to 2.4 percent, compared to 9.4 percent at the height of the Recession.

The Economic Resiliency Plan is one part of the City’s larger long term financial planning
process, which aims to predict future economic conditions and identify fiscal strategies that can
be used to balance the budget with minimal impact to City services even during a downturn.

As a result of its sound fiscal policy in recent years, San Francisco is in strong financial
standings. In March, the credit rating agency Moody’s upgraded San Francisco’s General
Obligation rating to Aaa, the highest rating in the system and the credit rating in the City’s
history. High credit ratings allow the City to issue debt at lower borrowing costs. In awarding the
upgrade, Moody’s cited the City’s “demonstrated record of sustainable budgeting and financial
management practices.”

Under the stewardship of former Mayor Lee, Mayor Farrell and the Board of Supervisors, San
Francisco has invested historic levels of funding in the City’s Economic Reserves, including
rainy day reserves, now with a $449 million balance - nearly reaching the City’s goal of 10
percent of General Fund revenues in reserve. This represents a remarkable improvement since
the last downturn and a historic high for the City.

“This directive is an important step forward as the City institutionalizes its monitoring of our
economy and management of our finances to help protect against the next economic downturn,”
said City Controller Ben Rosenfield.

“Despite our strong recovery, the pain of the Great Recession is still fresh for many San
Franciscans,” said Todd Rufo, OEWD Director. “The City has a responsibility to ensure that
when the next downturn hits, we are ready. The Economic Resiliency & Recovery Plan is a
groundbreaking step towards protecting our financial future.”
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determine what steps we will need to take to recover. We will be poised to rebound and come
back a better, stronger City.”

San Francisco could lose more than 54,000 jobs and the City’ s unemployment rate could
skyrocket to 9.4 percent with a severe downturn in San Francisco’ s technology sector,
according to information collected from Economic Resiliency Plan consultants. Even the
mildest scenario investigated would result in the loss of more than 15,000 jobs and an
unemployment rate of 6.4 percent.

As part of his Executive Directive, Mayor Farrell instructed the City group, with the assistance
of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development and the Office of the Controller, to
submit alist of concrete recession mitigation strategies for these scenarios by September 1,
2018.

In 2016, Mayor Edwin M. Lee established the creation of San Francisco’'s Economic
Resiliency Plan, as the City became the first in the nation to embark upon such a strategy.
Along with developing recession models, the plan identified a number of national, regional
and local economic trends that could indicate a recession. Those include thresholds related to
monthly gross receipts filings, personal income tax revenue, commercial vacancy rates, stock
prices, monthly building permits and industrial production levels, among numerous other
factors.

The City group will act as the chief advisory body regarding recession mitigation efforts,
providing insight on short and long-term recovery strategies. The group will be comprised of
the City Controller, the City Economist, the City Administrator, the Mayor’s Budget Director
and the Director of the Office of Economic and Workforce Development (OEWD). The group
will work with relevant City departments to establish specific recession mitigation and
recovery strategies.

Between 2008 and 2010, the Great Recession led to the loss of 40,000 local jobs and severe
cutsto City services. Since then, San Francisco has added 189,000 jobs and lowered
unemployment to 2.4 percent, compared to 9.4 percent at the height of the Recession.

The Economic Resiliency Plan is one part of the City’ s larger long term financial planning
process, which aims to predict future economic conditions and identify fiscal strategies that
can be used to balance the budget with minimal impact to City services even during a
downturn.

Asaresult of its sound fiscal policy in recent years, San Francisco isin strong financial
standings. In March, the credit rating agency Moody’ s upgraded San Francisco’s General
Obligation rating to Aaa, the highest rating in the system and the credit rating in the City’s
history. High credit ratings allow the City to issue debt at lower borrowing costs. In awarding
the upgrade, Moody’ s cited the City’ s “ demonstrated record of sustainable budgeting and
financial management practices.”

Under the stewardship of former Mayor Lee, Mayor Farrell and the Board of Supervisors, San
Francisco has invested historic levels of funding in the City’ s Economic Reserves, including
rainy day reserves, now with a $449 million balance - nearly reaching the City’ s goa of 10
percent of General Fund revenuesin reserve. This represents a remarkable improvement since
the last downturn and a historic high for the City.



“This directive is an important step forward as the City institutionalizes its monitoring of our
economy and management of our finances to help protect against the next economic
downturn,” said City Controller Ben Rosenfield.

“Despite our strong recovery, the pain of the Great Recession is still fresh for many San
Franciscans,” said Todd Rufo, OEWD Director. “The City has aresponsibility to ensure that
when the next downturn hits, we are ready. The Economic Resiliency & Recovery Planisa
groundbreaking step towards protecting our financial future.”



From: lonin, Jonas (CPC)

To: Aaron Jon Hyland - HPC; Andrew Wolfram (andrew@tefarch.com); Black, Kate (CPC); Diane Matsuda; Ellen
Johnck - HPC; Jonathan Pearlman; Richard S. E. Johns

Cc: Eeliciano. Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: Modernism = function over form. Vote NO to the resolution on 3333 California Street!

Date: Wednesday, May 09, 2018 10:23:49 AM

FYI

Jonas P. lonin,

Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309;Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Smith, Desiree (CPC)

Sent: Wednesday, May 02, 2018 11:43 AM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC)

Subject: FW: Modernism = function over form. Vote NO to the resolution on 3333 California Street!

We received this letter after the packet for the National Register nomination for 3333 California
Street was published.

From: Norma Guzman [mailto:normaguz@gmail.com]

Sent: Wednesday, May 02, 2018 11:34 AM

To: norma guzman

Subject: Modernism = function over form. Vote NO to the resolution on 3333 California Street!

Commissioners,
Please vote NO on the resolution to block much needed housing at 3333 California Street.

The timing of this nomination application is reactionary and seeks to make public land
exclusionary.

In light of climate change and other factors, American society is evolving away from suburban
environments. Before being acquired by AECOM, even EDAW evolved from designing
suburban landscapes to championing mixed-use, infill, urban regeneration projects. If they
were still around, | am sure that they would LOVE to be a partner in this project.

Modernism itself was meant to be rational, to respect contemporary social, economic, and
political redlities, and to respect function over form. In 2018, the function of housing in this
job-rich city isafar more rational use of this public land.

Our housing crisisis very real and we need every single home.

Please vote NO on this reactionary, exclusionary resolution.

Thank you,
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Norma Guzman
M.A. Landscape Architecture and City Planning



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

Subject: FW: UCSF Campus Building at 3333 California St

Date: Wednesday, May 09, 2018 10:23:57 AM

fYl

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

Sent: Wednesday, May 02, 2018 11:44 AM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC)

Subject: FW: UCSF Campus Building at 3333 California St

We also received this letter after the packet for the National Register nomination for 3333 California
Street was published.

From: marty cerles [mailto:martycerles@gmail.com]
Sent: Monday, April 30, 2018 3:34 PM

To: Smith, Desiree (CPC)

Subject: UCSF Campus Building at 3333 California St

Dear Mrs. Smith,

| am writing you today to urge you to NOT approve the Laurel Heights Improvement
Association's attempt to declare the current building at 3333 California Street as "Historic".
Thisisjust ablatant attempt to stop the construction of new housing at the site, and has
nothing to do with the "historic" aspect of the building. Thisis a classic example of
neighborhood organizations throwing up roadblocks to any attempt to construct desperately
needed new housing in San Francisco. There is no question that we are currently experiencing
acritical housing shortage due to these types of petitions, and | urge the Planning
Department's Historic Preservation program to not be complicit in this egregious
attempt.

| currently rent an apartment just three blocks away from this location, and was born
(in 1985) and raised just a few blocks away on Masonic. | always dreamed of raising
a family in the neighborhood I grew up in, but my dreams are unattainable because
there has been ZERO construction of new housing in this neighborhood, primarily as
a result of the activities of NIBMY organizations such as the Laurel Heights
Improvement Association. | urge to you to stop bending to their will.

Thank you for your time.
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Regards,

Marty R Cerles Jr
2763 Bush Street, Apt. E.



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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL RELEASES CITY REPORT DETAILING CITY COST-SAVINGS
AND BENEFITS FROM PROPOSED CITYWIDE FIBER NETWOWRK

Date: Wednesday, May 09, 2018 10:27:22 AM

Attachments: 5.9.18 Fiber Cost-Savings Report.pdf

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

Sent: Wednesday, May 09, 2018 10:21 AM

To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL RELEASES CITY REPORT DETAILING CITY
COST-SAVINGS AND BENEFITS FROM PROPOSED CITYWIDE FIBER NETWOWRK

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Wednesday, May 9, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL RELEASESCITY REPORT
DETAILING CITY COST-SAVINGS AND BENEFI TS FROM
PROPOSED CITYWIDE FIBER NETWOWRK

The new report shows the Fiber for San Francisco initiative can save taxpayer dollars and
generate new revenue for the City

San Francisco, CA —Mayor Mark Farrell today announced the release of anew City report
detailing potential cost-savings and revenue generating opportunities from his proposed
citywide fiber network that seeks to connect all of San Francisco to fast and affordable
internet.

“Our citywide fiber network will not only eliminate the digital divide, but will also save
precious taxpayer dollars and generate new revenue for the City,” said Mayor Mark Farrell. “I
believe the internet should be treated like a utility - which means it should be affordable and
ubiquitous for all of San Francisco’s residents and businesses.”

The report found that the City has an estimated $153 million in planned projects through the
2022 Fiscal Y ear that would require or benefit from the deployment of a gigabit speed
network. These planned costs can be offset once the network is constructed.
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
MAYOR MARK FARRELL RELEASES CITY REPORT
DETAILING CITY COST-SAVINGS AND BENEFITS FROM
PROPOSED CITYWIDE FIBER NETWOWRK

The new report shows the Fiber for San Francisco initiative can save taxpayer dollars and
generate new revenue for the City

San Francisco, CA — Mayor Mark Farrell today announced the release of a new City report
detailing potential cost-savings and revenue generating opportunities from his proposed citywide
fiber network that seeks to connect all of San Francisco to fast and affordable internet.

“Qur citywide fiber network will not only eliminate the digital divide, but will also save precious
taxpayer dollars and generate new revenue for the City,” said Mayor Mark Farrell. “I believe the
internet should be treated like a utility - which means it should be affordable and ubiquitous for
all of San Francisco’s residents and businesses.”

The report found that the City has an estimated $153 million in planned projects through the
2022 Fiscal Year that would require or benefit from the deployment of a gigabit speed network.
These planned costs can be offset once the network is constructed.

Furthermore, the report finds that the network could generate $1.2 million in ongoing savings
and avoided costs, as well as an unquantified amount of additional property tax and real estate
transfer taxes for the City due to increased property valuations.

The San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency, the Department of Public Health and the
Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development all note potential benefits from having
a citywide fiber network in place. The report finds these agencies can use the network for better
traffic signal communication to manage congestion, new telemedicine opportunities and more
reliable and affordable broadband opportunities for public housing residents and families.

Additionally, the report finds that the deployment of a ubiquitous gigabit speed fiber network
could stimulate the local economy and generate significant economic returns. Those benefits
include higher property valuations, lower prices for broadband service, business development
and job growth.

In addition, the report finds that the citywide fiber network creates the potential for a variety of
revenue generating activities. The report mentions that the City could lease fiber out to private
companies for wireless technologies or other enterprise uses to generate revenue. Additionally,

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

the report cites the Stockholm fiber network as an example of a similar system that is generating
revenues through the leasing of fiber.

The report also notes that broadband technology can enable the City to improve government
services and their provision to the benefit of residents and businesses. The report cites numerous
potential “smart cities” applications, such as monitoring of water treatment systems, real-time
data on parking availability and energy monitoring systems to name a few.

HH#
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
Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development all note potential benefits from
having a citywide fiber network in place. The report finds these agencies can use the network
for better traffic signal communication to manage congestion, new tel emedicine opportunities
and more reliable and affordable broadband opportunities for public housing residents and
families.

Additionally, the report finds that the deployment of a ubiquitous gigabit speed fiber network
could stimulate the local economy and generate significant economic returns. Those benefits

include higher property valuations, lower prices for broadband service, business devel opment
and job growth.

In addition, the report finds that the citywide fiber network creates the potential for a variety
of revenue generating activities. The report mentions that the City could lease fiber out to
private companies for wireless technologies or other enterprise uses to generate revenue.
Additionally, the report cites the Stockholm fiber network as an example of asimilar system
that is generating revenues through the leasing of fiber.

The report aso notes that broadband technology can enable the City to improve government
services and their provision to the benefit of residents and businesses. The report cites
numerous potential “smart cities” applications, such as monitoring of water treatment systems,
real-time data on parking availability and energy monitoring systemsto name afew.
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES APPROXIMATELY $30 MILLION IN
HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION, SHELTER AND HOUSING SUPPORT INITIATIVES

Date: Thursday, May 10, 2018 10:44:47 AM

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

Sent: Thursday, May 10, 2018 9:07 AM

To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES APPROXIMATELY $30 MILLION
IN HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION, SHELTER AND HOUSING SUPPORT INITIATIVES

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Thursday, May 10, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** PRESSRELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCESAPPROXIMATELY
$30MILLION IN HOMELESSNESS PREVENTION, SHELTER
AND HOUSING SUPPORT INITIATIVES

Budget will focus on keeping individuals from falling into homel essness and supporting them
once they have left crisis situations

San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today announced approximately $30 millionin
additional genera fund investmentsin the next fiscal year for homel essness prevention
initiatives, supportive housing programs and other measures to help individuals and families
experiencing homelessness in San Francisco.

“San Francisco’s homeless problem has become a crisis, and as Mayor | have been committed
to tackle the issue head on,” said Mayor Mark Farrell. “ These investments focus on programs
and policies that have been proven to work, and will make a difference on the streets of San
Francisco. Our residents deserveit.”

Mayor Farrell has placed homel essness measures on the top of his agenda, and the $29.1
million package of new funding investments include:

e Doubling San Francisco’'s Homeward Bound program.
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o Expanded shelter capacity.

e Full funding for the four new Navigation Centers slated to open in the next year.

e Nearly 200 housing units for formerly homeless residents in new affordable housing
buildings and in a hotel in the SoMa District.

Homeward Bound—a program that reunites individuals with friends and family members—
served nearly 900 people last year. Through the first eight months of 2017, less than four
percent of those served returned to San Francisco to access homel essness resources. Mayor
Farrell will double the current funding levels for Homeward Bound, adding $1.2 million for
the upcoming fiscal year.

The Mayor’s homelessness funding package a so includes $2 million to support 147 unitsin
newly constructed affordable housing sites specifically set aside for formerly homeless
residents coming on line next year. The funding will pay for operating subsidies and
supportive services to ensure that these tenants have the resources necessary to remain in their
new homes.

The budget will provide $2 million for the opening and operation of the Minna Lee Hotel, a
master leased building with 50 units in the SoMa District. With the 197 new permanent
supportive homes, San Francisco will now have approximately 7,700 total units, the most per
capita of any city in the county. In addition to adding new units, the Mayor’ s budget will
include $1.5 million ayear in enhanced supportive services at permanent supportive housing
Sites.

Mayor Farrell’s homelessness package will continue investments in the Navigation Center
pipeline, funding $15.2 million for four facilities, including one specificaly catering to
women and expectant mothers. Other key investments include $1 million for rapid rehousing
programs for Transitional Age Y outh (TAY), and the creation of two new access points that
provide resources, support and services for families and residents struggling to remain out of
homelessness.

Overadl, the $29.1 million in additional investments represent an 11.7 percent increase to the
Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing's current $250 million annual budget.

“The Mayor’s proposed budget adds significant resources to San Francisco’ s Homelessness
Response System,” said Jeff Kositsky, director of the Department of Homel essness and
Supportive Housing. “To be successful in our efforts to make homelessness rare, brief and
one-time we have to invest in proven programs that help prevent and end homelessness. The
proposed budged will help us reduce the number of people who are becoming homelessand in
need of emergency services while also investing in proven solutions like permanent supportive
housing and navigation centers. This budget reflects the priorities outlined in HSH’ s strategic
framework and moves us closer to our goal of reducing homelessnessin San Francisco.”

The Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing (HSH) aims to make homel essness
in San Francisco rare, brief and a one-time occurrence through the provision of coordinated,
compassionate and high-quality services. Established in 2016, HSH consolidates and
coordinates citywide homeless serving programs and contracts.
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

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON GOVERNOR JERRY BROWN'S STATE BUDGET
Date: Friday, May 11, 2018 2:29:07 PM

Attachments: 5.11.18 Governor May Budaget.pdf

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309;Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Sent: Friday, May 11, 2018 2:24 PM

To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON GOVERNOR JERRY BROWN'S STATE BUDGET

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Friday, May 11, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

**% STATEMENT ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL GOVERNOR ON JERRY BROWN'S
STATE BUDGET

“Today, Governor Jerry Brown released the May Revision to the Fiscal Y ear 2018-19 state
budget, which reflects continued revenue growth and a sizable one-time surplus. Due to the
Governor’s leadership and prudent fiscal decisions, the state remainsin good health while
increasing spending in key areas such as education and health care.

Similar to my own budgeting approach, the Governor is planning for uncertain times by
continuing to invest in the State’s Rainy Day Fund, positioning Californiafor any challenges
ahead. With the additional revenues announcement today, the Governor outlined severa new
one-time spending proposals which include infrastructure, homelessness and mental health
spending.

| appreciate that the Governor iswilling to propose some funding for homel essness and mental
health services, however, cities and counties are battling a crisis on our streets. We need more
support to address the homel essness and opioid addiction plaguing our communities. | look

forward to working with the Governor, the legislature and my fellow mayors to increase these
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

*xx STATEMENT ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON GOVERNOR JERRY BROWN’S
STATE BUDGET

“Today, Governor Jerry Brown released the May Revision to the Fiscal Year 2018-19 state
budget, which reflects continued revenue growth and a sizable one-time surplus. Due to the
Governor’s leadership and prudent fiscal decisions, the state remains in good health while
increasing spending in key areas such as education and health care.

Similar to my own budgeting approach, the Governor is planning for uncertain times by
continuing to invest in the State’s Rainy Day Fund, positioning California for any challenges
ahead. With the additional revenues announcement today, the Governor outlined several new
one-time spending proposals which include infrastructure, homelessness and mental health
spending.

| appreciate that the Governor is willing to propose some funding for homelessness and mental
health services, however, cities and counties are battling a crisis on our streets. We need more
support to address the homelessness and opioid addiction plaguing our communities. I look
forward to working with the Governor, the legislature and my fellow mayors to increase these
funding levels in the weeks to come.”

HitH
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

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON THE PASSING OF POLICE COMMISSIONER JULIUS
TURMAN

Date: Monday, May 14, 2018 9:06:30 AM

Attachments: 5.13.18 Passing of Julius Turman.pdf

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

Sent: Sunday, May 13, 2018 4:59 PM

To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON THE PASSING OF POLICE COMMISSIONER
JULIUS TURMAN

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Sunday, May 13, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

**% STATEMENT ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON THE PASSING OF POLICE
COMM ISSIONER JULIUS TURMAN

“As alongtime member of the Police Commission, Julius Turman provided honest candor and
oversight, working tirelessly to make this city safe and secure for everyone. He was a voice of
leadership who helped build trust and comradery between the men and women of the police
department and San Francisco residents.

Juliuswas a civic leader, proud defender of human rights and a fierce advocate for equality
and justice. He displayed great |eadership working with his fellow commissioners to ensure
that critical reforms were instituted at the San Francisco Police Department. Julius always
spoke forcefully, yet truly, and he gained the well-earned respect of his colleagues and peers
for his clear passion and dedication to serving the people of this City.

| am profoundly saddened by his passing. My deepest sympathies and condolences are with
hisfamily and friends at thistime.”
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
COMMISSIONER JULIUS TURMAN

“As a longtime member of the Police Commission, Julius Turman provided honest candor and
oversight, working tirelessly to make this city safe and secure for everyone. He was a voice of
leadership who helped build trust and comradery between the men and women of the police
department and San Francisco residents.

“Julius was a civic leader, proud defender of human rights and a fierce advocate for equality and
justice. He displayed great leadership working with his fellow commissioners to ensure that
critical reforms were instituted at the San Francisco Police Department. Julius always spoke
forcefully, yet truly, and he gained the well-earned respect of his colleagues and peers for his
clear passion and dedication to serving the people of this City.

| am profoundly saddened by his passing. My deepest sympathies and condolences are with his
family and friends at this time.”

it

As a mark of respect for the memory of Julius Turman, Mayor Farrell has directed flags to be
flown at half-staff on Monday from sunrise to sunset at City Hall and San Francisco Police
Department buildings.

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

Subject: FW: Commission Update for the Week of May 14, 2018
Date: Monday, May 14, 2018 10:19:33 AM

Attachments: Commission Weekly Update 5.14.18.doc

Jonas P. lonin,
Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department|City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309;Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Tsang, Francis

Sent: Monday, May 14, 2018 10:00 AM

To: Tsang, Francis

Subject: Commission Update for the Week of May 14, 2018

Good morning.

Please find a memo attached that outlines items before commissions and boards for this week.
Let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

Francis

Francis Tsang

Deputy Chief of Staff

Office of Mayor Mark Farrell
City and County of San Francisco

415.554.6467 | francis.tsang@sfgov.org
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To: 

Mayor’s Senior Staff

From: 

Francis Tsang

Date: 

May 14, 2018

Re: 

Commission Update for the Week of May 14, 2018

This memorandum summarizes and highlights agenda items before commissions and boards for the week of May 14, 2018. 

Immigrant Rights (Monday, May 14, 530PM)


Discussion Only


· Safety Net / Health & Well-Being


· Immigration Policy and Muslim Ban

· 2018 Immigrant Leadership Awards Event Update


Small Business (Monday, May 14, 530PM) - CANCELLED


Regular Meeting is cancelled due to Small Business Week, May 14- 19, 2018. The next Regular Meeting of the Small Business Commission is scheduled for Monday, May 21, 2018, 2:00 pm.

Airport (Tuesday, May 15, 9AM)

Special Items

· 2017 William R. O’Brien Employee of the Year Award - Resolution commending Mr. Eoin Manering for his outstanding level of dedicated and professional service to the Airport.


· Russell J. Mayweathers Resolution for Mr. Wai Sing Fung - Resolution commending Mr. Wai Sing Fung of the Facilities/Custodial Services Section for recipient 2017 Mayweathers Award for employee excellence and to offer its best wishes.


· 2017 Airport Commission Team Recognition Award - Resolution commending the “SFO Financial System Project (F$P) Team” on their outstanding level of dedication and professional service to the Airport.


· 2017 Safety and Security Excellence Award - Resolution commending the “Runway 28L Team” on their outstanding level of exemplary efforts to enhance the safety and security of the Airport and its passengers.


· 2017 Administrative Professional Excellence Award - Resolution commending Ms. Emily Chau on her outstanding level of dedicated and professional service to the Airport.


· 2017 SFO Service to Communities Award - Resolution commending the Motivating Volunteer Participation Committee for their outstanding level of service and embodying the Airport’s mission of being an exception Airport in service to its communities.


Action Items

· Designation of up to $67,881,000 of Passenger Facility Charge Funds as Revenues in Fiscal Year 2018/2019 and Authorization to Apply Such Amount to Debt Service and Airlines Rates and Charges, As Needed 


· Adoption of Fiscal Year 2018/19 Airport Rate and Charges

· Approval of Phase C6 of Contract No. 8768.66 Design-Build Services for the Airport Hotel Project - Webcor Construction LP dba Webcor Builders - $28,960,485


· Modification Nos. 4 and 5 (Annual Renewal) to Professional Services Contract No. 8768.41 Project Management Support Services for the Airport Hotel Program - PGH Wong-MCK, JV - $5,500,000


· Authorization to Accept Proposals for the Terminal 3 Boarding Area E Retail Specialty Store, the Terminal 3 Boarding Area E Candy Kiosk, and the Terminal 3 Boarding Area E and International Terminal Boarding Area G Wellness Concession Leases


· Authorization to Accept Proposals for the Expedited Traveler Service Lease


· Commencement of the Request for Proposals Process for the Terminal 3 Coffee and Quick Serve Concession Lease


· Agreement No. 50133 with the City of Millbrae for Partial Reimbursement of Costs for the Millbrae Intermodal Station Access Plan Study to be Conducted by the City of Millbrae - $50,000


· Approval of Phase C2 to Contract No. 9322.66 Design-Build Services for the Renovation of Cargo Buildings 900 and 944 Project - XL Construction - $908,402


· Authorization to Accept Proposals for the Electronics Store Lease in International Terminal Boarding Area A


· Authorization to Accept Proposals for the Electronics Stores Lease in Terminal 3 Boarding Areas E and F


· Commencement of the Request for Proposals Process for the Terminal 2 Sunglass or Cosmetics Store Lease


· Commencement of the Request for Proposals Process for the Shoeshine Service Lease


· Award of the Terminal 2 Specialty Retail Concession Lease No. 5


· PUBLIC EMPLOYEE APPOINTMENT – Title of Position: Commission Secretary. (Closed Session) 

Community Investment & Infrastructure (Tuesday, May 15, 1PM) - CANCELLED

Entertainment (Tuesday, May 15, 530PM)


Action Items

· Hearing and Possible Action regarding applications for permits under the jurisdiction of the Entertainment Commission: 


Consent Agenda:


· EC-1443 – Doucet, Kevin, Dogpatch Wineworks, 2455 3rd St., Limited Live Performance Permit.


· EC-1444 – Jamestown Premier GHRSQ, L.P., Jamestown Premier GHRSQ, L.P., 900 North Point St., Limited Live Performance Permit, Outdoor.


Regular Agenda:


· EC-1442 – Lam, Jimmy Kwok Lung, The Mint, 1942 Market St., Place of Entertainment Permit, Change in Ownership.


· Review and possible action to change the conditions on the Place of Entertainment permit #EC-953 Place of Entertainment permit, dba Hue located at 447 Broadway, San Francisco, CA. 94133 at the request of permittee.

Health (Tuesday, May 15, 4PM)


Discussion Only


· FY 2016 CHARITY CARE REPORT

Action Items

· REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF A NEW CONTRACT WITH THE SAN FRANCISCO AIDS FOUNDATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $916,907 WHICH INCLUDES A 12% CONTINGENCY, TO PROVIDE SYRINGE CLEAN UP PROGRAM SERVICES, FOR THE PERIOD OF MAY 1, 2018 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2019 (1.2 YEARS).

· DPH POLICY ON THE PROCUREMENT AND USE OF GIFT CARDS

· SAN FRANCISCO FOUNDATION LEASE - THE HEALTH COMMISSION WILL CONSIDER A LEASE WITH THE SAN FRANCISCO FOUNDATION FOR THE SPACE AT 2789 25TH STREET, SUITE 2028, SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA FOR THE PERIOD OF APRIL 1, 2018 THORUGH JANUARY 31, 2019.

MTA (Tuesday, May 15, 1PM)


Discussion Only


· Update on Vision Zero

· Presentation and discussion regarding the San Francisco County Transportation Authority’s Emerging Mobility Evaluation Report.

Action Items

· Requesting the Controller to allot funds and to draw warrants against such funds available or will be available in payment of the following claims against the SFMTA:


· Adrian Malone vs. CCSF, Superior Ct. #CGC17561555 filed on 9/27/17 for $3,500

· Making environmental findings and approving the following traffic modifications:

· ESTABLISH – STOP SIGN − Texas Street, northbound, at 17th Street.


· ESTABLISH – STOP SIGN − Malta Drive, southbound, at Stillings Avenue.


· ESTABLISH – TOW-AWAY, NO STOPPING ANYTIME − McAllister Street, north side, from Buchanan Street to 29 feet westerly.


· ESTABLISH – STOP SIGN − Bowdoin Street, northbound, at Olmstead Street.


· ESTABLISH – NO LEFT TURN, 7 AM TO 9 AM AND 4 PM TO 6 PM EXCEPT SUNDAY, EXCEPT MUNI − Columbus Avenue, southbound, at Green Street and Stockton Street.


· ESTABLISH – RED ZONE − Burnett Avenue, east side, from 45 feet to 70 feet south of the intersection of Burnett Avenue and Parkridge Drive.


· ESTABLISH – NO PARKING VEHICLES OVER 6 FEET HIGH − Naples Street, east side, from Geneva Avenue to 80 feet northerly.


· RESCIND – ANGLED 45 DEGREE PARKING − 26th Avenue, east side, from Judah Street to 79 feet northerly.


· ESTABLISH—NO PARKING FOR STREET CLEANING, TUESDAY, 7 AM TO 8 AM – 900 block of Pacific Avenue, south side, between Mason and Powell streets.


· ESTABLISH – NO U-TURN, NO LEFT TURN − Mission St., northbound, at Cortland Ave.


· ESTABLISH – TOW-AWAY, NO STOPPING ANYTIME − Ocean Avenue, south side, from Howth Street to 132 feet easterly; Howth Street, east side, from Ocean Avenue to 35 feet southerly; Geneva Avenue, south side, from Louisburg Street to 10 feet easterly; and Geneva Avenue, north side, from Louisburg Street to 20 feet easterly.


· ESTABLISH – RAISED MEDIAN − Geneva Ave., from Louisburg St. to 70 feet easterly.


· ESTABLISH - MARKED CROSSWALK − Geneva Avenue, west leg, at Louisburg Street


· ESTABLISH – RED ZONE − San Jose Avenue, east side, from Rice Street to 25 feet southerly.


· ESTABLISH – NO LEFT TURN ON RED − Westbound Howard Street at Hawthorne Street.


· ESTABLISH – STOP SIGNS − Kirkham Street, eastbound and westbound, at 16th Avenue.


· ESTABLISH – BUS ZONE − Sunnydale Avenue, south side, from the western-most property line of 2055 Sunnydale Avenue to 205 feet westerly.


· RESCIND – 2-HOUR PARKING, 9 AM TO 6 PM, MONDAY THROUGH FRIDAY, EXCEPT VEHICLES WITH AREA Z PERMIT − ESTABLISH – GENERAL METERED PARKING, 4-HOUR TIME LIMIT, 9 AM TO 6 PM, MONDAY THROUGH SATURDAY − 23rd Street, north side, between Valencia Street and San Jose Avenue.


· ESTABLISH – TOW-AWAY, NO PARKING ANYTIME − Minna Street, south side, from 147 to 269 feet west of 10th Street.


· ESTABLISH – CROSSWALK − Minna Street at 7th Street, south side.


· ESTABLISH – CROSSWALK − Owens Street at Campus Way.


· ESTABLISH – NO PARKING ANYTIME − Pennsylvania Avenue, east side, from Mariposa St. to 15 feet southerly; and Pennsylvania Ave., south side, from Mariposa St. to 10 feet northerly.


· RESCIND – TOW-AWAY, NO STOPPING EXCEPT PERMITTED CAR SHARE − 15th Street, south side, from Dolores Street to 18 feet westerly


· ESTABLISH – NO PARKING ANYTIME − 15th Street, south side, from Dolores Street to 18 feet westerly.


· ESTABLISH – TOW-AWAY, NO STOPPING EXCEPT PERMITTED CAR SHARE VEHICLES − 15th Street, south side, from 38 feet to 56 feet west of Dolores Street.


· ESTABLISH – NO PARKING ANYTIME − Highland Avenue, north side, from Mission Street to 18 feet easterly; Highland Avenue, south side, from Mission Street to 15 feet westerly; Leese Street, north side, from Mission Street to 18 feet easterly; and Leese Street, south side, from Mission Street to 20 feet easterly.


· ESTABLISH – RIGHT TURN ONLY − Leese Street, westbound, at Mission Street.


· ESTABLISH – TOW-AWAY, NO STOPPING ANYTIME − Bryant Street, south side, from 38 feet west of the west Sterling Street property line to 58 feet easterly.


· ESTABLISH – TOW-AWAY, NO STOPPING ANYTIME − ESTABLISH – SIDEWALK WIDENING; Bryant Street, north side, from Sterling Street to 80 feet east of Sterling Street.


· RESCIND – PASSENGER LOADING ZONE 7 AM TO 10 PM DAILY − Bryant Street, south side, from 4 feet to 24 feet east of the west Sterling Street property line.


· ESTABLISH – PASSENGER LOADING ZONE 7 AM TO 10 PM DAILY − Bryant Street, south side, from 20 feet to 56 feet east of the west Sterling Street property line.


· REMOVE – TRAFFIC ISLAND − Bryant Street at Sterling Street.


· ESTABLISH – NO LEFT TURN ON RED − Bryant Street, eastbound, at Sterling Street.


· ESTABLISH – NO RIGHT TURN ON RED − Bryant Street, westbound, at Sterling Street.


· ESTABLISH – TOW-AWAY, NO STOPPING ANYTIME − Fell Street, north side, from Baker Street to 17 feet easterly; Baker Street, east side, from Fell Street to 5 feet southerly; Fell Street, south side, from western crosswalk at Lyon Street to 49 feet easterly; Lyon Street, west side, from Fell Street to 12 feet northerly; Fell Street, south side, from western crosswalk at Central Avenue to 39 feet easterly; Fell Street, north side, from Central Avenue to 10 feet easterly; Masonic Avenue, west side, from Fell Street to 11 feet northerly; Fell Street, south side, from western crosswalk at Ashbury Street to 38 feet easterly; Fell Street, south side, from Ashbury Street to 10 feet easterly; Ashbury Street, west side, from Fell Street to 11 feet northerly; Fell Street, south side, from Clayton Street to 10 feet easterly; Fell Street, north side, from Clayton Street to 10 feet easterly; Clayton Street, west side, from Fell Street to 11 feet northerly; Fell Street, south side, from western crosswalk at Cole Street to 38 feet easterly; Fell Street, south side, from Cole Street to 10 feet easterly; Cole Street, west side, from Fell Street to 10 feet northerly; Fell Street, south side, from Shrader Street to 10 feet easterly; and Shrader Street, west side, from Fell Street to 9 feet easterly. 


· Authorizing the Director to execute Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. CPT 713 with New Flyer of America, to change 68 coaches from parallel propulsion to series propulsion, amend the list of additional equipment, and amend the Schedule of Prices, for an additional amount of $14,880,231 and a total contract amount not to exceed $428,654,904, with no change to the term.

· Authorizing changes to rental fees for vintage street cars; and amending the Transportation Code, Division II, Sections 301 and 305 to: reduce the special collection fee for failure to timely pay or contest citations; establish a low income boot removal fee; make renters of towed vehicles eligible for first tow and low income reduced administrative fees; and revise low income towing fees.

· Authorizing the disposal of 12 surplus vintage streetcars. 


· Committing to start procuring zero emission battery buses to replace the electric hybrid vehicles by 2025, with a goal of achieving a 100% electric vehicle fleet by 2035. 

· CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing Litigation: San Francisco Federal Credit Union v. SFMTA, Superior Court, Case #CGC18565325, filed on 3/27/18 (Closed Session)

Board of Appeals (Wednesday, May 16, 5PM) – CANCELLED

Building Inspection (Wednesday, May 16, 10AM)

Discussion Only


· Update regarding the Nominations Sub-Committee, and Access Appeals Commission (AAC) and Code Advisory Committee (CAC) Vacancies. The AAC has a vacant Public Member seat, and the CAC has a vacant Major Projects Contractor seat.

· Discussion regarding permit history and investigation of potential violations at 214 States Street.

· Discussion regarding permit history and investigation of potential violations at 655 Alvarado Street.

· Update on Accela permit and project tracking system.

Action Items

· Discussion and possible action regarding a proposed ordinance (Board of Supervisors File No. 171284) amending the Building Code to require new commercial buildings of 25,000 square feet or more and new residential buildings of three units or more to provide a dedicated telecommunications space in a centrally located place in the building and to install fiber-ready cabling that is connected to an approved telecommunications network, in addition to other requirements.

Elections (Wednesday, May 16, 6PM)


Action Items

· Discussion and possible action regarding the City and County of San Francisco's open source voting system project.

· Discussion and Possible Action regarding the preparation of objectives and process for Performance Evaluation of the Director of Elections (Closed Session)


Historic Preservation (Wednesday, May 16, 1230PM)


Action Items

· MAYOR’S PROCESS IMPROVEMENTS ORDINANCE – Adoption Hearing to recommend action on an Ordinance introduced by Mayor Farrell (Board File No. 180423) that would amend the Planning Code to streamline review of 100% affordable housing projects, eliminate duplicative review processes for most large residential projects in downtown C-3 districts, consolidate and modernize notification requirements and procedures, and provide for expedited review of minor alterations to historical landmarks and in conservation districts. Preliminary Recommendation: Approve

· 3333 CALIFORNIA STREET – 3333 CALIFORNIA STREET – south side of California Street between Presidio Avenue and Laurel Street, in Assessor’s Parcel 1032, Lot 003 (District 2) - Request for Review and Comment on the nomination of the property to the National Register of Historic Places for its association with the San Francisco insurance industry, as one of the principal embodiments of the postwar decentralization and suburbanization of San Francisco, as the work of three masters – the architect Edward B. Page, the engineering firm of John J. Gould & J.J. Degenkolb/Henry J. Degenkolb & Associates, and the landscape architectural firm of Eckbo, Royston, & Williams/Eckbo, Austin, Dean and Williams – and as an example of a corporate headquarters in San Francisco that reflects mid-twentieth-century modernist design principles. The subject property is located within a RM-1 Residential- Mixed, Low Density Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in support of the nomination, subject to revisions, to the National Register of Historic Places.

· 6301 THIRD STREET - Consideration to Recommend Landmark Designation of the Arthur H. Coleman Medical Center, Assessor's Parcel No. 4968, Lot 032, as an Article 10 Landmark pursuant to Section 1004.1 of the Planning Code. The subject property is significant for its association with Dr. Arthur H. Coleman, nationally prominent African American lawyer-physician and influential healthcare and civil rights advocate. Opening in 1960, the Arthur H. Coleman Medical Center reflected the style of the period and served as a modern symbol of community health, progress, and success. He recruited a team of African American physicians to join him in his vision of providing comprehensive health services to the area’s low-income African American residents. Dr. Coleman was a local pioneer in the nationally significant community health center movement of the 1960s, a tireless advocate for racial equity within the healthcare system and the medical profession, and an advocate for the Bayview’s African American community. The property at 6301 Third Street is located within the NC-3 – Neighborhood Commercial, Moderate Scale Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. Preliminary Recommendation: Approve

· WASHINGTON SQUARE - LM #226 – bounded by Columbus Avenue, Filbert, Stockton, Union and Powell Streets in the North Beach neighborhood of San Francisco (Assessor’s Block 0102; Lot 001) (District 3). Request for Certificate of Appropriateness for the removal, replacement and addition of trees, ADA upgrades to pathways, including the replacement of all existing asphalt pathways with stained concrete, installation of perimeter cobble pavers at the lawn and planting bed edges, installation of a concrete curb along the planter beds, installation of perimeter low post and chain fencing on the outer planter bed edges, and the removal and replacement of the existing wood benches in-kind with new benches as needed. Washington Square is located within a P (Public) Zoning District and OS (Open Space) Height and Bulk limit. Washington Square was locally designated as San Francisco Landmark No. 226 under Article 10 of the Planning Code in 1999. Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· MILLS ACT PROGRAM – Review and Comment on proposed Mills Act Program modifications based on a November 1, 2017 discussion of the Government Audit and Oversight Committee and as directed by HPC President Wolfram. The Mills Act authorizes local governments to enter into contracts with owners of private historical property who, through the historical property contract, assure the rehabilitation, restoration, preservation and maintenance of a qualified historical property. In return, the property owner enjoys a reduction in property taxes for a given period. Preliminary Recommendation: Review and Comment

Police (Wednesday, May 16, 530PM) – CANCELLED DUE TO LACK OF QUORUM

Library (Thursday, May 17, 430PM) - CANCELLED

THE LIBRARY COMMISSION WILL HOLD A RESCHEDULED MEETING THURSDAY, MAY 31, 2018 AT 4:30 pm IN THE KORET AUDITORIUM

Planning (Thursday, May 17, 1130AM) - SPECIAL

Action Items

· Conference with Legal Counsel - the Commission will discuss with legal counsel pending litigation in City and County of San Francisco, et al. v. Melvin Lee, et al., San Francisco Superior Court No. CGC-18-565184. (Closed Session)


Planning (Thursday, May 17, 1PM)

Consideration of Items Proposed for Continuance

· 220 POST STREET – northern side of Post Street between Grant Avenue and Stockton Street; lot 007 of Assessor’s Block 0294 (District 3) – Request for a Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code Section 303 and 210.2 to establish a change of use from an existing Retail Sales and Service use to an Office use on the fourth and fifth floors of the subject building, within a C-3-R (Downtown-Retail) Zoning District and 80- 130-F Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). (Proposed Continuance to July 12, 2018)

· 77 GEARY STREET– southeast corner of Geary Street and Grant Avenue; Lot 008 in Assessor’s Block 0312 (District 3) - Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 210.2 to establish a Non-Retail Sales and Service general office use with approximately 24,159 square feet of total space at the second and third floors of the existing building. This application seeks to abate Planning Enforcement Case No. 2015-009163ENF for unauthorized office use in the subject space. The space is currently occupied for office use by a software company (d.b.a. MuleSoft) and by an existing ground floor retailer in the building (d.b.a. Nespresso). The project is located within a C-3-R (Downtown – Retail) District, Downtown Plan Area, and 80-130-F Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). (Proposed Continuance to October 25, 2018)

Discussion Only


· MAYOR’S PROCESS IMPROVEMENTS ORDINANCE – Informational Presentation to provide an update on implementation of the Planning Department Process Improvements Plan issued December 1, 2017. The presentation will provide an overview of administrative and internal policy changes that have been implemented or are underway. The presentation will also review a package of legislative amendments proposed by Mayor Farrell to implement process improvement measures related to Planning Department review of affordable housing projects and large downtown projects; public notification procedures; and review procedures for routine work on historic landmarks and buildings in conservation districts.


· CIVIC CENTER PUBLIC REALM PLAN – Informational Presentation on the Civic Center Public Realm Plan. The Civic Center Public Realm Plan is an interagency project led by the Planning Department that is working to create a long-term vision for the design and activation of the Civic Center’s public spaces and streets. The Plan area is roughly bounded by Gough Street, Golden Gate Avenue, Market Street, and Fell Street and encompasses the Civic Center Landmark District. The Plan is being closely coordinated with the Civic Center Commons Initiative, an on-going effort to improve Civic Center as a neighborhood gathering space and public commons for all San Franciscans. The Plan is currently midway through its design and community engagement phase. This informational presentation will provide a general update of the Plan’s community engagement and design work to date, including an overview of design options.


Action Items

· 524 HOWARD STREET – between 1st and 2nd Streets; Lot 013 in Assessor’s Block 3721 (District 6) - Request for Conditional Use Authorization, pursuant to Planning Code  Sections 156 and 303 to allow the continued operation of an existing, temporary surface parking lot within a C-3-O (SD) District, the Transbay C-3 Special Use District, the Transit Center C-3-O(SD) Commercial Special Use District, and 450-S Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 1015-1033 VAN NESS AVE – between Geary Boulevard and Myrtle Street; Lot 028 in Assessor’s Block 0714 (District 5) - Request for Staff-Initiated Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application No. 2017.09.25.9502, proposing to legalize the removal of 17 residential care units (an Institutional use), with eight being merged into four (for a net loss of four), four being converted to common space, and nine having been converted to two dwelling units (a Residential use) within a RC-4 (Residential, Commercial – High Density) Zoning District and 130-V Height & Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Take Discretionary Review and Deny

· 1863 MISSION STREET – east side of Mission Street between 14th and 15th Streets; Lot 033 in the Assessor’s Block 3548 (District 9) – Request for Discretionary Review of Building Permit Application 2006.03.27.7548 within a NCT (Mission Street Neighborhood Commercial Transit) and 40-X and 65-X Height and Bulk Districts. The proposal includes the construction of a four- to seven-story, 37,441 sq. ft. mixed-use building with 37 dwelling units, approximately 1,425 sq. ft. of ground floor retail use, and 16 off-street parking spaces on a vacant lot. The Project requires a variance for Rear Yard and Commercial Street Frontage (from Planning Code Section 134) from the Zoning Administrator. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Staff Analysis: Full Discretionary Review Preliminary Recommendation: Do Not Take DR and Approve as Proposed

1863 MISSION STREET – east side of Mission Street between 14th and 15th Streets; Lot 033 in the Assessor’s Block 3548 (District 9) – Request for a Rear Yard Modification pursuant to Planning Code Section 134(e) to provide a rear yard less than 25 percent of lot depth. The Project proposed to construct a four- to seven-story, 37,441 sq. ft. mixed-use building within the Mission Street NCT (Neighborhood Commercial Transit) Zoning District and a 40-X and 65-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h).

· INCREASING THE TSF FOR LARGE NON-RESIDENTIAL PROJECT ORDINANCE [BOARD FILE NO. 180117] – Planning Code Amendment to increase the Transportation Sustainability Fee by $5 for Non-Residential Projects larger than 99,999 gross square feet; affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental Quality Act; and making findings of public necessity, convenience, and welfare, and findings of consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority policies of Planning Code Section 101.1. Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Modifications

· 3042A CALIFORNIA STREET – north side of California Street between Lyon and Baker Streets, Lot 015 in Assessor’s Block 1023 (District 1) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 303 and 317 to legalize the previously demolished and partially reconstructed two-story, two-unit dwelling at the rear of the subject property within a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

3042A CALIFORNIA STREET – north side of California Street between Lyon and Baker Streets, Lot 015 in Assessor’s Block 1023 (District 1) - Request for Variances from the rear yard requirements of Planning Code Section 134, for the usable open space requirements of Planning Code Section 135, and for the dwelling unit exposure requirements of Planning Code Section 140 to legalize the previously-demolished and partially reconstructed two-story, two-unit residential building at the rear of the subject property. The project site is located in a RH-2 (Residential-House, Two-Family) Zoning District and 40-X Height and Bulk District.


· 555 GOLDEN GATE AVENUE – south side of Golden Gate Avenue, between Polk Street and Van Ness Avenue; Lot 010 in Assessor’s Block 0766 (District 6) – Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 243, 253, 253.2, 271 and 303, to demolish a one-story over basement commercial building and construct an 11-story, approximately 60,000 square-foot mixed use building containing approximately 1,500 square feet of ground floor commercial space, 55 dwelling units (including seven below market rate units), 21 off-street stacked parking spaces and 55 Class 1 bicycle parking spaces. The project is also seeking an administrative Zoning Administrator modification of the rear yard requirement pursuant to Planning Code Sections 243 and 307. The project site is located within a RC-4 (Residential-Commercial, High Density) Zoning District and the Van Ness Special Use District, and 130-V Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

· 792 CAPP STREET – west side of Capp Street, between 22nd and 23rd Streets; lot 019B of Assessor’s Block 3637 (District 9) - Request for Conditional Use Authorization pursuant to Planning Code Sections 209.4, 303, and 317, proposing to demolish the existing two-story single-family home and construct a new four-story (40 foot tall) residential structure containing four dwelling units within a Residential Transit Oriented - Mission (RTO-M) Zoning District, Calle 24 Special Use District, and 40-X Height and Bulk District. This action constitutes the Approval Action for the project for the purposes of CEQA, pursuant to San Francisco Administrative Code Section 31.04(h). Preliminary Recommendation: Approve with Conditions

Rec Park (Thursday, May 17, 10AM)


Discussion Only


· SAN FRANCISCO ZOO - Presentation and discussion only to update the Commission on operational and management issues at the San Francisco Zoo.


· NEW BUSINESS/AGENDA SETTING

· Lincoln Park Golf Course


· Golden Gate Park Stables


· Community Gardens Policy


· South End Rowing Club


· Dolphin Club


· Golden Gate Yacht Club


· India Basin


· Commemorative Bench Program


· Esprit Park


· Golden Gate Park Tennis Fees

Action Items

· LET'SPLAYSF! - APPROVAL OF DONOR RECOGNITION PLAN - Discussion and possible action to approve a donor recognition plan for the Let’sPlaySF! Initiative.


· MCLAREN PARK TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS -VISITACION AVENUE CORRIDOR - Discussion and possible action to (1) adopt a resolution approving an application for an Urban Greening Grant from the California Natural Resources Agency in the amount of $339,625 for the Visitacion Avenue Corridor Trail Project; (2) recommend that the Board of Supervisors authorize the Recreation and Park Department to Accept and Expend the Grant; and (3) authorize the General Manager to enter into an agreement with the State to administer the Grant funds.


· ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT – BUENA VISTA REFORESTATION PROJECT - Discussion and possible action to (1) adopt a resolution approving an application for an Urban Greening Grant from the California Natural Resources Agency in the amount of $280,538 for the Buena Vista Reforestation Project; (2) recommend that the Board of Supervisors authorize the Recreation & Park Department to Accept and Expend the Grant; (3) authorize the General Manager to enter into an agreement with the State to administer the Grant funds; and (4) direct staff to move forward with the design and environmental review for the project.


· GOLF FEES- RESTRUCTURE AND ESTABLISH - Discussion and possible action to recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve an ordinance that would restructure fees for golf courses to: (1) preserve all fees for resident cardholders and City-sponsored tournaments and allow the Department to set all other fees by dynamic pricing based on demand, course conditions and comparable rates; (2) create a $2 per 9 hole fee (except for junior players) for Harding, Fleming, Sharp Park, Lincoln and Golden Gate Courses that will be placed in a maintenance fund for course improvements for the particular course; (3) update the advanced booking fee based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and authorize automatic CPI increases going forward for all golf course fees; and (4) make other related changes.


· ACCEPTANCE OF GRANTS - Discussion and possible action to accept and expend a cash grant of $50,000 from ANTREA Investments and Trading, LLC to support McLaren Park Trail Improvements, Visitacion Avenue Corridor.


· GENE FRIEND RECREATION CENTER – EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS - Discussion and possible action to approve the expenditure of approximately $95,000 for new kitchen appliances and new recreational program materials for the Gene Friend Recreation Center at SoMa pursuant to Ordinance No. 90-17. 

· POTRERO HILL RECREATION CENTER – AWARD OF CONTRACT - Discussion and possible action to award a construction contract for Potrero Hill Recreation Center (Contract No. 3271V, ID No. 1000008752) to Azul Works Inc. at $3,599,000 for base bid only. 

· CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Anticipated litigation as defendant Plaintiff to release claims in exchange for tree replacement and City payment of up to $325,000. (Closed Session)

Miscellaneous

· Mayor's Disability Council (Friday, May 18, 1PM) 


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

Subject: FW: Reintroduction of Mayor"s Process Improvements Ordinance
Date: Monday, May 14, 2018 2:12:50 PM

FYI

Jonas P. lonin,

Director of Commission Affairs

Planning Department;City & County of San Francisco
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415-558-6309]Fax: 415-558-6409

jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
www.sfplanning.org

From: Bintliff, Jacob (CPC)

Sent: Monday, May 14, 2018 11:40 AM

To: lonin, Jonas (CPC)

Cc: Conner, Kate (CPC); Sider, Dan (CPC); Rahaim, John (CPC)
Subject: Reintroduction of Mayor's Process Improvements Ordinance

HiJonas,

We’d like to make both the HPC and CPC Commissioners aware of some minor changes to the
Mayor’s Process Improvements Ordinance that both Commissions are scheduled to hear this week.

The Mayor will be reintroducing the legislation at the Board of Supervisors hearing this Tuesday, so
the ordinance will be updated from the version provided to Commissioners in their hearing packets
last week. Planning will publish a memorandum discussing these minor changes late Tuesday or
Wednesday morning, as soon as the Ordinance has been reintroduced. The changes are substantive,
but are relatively minor and achieve the same effect as the version discussed in the Commission
packets provided last week. The staff recommendation will remain a recommendation for approval.

I am happy to chat with Commissioners with any questions about this, and look forward to getting
the brief memo to them as soon as we can.

Thank you!

Jacob

Jacob Bintliff, MCP
Senior Planner

San Francisco Planning Department
1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9170 | www.sfplanning.org
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

Subject: FW: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES STRATEGIC PLAN TO ADD 250 SWORN
PERSONNEL TO THE SAN FRANCISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT

Date: Tuesday, May 15, 2018 11:24:21 AM

Attachments: 5.15.18 Public Safety Investments.pdf

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

Sent: Tuesday, May 15, 2018 11:07 AM

To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Subject: *** PRESS RELEASE *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES STRATEGIC PLAN TO ADD 250
SWORN PERSONNEL TO THE SAN FRANCISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, May 15, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** PRESS RELEASE ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ANNOUNCES STRATEGIC PLAN
TO ADD 250 SWORN PERSONNEL TO THE

SAN FRANCISCO POLICE DEPARTMENT

Mayor’ s two-year budget proposal features $34.2 million in additional public safety
investments, including funding support for hiring plan, new equipment, vehicles and ongoing
police reforms

San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today announced $34.2 million in new public
safety investments, including a strategic plan to add 250 more sworn personnel to the police
department over the next four years and additional funding for new vehicles, equipment and
reform efforts.

As part of Mayor Farrell’s hiring plan, 130 new officers will enter the police academy in the
next fiscal year, establishing the foundation of afour-year strategic hiring plan that will result
in 250 new members.

“Public safety has always been my top priority as Mayor—I am following through on my
commitment to add additional officersto neighborhoods across San Francisco,” said Mayor
Farrell. “The men and women of the San Francisco Police Department are some of the finest
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

Mayor’s two-year budget proposal features $34.2 million in additional public safety investments,
including funding support for hiring plan, new equipment, vehicles and ongoing police reforms

San Francisco, CA— Mayor Mark Farrell today announced $34.2 million in new public safety
investments, including a strategic plan to add 250 more sworn personnel to the police department
over the next four years and additional funding for new vehicles, equipment and reform efforts.

As part of Mayor Farrell’s hiring plan, 130 new officers will enter the police academy in the next
fiscal year, establishing the foundation of a four-year strategic hiring plan that will result in 250
new members.

“Public safety has always been my top priority as Mayor—I am following through on my
commitment to add additional officers to neighborhoods across San Francisco,” said Mayor
Farrell. “The men and women of the San Francisco Police Department are some of the finest
officers in the country—we just need more of them. This budget proposal will provide our police
department with the resources they need to succeed while we work with our communities to
ensure a collaborative, cooperative approach to public safety.”

The budget also includes $7.5 million for 130 new police vehicles, $1.7 million for police reform
measures and community engagement initiatives and $3 million for Controlled Electrical
Devices, less-lethal safety options commonly referred to as Tasers.

The strategic hiring plan will provide increased opportunities for promotions at the San
Francisco Police Department (SFPD), including 20 sergeant and two lieutenant positions that
will be added to the command roster. The plan includes funding for additional civilian analytical
expertise and provides resources to shift highly trained civilians into some positions held by
sworn personnel, enabling the department to redeploy the sworn members.

The new hires will bolster existing public safety improvement efforts championed by Mayor
Farrell and Police Chief William Scott. Those enhancements include increasing the citywide foot
patrol plan, adding investigation teams at stations to allow for seven-day staffing, and expanding
the burglary and serial crime units.

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141





MARK E. FARRELL
MAYOR

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
SAN FRANCISCO

In addition, the new hires will support the Healthy Streets Operation Center, an interagency
response to homelessness, behavioral health issues and drug use incidents on city streets, along
with measures to provide coordinated care for frequent users of the City’s mental health services.

“This commitment from Mayor Farrell will enable and empower the hardworking men and
women of the San Francisco Police Department to better address the evolving public safety
needs of our City,” said Chief William Scott. “By providing for the additional deployment of 250
sworn members, funding for much-needed equipment and other crime reduction efforts, we can
continue to meet the challenges facing San Francisco and advance our mission of providing
safety with respect for all in our City.”

In addition to bolstering the size of the department, Mayor Farrell’s budget support efforts of the
SFPD’s ongoing police reforms. In 2016, the SFPD entered into a voluntary agreement with the
United States Department of Justice to carry out 272 reform measures, many related to use-of-
force operations. The SFPD is now collaborating with the California Department of Justice to
finish implementing all the reforms.

“For decades, the SFPD has been understaffed, leaving them without the ability to combat crime
and the related social issues due to the lack of personnel and the need for the current officers to
respond to calls for service,” said Police Commission President Thomas Mazzucco. “Strategic
and fair policing require highly trained officers with the necessary equipment to address the
issues impacting our city and making our streets safe for our residents and visitors.”

“Today’s announcement by Mayor Farrell is a positive commitment to public safety in San
Francisco,” said Supervisor Catherine Stefani. “For too long our Police Department has been
understaffed and underfunded. This commitment will provide more patrols on our streets, help
address the property crime epidemic and make our neighborhoods safer.”

“I applaud Mayor Farrell’s initiative to fully staff our police force,” said Supervisor Jeft Sheehy.
“When | came on the Board last year | recognized that we were understaffed and | was the only
member of the Budget Committee to ask for an increase. These additional officers will enable us
to turn the corner on property crime and make all of our residents safer.”

HitH
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officersin the country—we just need more of them. This budget proposal will provide our
police department with the resources they need to succeed while we work with our
communities to ensure a collaborative, cooperative approach to public safety.”

The budget also includes $7.5 million for 130 new police vehicles, $1.7 million for police
reform measures and community engagement initiatives and $3 million for Controlled
Electrical Devices, less-lethal safety options commonly referred to as Tasers.

The strategic hiring plan will provide increased opportunities for promotions at the San
Francisco Police Department (SFPD), including 20 sergeant and two lieutenant positions that
will be added to the command roster. The plan includes funding for additional civilian
analytical expertise and provides resources to shift highly trained civilians into some positions
held by sworn personnel, enabling the department to redeploy the sworn members.

The new hires will bolster existing public safety improvement efforts championed by Mayor
Farrell and Police Chief William Scott. Those enhancements include increasing the citywide
foot patrol plan, adding investigation teams at stations to alow for seven-day staffing, and
expanding the burglary and serial crime units.

In addition, the new hires will support the Healthy Streets Operation Center, an interagency
response to homelessness, behavioral health issues and drug use incidents on city streets,
along with measures to provide coordinated care for frequent users of the City’s mental health
services.

“This commitment from Mayor Farrell will enable and empower the hardworking men and
women of the San Francisco Police Department to better address the evolving public safety
needs of our City,” said Chief William Scott. “By providing for the additional deployment of
250 sworn members, funding for much-needed equipment and other crime reduction efforts,
we can continue to meet the challenges facing San Francisco and advance our mission of
providing safety with respect for all in our City.”

In addition to bolstering the size of the department, Mayor Farrell’ s budget support efforts of
the SFPD’ s ongoing police reforms. In 2016, the SFPD entered into a voluntary agreement
with the United States Department of Justice to carry out 272 reform measures, many related
to use-of-force operations. The SFPD is now collaborating with the California Department of
Justice to finish implementing all the reforms.

“For decades, the SFPD has been understaffed, leaving them without the ability to combat
crime and the related social issues due to the lack of personnel and the need for the current
officersto respond to calls for service,” said Police Commission President Thomas Mazzucco.
“Strategic and fair policing require highly trained officers with the necessary equipment to
address the issues impacting our city and making our streets safe for our residents and
visitors.”

“Today’ s announcement by Mayor Farrell is a positive commitment to public safety in San
Francisco,” said Supervisor Catherine Stefani. “For too long our Police Department has been
understaffed and underfunded. This commitment will provide more patrols on our streets, help
address the property crime epidemic and make our neighborhoods safer.”

“1 applaud Mayor Farrell’sinitiative to fully staff our police force,” said Supervisor Jeff



Sheehy. “When | came on the Board last year | recognized that we were understaffed and |
was the only member of the Budget Committee to ask for an increase. These additional
officers will enable us to turn the corner on property crime and make all of our residents
safer.”



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

Subject: FW: Supplemental memo to HPC - for immediate transmittal

Date: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 9:12:45 AM

Attachments: Supplemental Memorandum Reintroduction 5.16.18.pdf

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

Sent: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 9:08 AM

To: CTYPLN - COMMISSION SECRETARY

Cc: Conner, Kate (CPC); Sider, Dan (CPC)

Subject: Supplemental memo to HPC - for immediate transmittal

Hi Commission Affairs —

Could you please send the attached supplemental memo and attachments to Historic Preservation
Commissioner asap, as they will be hearing this item today, and also upload this to the website as a
correspondence for today’s hearing?

This is re: 2018-004633PCA.

| will have a separate memo to CPC later on this morning for their hearing tomorrow re: the same
case number.

Thank youl!

Jacob

Jacob Bintliff, MCP
Senior Planner

San Francisco Planning Department

1650 Mission Street, Suite 400 San Francisco, CA 94103
Direct: 415.575.9170 | www.sfplanning.org

San Francisco Property Information Map
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SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Supplemental Memorandum -
Planning Code Text Change i

San Francisco,

HEARING DATE: MAY 16, 2018 O 941032479
Reception:

Date: May 15, 2018 L
Project Name: Mayor’s Process Improvements Ordinance Fax:
Case Number: 2018-004633PCA [Board File No. 180423] 415.558.6409
Initiated by: Mayor Farrell / Introduced April 24, 2018; reintroduced Planning

May 15, 2018 Information:
Staff Contact: Jacob Bintliff, Senior Planner 415.558.6377

jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org, 415-575-9170
Reviewed by: Kate Conner, Principal Planner

kate.conner@sfgov.org, 415-575-6914

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND
On April 24, 2018 Mayor Farrell introduced an Ordinance [Board File No. 180423] that would

amend the Planning Code to streamline review of 100% affordable housing projects, eliminate
duplicative review processes for most large downtown projects in C-3 districts, consolidate and
modernize notification requirements and procedures, and provide for expedited review of

minor alterations to historical landmarks and in conservation districts.

This Historic Preservation Commission is scheduled to consider adoption of a resolution to
recommend approval, approval with modifications, or denial of the proposed Ordinance on
May 16, 2018 and a staff report recommending approval along with a draft resolution were
provided to the Commission and published on May 9, 2018.

On May 15, 2018 Mayor Farrell reintroduced the Ordinance under the same Board File number.
This memorandum is provided to inform the Commission and general public of the changes in
the proposed Ordinance, as reintroduced, in advance of the Commission’s consideration of the
Ordinance. Having considered the modifications to the Ordinance as reintroduced, the

Department maintains a recommendation for approval.
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MEMORANDUM: CASE NO. 2018-004633PCA
Reintroduction of Mayor’s Process Improvements Ordinance

MODIFICATIONS TO PROPOSED ORDINANCE

1.

The proposed new Section 333 regarding Public Notification Procedures is modified to
include accurate reference to applicable State law regarding newspaper notification and

mailed notification for certain types of public hearings.

The amendments to Section 1111.1 regarding Permits to Alter for minor alterations to
designated buildings in C-3 districts and/or Conservation Districts are modified to reflect
closer consistency with the City Charter. The intent and effect of the amendments remain as
described in the Executive Summary dated May 9. 2018, namely to provide for same-day

administrative approval of these minor scopes of work by Planning Department staff.

As reintroduced, the amendments to Section 1111.1 would remove the requirement for
issuance of a Minor Permit to Alter entirely for these minor scopes of work, meaning that it
would no longer be necessary for the Historic Preservation Commission to delegate its
authority to approve Minor Permits to Alter, as previously proposed. The Draft Resolution
making recommendations on the proposed Ordinance that was provided as an attachment
to the Executive Summary dated May 9, 2018 has been revised to reflect this change, and is

included as an attachment to this memorandum.

The various amendments related to notification procedures and requirements that are
contained in Section 4 of the proposed Ordinance would be subject to an operative date of
January 1, 2019. This modification was included at the recommendation of the Planning
Department and is intended to allow sufficient time for the Department to fully and

effectively implement the new procedures, should they be enacted.

The amendments regarding review procedures for affordable housing projects and large
residential projects downtown in Section 3 of the Ordinance, and those regarding
administrative approval of minor alterations to historic buildings and in Conversation
Districts in Section 5 of the Ordinance would become effective 30 days after enactment, per
standard practice.





MEMORANDUM: CASE NO. 2018-004633PCA
Reintroduction of Mayor’s Process Improvements Ordinance

GUIDANCE AND ADDITIONAL RECOMMENDATIONS

The modifications summarized above do not alter the intent or effect of the proposed Ordinance
as described in the Executive Summary dated May 9, 2018, and the Department maintains a
recommendation for approval of the Ordinance, based on the findings provided in the Draft

Resolution as previously provided.

As described above, the Draft Resolution making recommendations on the proposed Ordinance
that was provided as an attachment to the Executive Summary dated May 9, 2018 has been
revised to reflect the revised amendments to Section 1111.1 and to remove the language
delegating Historic Preservation Commission authority for the approval of Minor Permits to

Alter. The revised Draft Resolution is included as an attachment below.

Attachments:

Exhibit A: Revised Draft Historic Preservation Commission Resolution
Exhibit B: Legislative Digest for Proposed Ordinance, as reintroduced
Exhibit C: Proposed Ordinance [Board File No. 180423], as reintroduced





SAN FRANCISCO
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Historic Preservation Commission

Draft Resolution
HEARING DATE MAY 16, 2018

Project Name: Mayor’s Process Improvements Ordinance

Case Number: 2018-004633PCA, [Board File No. 180423]

Initiated by: Mayor Farrell / Introduced April 24, 2018
Staff Contact: Jacob Bintliff, Senior Planner

jacob.bintliff@sfgov.org , 415-575-9170
Reviewed by: Kate Conner, Principal Planner

kate.conner@sfgov.org, 415-575-6914

RESOLUTION APPROVING A PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PLANNING
CODE TO STREAMLINE AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT REVIEW BY ELIMINATING A
PLANNING COMMISSION DISCRETIONARY REVIEW HEARING FOR 100% AFFORDABLE
HOUSING PROJECTS UPON DELEGATION BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION; TO
PROVIDE FOR PLANNING DEPARTMENT REVIEW OF LARGE PROJECTS LOCATED IN
C-3 DISTRICTS AND FOR CERTAIN MINOR ALTERATIONS TO HISTORICAL LANDMARKS
AND IN CONSERVATION DISTRICTS; TO CONSOLIDATE, STANDARDIZE AND
STREAMLINE NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS AND PROCEDURES, INCLUDING
REQUIRED NEWSPAPER NOTICE, IN RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL, AND MIXED-USE
DISTRICTS; AND AFFIRMING THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT’S DETERMINATION UNDER
THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT, MAKING FINDINGS OF
CONSISTENCY WITH THE GENERAL PLAN AND THE EIGHT PRIORITY POLICIES OF
PLANNING CODE, SECTION 101.1, AND ADOPTING FINDINGS OF PUBLIC NECESSITY,
CONVENIENCE, AND WELFARE UNDER PLANNING CODE, SECTION 302.

WHEREAS, on April 24, 2018 Mayor Farrell introduced a proposed Ordinance under Board of
Supervisors (hereinafter “Board”) File Number 180423, which would amend Sections 206.4, 309, and 315,
add new Section 315.1, and delete Section 328 of the Planning Code to streamline review of 100%
affordable housing projects and large downtown projects in C-3 districts; amend Sections 202.5, 302,
303.1, 305.1, 306.3, 306.7, 306.8, 306.9, 311, 317, 329, 330.7, 1006.3, and 1111.4, and delete Section 306.10 and
312, and add new Section 333 of the Planning Code to consolidate and modernize notification
requirements and procedures; and amend Sections 1005, 1111.1, and 1111.2 of the Planning Code to

streamline review of minor alterations to historical landmarks and in conservation districts; and

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2018 Mayor Farrell re-introduced the proposed Ordinance under the same Board
of Supervisors (hereinafter “Board”) File Number 180423, which would amend Sections 206.4, 309, and
315, add new Section 315.1, and delete Section 328 of the Planning Code to streamline review of 100%
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

WHEREAS, the Historic Preservation Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) conducted a duly noticed
public hearing at a regularly scheduled meeting to consider the proposed Ordinance on May 16, 2018;

and

WHEREAS, the proposed Ordinance is not defined as a project under California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) Guidelines Sections 15378 and 15060(c)(2) because it does not result in a physical change in

the environment; and

WHEREAS, the Historic Preservation Commission has heard and considered the testimony presented to
it at the public hearing and has further considered written materials and oral testimony presented on

behalf of Department staff and other interested parties; and

WHEREAS, all pertinent documents may be found in the files of the Department, as the custodian of

records, at 1650 Mission Street, Suite 400, San Francisco; and

WHEREAS, the Historic Preservation Commission has reviewed the proposed Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Historic Preservation Commission finds from the facts presented that the public

necessity, convenience, and general welfare require the proposed amendment; and

MOVED, that the Historic Preservation Commission hereby approves the proposed Ordinance.

FINDINGS

Having reviewed the materials identified in the preamble above, and having heard all testimony and

arguments, this Commission finds, concludes, and determines as follows:

1. The proposed amendments to Section 315 of the Planning Code would enhance the Department’s
ability to provide administrative approval for high-priority 100% affordable housing projects by
expanding the types of Planning Code exceptions that could be provided for these projects,
regardless of location or lot size. The Ordinance would also reduce delays related to appeals,
provided the Planning Commission delegates authority for Discretionary Review for these
projects to the Planning Department, as the Board of Appeals would serve as the single appeal

body for such projects.
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2. The proposed amendments to delete Section 328 and establish a new Section 315.1 of the
Planning Code would streamline the review process for 100% Affordable Housing Bonus project,
and strike an appropriate balance between the need for expedited review of affordable housing
projects and the sensitivity to these larger-than-permitted Bonus Projects by providing an
administrative approval path for eligible projects that limits Planning Code exceptions to those
specifically created for such bonus projects in Section 206.4. The Ordinance would also reduce
delays related to appeals, provided the Planning Commission delegates authority for
Discretionary Review for these projects to the Planning Department, as the Board of Appeals

would serve as the single appeal body for such projects.

3. The proposed amendments to Section 309 of the Planning Code would remove an additional
layer of review for most large residential projects in the downtown C-3 districts by eliminating
the need for a Variance in most cases. The Ordinance would reduce the time and procedural
steps needed for Planning Department staff to complete project review, without leading to a
significant change in the planning review outcome for such projects, as these Variances from
dwelling unit exposure and useable open space requirements are routinely granted to

accommodate the construction of high-rise residential developments in C-3 districts.

4. The proposed amendments to consolidate Section 311 and 312 into a single Section 311, establish
a new Section 333, and delete or amend, as appropriate, various other Planning Code sections to
reference the same, would establish uniform and consistent notification requirements for all
Building Permit Applications and public hearings that require notification. This consolidation
will save staff time, reduce the likelihood of errors in implementing notification requirements,

and reduce delays in project review and approval.

5. The proposed amendments to establish a new Section 333 would significantly expand public
access to public notification, while also reducing waste and cost. Specifically, the proposed
Ordinance would expand mailed notice requirements to include tenants within the notification
area in all cases, apply multilingual translation service requirements to all forms of public
notification, and place notification materials and plan sets online for the first time. The new
online posting requirement, in particular, will make the required notification materials accessible
to the general public for the entire notification period, and serve the purpose and intent of the
current newspaper notification requirement to greater effect and at significantly lower cost. The
format and content requirements of the new Section 333 would reduce wasted paper and cost

that result from current notification requirements.

6. The proposed amendments to Section 311 to allow for the limited rear yard addition permitted
under Section 136(c)(25) to be approved at the Planning Information Counter, which would

significantly reduce the permit volume under review by planners. The Department estimates that
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allowing these projects alone to be approved “over the counter” would save roughly two full

time equivalents (FTE) of staff time that could be spent on review of priority housing projects.

7. The proposed amendments to Section 1005 and 1111 to allow for permits for minor and routine
scopes of work that currently require a Certificate of Appropriateness or Minor Permit to Alter
under Section 1005 and 1111 of the Planning Code to be approved administratively by Planning
Department staff at the Planning Information Center counter, provided the projects confirm to
the relevant guidelines and standards in Planning Code sections 1006.6 and 1111.6 is estimated to
reduce the permit review case load for Preservation planners by roughly one-third on an annual
basis, allowing staff to focus more time on priority housing projects and other Preservation
planning work. In addition, the project approval timeframe for these minor and routine scopes of

work would be reduced from three to four months on average to a same-day approval.

8. General Plan Compliance. The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the following Objectives
and Policies of the General Plan:

HOUSING ELEMENT

OBJECTIVE 8
BUILD PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SECTOR CAPACITY TO SUPPORT, FACILITATE, PROVIDE,
AND MAINTAIN AFFORDABLE HOUSING

Policy 71

Planning staff shall support affordable housing projects in the development review process,
including allowing sponsors of permanently affordable housing to take full advantage of
allowable densities provided their projects are consistent with neighborhood character.

The proposed Ordinance would allow Planning staff to support affordable housing projects, including those
seeking additional density through the 100% Affordable Housing Bonus Program, through new and
enhanced administrative review procedures, provided that projects are in conformity with all applicable
design quidelines and standards.

OBJECTIVE 10
ENSURE A STREAMLINED, YET THOROUGH AND TRANSPARENT DECISION-MAKING
PROCESS

The proposed Ordinance would allow the Planning Department to implement various streamlining
strategies to better implement the Department’s planning and review function, especially for new housing
and affordable housing developments, while dramatically expanding access to public information regarding
projects under review by the Planning Department and public hearings by consolidating and modernizing
public notification requirements and procedures.
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PLANNING DEPARTMENT





Resolution XXXXXX CASE NO. 2018-004633PCA
May 16, 2018 Mayor’s Process Improvements Ordinance

9. Planning Code Section 101 Findings. The proposed amendments to the Planning Code are

consistent with the eight Priority Policies set forth in Section 101.1(b) of the Planning Code in
that:

SAN FRANCISCO

PLANNING DEPARTMENT

That existing neighborhood-serving retail uses be preserved and enhanced and future
opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of such businesses enhanced;

The proposed Ordinance would not have a negative effect on neighborhood serving retail uses and will
not have a negative effect on opportunities for resident employment in and ownership of neighborhood-
serving retail. The proposed Ordinance will likely support neighborhood-serving retail establishments
when those establishments are located in an historic landmark building or in a conservation district by
allowing such business to seek administrative same-day approval of minor alterations to install
business signage or automatic door operators. The proposed Ordinance would support neighborhood-
serving retail generally by streamlining and modernizing the notification requirements applicable to
commercial establishments in Section 312/new Section 311 by reducing the risk of delays due to minor
errors in implementing these requirements.

That existing housing and neighborhood character be conserved and protected in order to
preserve the cultural and economic diversity of our neighborhoods;

The proposed Ordinance would not have a negative effect on existing housing or neighborhood
character. The proposed amendments to the review process for affordable housing projects and 100%
Affordable Housing Bonus projects would maintain all existing requirements related to design
standards for such projects, as applicable.

That the City’s supply of affordable housing be preserved and enhanced;

The proposed Ordinance would support the City’s ability to increase the supply of affordable housing,
by providing new streamlined administrative approval procedures specifically for 100% affordable
housing developments.

That commuter traffic not impede MUNI transit service or overburden our streets or
neighborhood parking;

The proposed Ordinance would not result in commuter traffic impeding MUNI transit service or
overburdening the streets or neighborhood parking.

That a diverse economic base be maintained by protecting our industrial and service sectors
from displacement due to commercial office development, and that future opportunities for
resident employment and ownership in these sectors be enhanced;

The proposed Ordinance would not cause displacement of the industrial or service sectors due to office
development, and future opportunities for resident employment or ownership in these sectors would

not be impaired.

That the City achieve the greatest possible preparedness to protect against injury and loss of life in an
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earthquake;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on City’s preparedness against injury and
loss of life in an earthquake.

7. That the landmarks and historic buildings be preserved;
The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on the City’s Landmarks and historic
buildings. The proposed Ordinance would allow for certain minor alterations to City landmarks and
historic structures, as specified, to be approved administratively provided these alterations conform to

applicable guidelines of the Planning Code.

8. That our parks and open space and their access to sunlight and vistas be protected from
development;

The proposed Ordinance would not have an adverse effect on the City’s parks and open space and their
access to sunlight and vistas.

10. Planning Code Section 302 Findings. The Commission finds from the facts presented that the
public necessity, convenience and general welfare require the proposed amendments to the

Planning Code as set forth in Section 302.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Commission hereby APPROVES the proposed
Ordinance as described in this Resolution.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Commission at its meeting on May 16,
2018

Jonas P. Ionin
Commission Secretary

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ADOPTED:

SAN FRANCISCO 6
PLANNING DEPARTMENT





FILE NO. 180423

LEGISLATIVE DIGEST

[Planning Code —Review for Downtown and Affordable Housing Projects; Notification
Requirements; Review of Alterations to Historical Landmarks and in Conservation Districts.]

Ordinance amending the Planning Code to streamline affordable housing project
review by eliminating a Planning Commission Discretionary Review hearing for 100%
affordable housing projects upon delegation by the Planning Commission; to provide
for Planning Department review of large projects located in C-3 Districts and for certain
minor alterations to Historical Landmarks and in Conservation Districts; to consolidate,
standardize and streamline notification requirements and procedures, including
required newspaper notice, in Residential, Commercial, and Mixed-Use Districts; and
affirming the Planning Department’s determination under the California Environmental
Quality Act, making findings of consistency with the General Plan and the eight priority
policies of Planning Code, Section 101.1, and adopting findings of public necessity,
convenience, and welfare under Planning Code, Section 302.

Existing Law

Affordable Housing Projects

Under Planning Code Section 315, affordable housing projects (without a density bonus) are
considered principally permitted uses and could seek certain exceptions to Planning Code
requirements. Affordable housing projects seeking approval under Section 315 may use
exceptions that are permitted based on the size and location of the development lot. The
Code does not allow an affordable housing project to seek exceptions from other project
authorization types in other zoning districts, or those which apply to other lot types. The
Planning Department is authorized to review and approve an affordable housing project, but
an individual may request discretionary review of an affordable housing project before the
Planning Commission.

100% Affordable Housing Bonus Projects (“Bonus Projects”) are not subject to density limits
set by ratio, but are subject only to the constraints on density based on height, bulk, setbacks
and other relevant Planning Code provisions. These Bonus Projects are eligible for certain
modifications to the Planning Code related to parking, open space, rear yard, dwelling unit
exposure, and loading. Bonus Projects are approved through an authorization process,
Planning Code Section 328, which provides for a Planning Commission hearing and an
appeal to the Board of Supervisors, but Bonus Projects are not required to seek conditional
use authorization. The Planning Commission does not hear separate discretionary review
requests for Bonus Projects.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 1
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Noticing Requirements

The Planning Code contains numerous notice provisions for several different kinds of
approvals. Notification requirements for permit review and entitlement hearings vary
throughout the Code. There are over 30 noticing processes and criteria based on the location
and type of project proposed.

Planning Code Section 311 provides residential permit review procedures for RH, RM, and
RTO districts, and Section 312 provides permit review procedures for all NC and Eastern
Neighborhoods Mixed Use Districts and for Cannabis Retail and Medical Cannabis
Dispensary Uses in all non-residential zoning districts.

Historic buildings

Planning Code Section 1005 identifies four minor scopes of work that are exempt from Article
10 review. Section 1111.1 includes two scopes of work that are considered Minor Alterations
under Article 11.

Amendments to Current Law

The legislation provides new procedures in 3 different areas, as follows.

1. Affordable Housing Projects

The proposed amendments add 2 new exceptions to Section 309 that may be requested —
exposure requirements set forth in Planning Code Section 140 and usable open space
requirements of Section 135. Under proposed Section 315, affordable housing projects may
utilize the exceptions of Section 309, as well as other Code sections, regardless of the
location of the housing project and lot size requirements. Conditional use authorization for
affordable housing projects is not required. Section 315 allows the Planning Department to
administratively review and approve an affordable housing project and no discretionary review
hearing would occur before the Planning Commission as long as the Planning Commission
delegates this review to the Planning Department. The Planning Department approval would
be conducted as part of a related building permit application, and any appeal of the Planning
Department’s determination would be made through the associated building permit, which
appeal would be to the Board of Appeals.

For Bonus Projects, Planning Code Section 328 would be deleted and the requirements would
be set forth in new Planning Code Section 315.1. Bonus Projects would continue to be
eligible to use the same exceptions as previously provided in Planning Code Section 328.

The Planning Director rather than the Planning Commission would review Bonus Projects and
must make certain findings, and no hearing before the Planning Commission would be
required. No discretionary review hearing would occur before the Planning Commission as
long as the Planning Commission delegates this review to the Planning Department. The
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Planning Department’s approval would be conducted as part of a related building permit
application, and any appeal of the Planning Department’s determination would be through the
associated building permit, which appeal would be to the Board of Appeals.

2. General Noticing Requirements

New Planning Code Section 333 sets forth procedures for all public notifications required by
the Planning Code, for hearings before the Planning Commission, Historic Preservation
Commission and the Zoning Administrator for which public notice is required, and for certain
building permit applications. It would provide a Notification Period no fewer than 20 days prior
to the date of a hearing, or prior to the date of Planning Department approval of certain
building permit applications.

Section 333 sets forth requirements for (1) the contents of notices, (2) posted notices on the
site, (3) mailed notice to owners and, when practicable, occupants located within no less than
150 feet of a proposed project application, or as may otherwise be required by State law, as
well as to neighborhood organizations and individuals who have made written requests for
notice, (4) online notice, and (5) newspaper notice when required by State law. There are
also notice requirements for legislative actions.

The Zoning Administrator may waive duplicate notice for applications that are the subject of
an otherwise duly noticed public hearing before the Planning Commission or Zoning
Administrator, provided that the nature of work for which the application is required is both
substantially included in the hearing notice and was the subject of the hearing. The Zoning
Administrator may determine the means of delivering all forms of required public notice,
provided that the requirements of Section 333 are satisfied.

Section 312 is proposed to be deleted in its entirety, and Section 311 would provide notice
and review procedures for building permit applications in Residential, NC, NCT, and Eastern
Neighborhoods Districts for a change of use; establishment of a Micro Wireless
Telecommunications Services Facility and a Formula Retail Use; demolition, new
construction, or alteration of buildings; and the removal of an authorized or unauthorized
residential unit.

3. Historic Buildings

Section 1005 would include five additional scopes of work that are not subject to Article 10
review. Section 1111.1 would include three scopes of work that would not require a Permit to
Alter under Article 11, including certain signs that comply with the provisions of Section
1111.6. Section 1111.2 also reflects the updated review processes for signs.
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Operative Dates.

The Legislation also includes 2 operative dates as follows:

The Amendments contained in Sections 3 and 5 of the ordinance, including revisions to
Planning Code Sections 206.4, 309, 315, 1005, 1111.1, and 1111.2; the addition of new
Planning Code Section 315.1; and deletion of Planning Code Section 328, would become
operative on the Effective Date. The Amendments contained in Section 4 of the ordinance,
including amendments to Planning Code Sections 202.5, 302, 303, 303.1, 305.1, 306.3,
306.7, 306.8, 306.9, 311, 317, 329, 330.7, 1006.3, and 1111.4, deletions of Planning Code
Sections 306.10 and 312, and addition of new Planning Code Section 333, would become
operative on January 1, 2019.

n:\legana\as201811800565\01275350.docx

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 4





© 00 N o o -~ w N P

N NN N NN B B PR R R R R R R
O N W N P O © © N o O M W N B O

FILE NO. 180423 ORDINANCE NO.

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

NOTE: Unchanged Code text and uncodified text are in plain Arial font.
Additions to Codes are in single-underline italics Times New Roman font.
Deletions to Codes are in .
Board amendment additions are in double-underlined Arial font.
Board amendment deletions are in strikethrough-Arial-font.
Asterisks (* * * *)indicate the omission of unchanged Code
subsections or parts of tables.

Be it ordained by the People of the City and County of San Francisco:

Section 1. General Findings.
(a) The Planning Department has determined that the actions contemplated in this
ordinance comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resources

Code Sections 21000 et seq.). Said determination is on file with the Clerk of the Board of

Mayor Farrell
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Supervisors in File No. __ and is incorporated herein by reference. The Board affirms this
determination.

(b) On , the Planning Commission, in Resolution No. | adopted
findings that the actions contemplated in this ordinance are consistent, on balance, with the
City’s General Plan and eight priority policies of Planning Code Section 101.1. The Board
adopts these findings as its own. A copy of said Resolution is on file with the Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors in File No. __, and is incorporated herein by reference.

(c) Pursuant to Planning Code Section 302, this Board finds that this Planning Code
Amendment will serve the public necessity, convenience, and welfare for the reasons set forth
in Planning Commission Resolution No. _ and the Board incorporates such reasons
herein by reference. A copy of said Resolution is on file with the Board of Supervisors in File
No.

Section 2. Findings about City Approval and Notification Processes.

(&) The housing crisis in San Francisco is acute with more than 140,000 jobs added
since the Great Recession and approximately 27,000 housing units approved. The median
single-family home price in San Francisco has reached an all-time high of $1.6 million in the
first quarter of 2018, affordable to only 12 percent of San Francisco households. The average
rent for a one bedroom apartment in San Francisco in the same quarter is $3,281, affordable
to less than one-third of San Francisco households.

(b) Mayor Edwin M. Lee’s Executive Directive 17-02 -- “Keeping up the Pace of
Housing Production” -- called on City departments to reduce project approval timelines by half
and come up with process improvement plans and measures to allocate staff and resources

to meet these goals.

Mayor Farrell
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(c) The Planning Department Process Improvements Plan on December 1. 2017
recommended a number of internal procedure changes and Planning Code amendments to
achieve the goals of Executive Directive 17-02.

(d) Ordinance No. 7-16, “Affordable Housing Review Process,” established Section
315, Affordable Housing Project Authorization, which stipulated that an Affordable Housing
Project would be a principally permitted use and would not require conditional use
authorization or a Planning Commission hearing.

(e) Ordinance No. 46-96 enacted Section 311 of the Planning Code to establish
procedures for reviewing building permit applications for lots in “R” districts in order to
determine compatibility of the proposal with the neighborhood and for providing notice to
property owners and residents neighboring the site of the proposed project.

(f) Ordinance No. 46-96 and 279-00 established the importance of notifying property
owners as well as tenants of proposed projects within a 150-foot radius of their home or
property.

(9) Ordinance No. 27-15 established Language Access Requirements for Departments
to serve the more than 10,000 Limited English Persons residing in San Francisco encouraging
multilingual translation services for public notifications to be as widely available as possible.

(h) Newspaper circulation is down and digital media consumption is up. Even among
paying subscribers of newspapers, minority populations are more likely to utilize digital media
over print media.The official newspaper of the City and County of San Francisco has print
delivery of 561,004 on Sundays and 841,924 unique page views of their website.

(i) The Planning Department was responsible for reviewing over 11,000 building permit

applications and development applications in 2017.

Mayor Farrell
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() Current notification procedures required the production and mailing of over 600,000
pieces of paper, or 3 tons, in 2017 alone, at a cost of over $250,000 with an additional
$70,000 spent annually on newspaper advertisements.

(k) The Planning Code currently sets forth more than 30 unique combinations of
notification requirements. These varied notification requirements and redundant procedures
are confusing, and amount to an inefficient use of staff time and public resources that would
be better spent on reviewing permits and projects to add housing stock to San Francisco’s

housing supply and provide more meaningful public notification.

Section 3. The Planning Code is hereby amended by revising Sections 206.4, 309, and

315; adding new Section 315.1; and deleting Section 328, to read as follows:

SEC. 206.4. THE 100 PERCENT AFFORDABLE HOUSING BONUS PROGRAM.

* ok x %

(c) Development Bonuses. A 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Project shall, at
the project sponsor’s request, receive any or all of the following:

(1) Priority Processing. 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Projects shall
receive Priority Processing.

(2) Form Based Density. Notwithstanding any zoning designation to the
contrary, density of the 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Project shall not be limited by
lot area but rather by the applicable requirements and limitations set forth elsewhere in this
Code. Such requirements and limitations include, but are not limited to, height, including any
additional height allowed by subsection (c) herein, Bulk, Setbacks, Open Space, Exposure
and unit mix as well as applicable design guidelines, elements and area plans of the General

Plan and design review, including consistency with the Affordable Housing Bonus Program

Mayor Farrell
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Design Guidelines, referenced in Section 328 315.1, as determined by the Planning
Department.

(3) Height. 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Projects shall be allowed
up to 30 additional feet, not including allowed exceptions per Section 260(b), above the
property’s height district limit in order to provide three additional stories of residential use. This
additional height may only be used to provide up to three additional 10-foot stories to the
project, or one additional story of not more than 10 feet in height.

(4) Ground Floor Ceiling Height. In addition to the permitted height allowed
under subsection (c)(3), 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Projects with active ground
floors as defined in Section 145.1(b)(2) shall receive one additional foot of height, up to a
maximum of an additional five feet at the ground floor, exclusively to provide a minimum 14-
foot (floor to ceiling) ground floor ceiling height.

(5) Zoning Modifications. 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Projects
may select any or all of the following zoning modifications:

(A) Rear Yard: The required rear yard per Section 134 or any applicable
special use district may be reduced to no less than 20% of the lot depth or 15 feet, whichever
is greater. Corner properties may provide 20% of the lot area at the interior corner of the
property to meet the minimum rear yard requirement, provided that each horizontal dimension
of the open area is a minimum of 15 feet; and that the open area is wholly or partially
contiguous to the existing midblock open space, if any, formed by the rear yards of adjacent
properties.

(B) Dwelling Unit Exposure: The dwelling unit exposure requirements
of Section 140(a)(2) may be satisfied through qualifying windows facing an unobstructed open
area that is no less than 15 feet in every horizontal dimension, and such open area is not

required to expand in every horizontal dimension at each subsequent floor.

Mayor Farrell
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(C) Off Street Loading: No off-street loading spaces under Section
152.

(D) Automobile Parking: Up to a 100% reduction in the minimum off-
street residential and commercial automobile parking requirement under Article 1.5 of this
Code.

(E) Open Space: Up to a 10% reduction in common open space
requirements if required by Section 135, but no less than 36 square feet of open space per
unit.

(F) Inner Courts as Open Space: In order for an inner court to qualify
as useable common open space, Section 135(g)(2) requires it to be at least 20 feet in every
horizontal dimension, and for the height of the walls and projections above the court on at
least three sides (or 75% of the perimeter, whichever is greater) to be no higher than one foot
for each foot that such point is horizontally distant from the opposite side of the clear space in
the court. 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Projects may instead provide an inner court
that is at least 25 feet in every horizontal dimension, with no restriction on the heights of
adjacent walls. All area within such an inner court shall qualify as common open space under
Section 135.

(d) Implementation.
(1) Application. The following procedures shall govern the processing of a
request for a project to qualify under the 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Program.

(A) An application to participate in the 100 Percent Affordable Housing
Bonus Program shall be submitted with the first application for approval of a Housing Project
and processed concurrently with all other applications required for the Housing Project. The
application shall be submitted on a form prescribed by the City and shall include at least the

following information:
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(i) A full plan set including a site plan, elevations, sections and
floor plans, showing the total number of units, unit sizes and planned affordability levels and
any applicable funding sources;

(i) The requested development bonuses from those listed in
subsection (c);

(iif)  Unit size and distribution of multi-bedroom units:

(iv) Documentation that the applicant has provided written
notification to all existing commercial tenants that the applicant intends to develop the
property pursuant to this section 206.4. Any affected commercial tenants shall be given
priority processing similar to the Department’s Community Business Priority Processing
Program, as adopted by the Planning Commission on February 12, 2015 under Resolution
Number 19323 to support relocation of such business in concert with access to relevant local
business support programs. In no case may an applicant receive a site permit or any
demolition permit prior to 18 months from the date of written notification required by this
subsection 206.4(d)(1)(B); and

(v) Documentation that the applicant shall comply with any
applicable provisions of the State Relocation Law or Federal Uniform Relocation Act when a
parcel includes existing commercial tenants.

(2) Conditions. Entitlements of 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Projects

approved under this Section shall be valid for 10 years from the date of Planning Cemmission-or
Planning-Department approval.

Mayor Farrell
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(34) Controls. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Code, no conditional
use authorization shall be required for a 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Project,

unless such conditional use requirement was adopted by the voters.

SEC. 309. PERMIT REVIEW IN C-3 DISTRICTS.

The provisions and procedures set forth in this Section shall govern the review of
project authorization and building and site permit applications for (1) the construction or
substantial alteration of structures in C-3 Districts, (2) the granting of exceptions to certain
requirements of this Code where the provisions of this Section are invoked, and (3) the
approval of open space and streetscape requirements of the Planning Code. When any action
authorized by this Section is taken, any determination with respect to the proposed project
required or authorized pursuant to CEQA may also be considered. This Section shall not
require additional review in connection with a site or building permit application if review
hereunder was completed with respect to the same proposed structure or alteration in
connection with a project authorization application pursuant to Section 322.

(a) Exceptions. Exceptions to the following provisions of this Code may be granted
as provided in the code sections referred to below:

(1) Exceptions to the setback, streetwall, tower separation, and rear yard
requirements as permitted in Sections 132.1 and 134(d);

(2) Exceptions to the ground-level wind current requirements as permitted in
Section 148;

(3) Exceptions to the sunlight to public sidewalk requirement as permitted in
Section 146;

(4) Exceptions to the limitation on curb cuts for parking access as permitted in

Section 155(r);

Mayor Farrell
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(5) Exceptions to the limitations on above-grade residential accessory parking
as permitted in Section 155(s);

(6) Exceptions to the freight loading and service vehicle space requirements as
permitted in Section 161(f);

(7) Exceptions to the off-street tour bus loading space requirements as
permitted in Section 162;

(8) Exceptions to the use requirements in the C-3-O (SD) Commercial Special
Use Subdistrict in Section 248;

(9) Exceptions to the height limits for buildings taller than 550 feet in height in
the S-2 Bulk District for allowance of non-occupied architectural, screening, and rooftop
elements that meet the criteria of Section 260(b)(1)(M);

(10) Exceptions to the volumetric limitations for roof enclosures and screens as
prescribed in Section 260(b)(1)(F). For existing buildings, exceptions to the volumetric
limitations for roof enclosures and screens shall be granted only if all rooftop equipment that is
unused or permanently out of operation is removed from the building;

(11) Exceptions to the height limits for vertical extensions as permitted in
Section 260(b)(1)(G) and for upper tower extensions as permitted in Section 263.9;

(12) Exceptions to the height limits in the 80-130F and 80-130X Height and
Bulk Districts as permitted in Section 263.8 and in the 200-400S Height and Bulk District as
permitted in Section 263.10;

(13) Exceptions to the bulk requirements as permitted in Sections 270 and 272.

(14) Exceptions to the exposure requirements as permitted in Section 140.

(15) Exceptions to the usable open space requirements as permitted in Section 135.

* * * *
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(d) Notice of Proposed Approval for Projects that do not require Public Hearing. If an

application does not require a Planning Commission hearing pursuant to Subsection 309(e)(1) below,

the application or building or site permit may be reviewed and approved administratively. At the

determination of the Planning Director, applications for especially significant scopes of work may be

subject to the notification requirements of Section 333 of this Code. If a request for Planning

Commission review is made pursuant to subsection 309(f), the application will be subject to the

notification and hearing procedures of this Section. If no request for Commission review is made, the

Zoning Administrator may approve the project administratively. H-aftera-review-ofthe- Application-or

(e) Hearing and Determination of Applications for Exceptions.

(1) Hearing. The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on an a

Section 309 application if: fer-an-exception-as-provided-in-Subsection{(a)-

(A) The project would result in a net addition of more than 50,000 square feet of

gross floor area of space, or

(B) The project includes the construction of a new building greater than 75 feet

in height (excluding any exceptions permitted per Section 260(b)), or includes a vertical addition to an

Mayor Farrell
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existing building with a height of 75 feet or less resulting in a total building height greater than 75 feet;

or

(C) The project would require an exception as provided in Subsection 309(a).

(2) Notice of Hearing. Notice of such hearing shall be conducted pursuant to

the provisions of Section 333 of this Code. maHed-netless-than-10-days-priorto-the-date-of the-hearing

(3) Decision and Appeal. The Planning Commission may, after public hearing and

after making appropriate findings, approve, disapprove or approve subject to conditions, the
application for an exception. The decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to
the Board of Appeals by any person aggrieved within 15 days after the date of the decision by
filing a written notice of appeal with that Body, setting forth wherein it is alleged that there was
an error in the interpretation of the provisions of this Code or abuse of discretion on the part of
the Planning Commission.

(4) Decision on Appeal. Upon the hearing of an appeal, the Board of Appeals may;

approve, disapprove or modify the decision appealed from. If the determination of the Board

differs from that of the Commission it shall, in a written decision, specify the error in
interpretation or abuse of discretion on the part of the Commission and shall specify in the

findings, as part of the written decision, the facts relied upon in arriving at its determination.

Mayor Farrell
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(gf) Planning Commission Review Upon Request.

(1) Requests. Within 10 days after notice of the proposed Zoning Administrator

approval has been given, as provided in Subsection (d), any person may request in writing

Mayor Farrell
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that the Planning Commission impose additional modifications on the project as provided in
Subsection (b) or consider the application for compliance with the open space and
streetscape requirements of the Planning Code. The written request shall state why additional
modifications should be imposed notwithstanding its compliance with the requirements of this
Code and shall identify the policies or objectives that would be promoted by the imposition of
conditions, or shall state why the open space and streetscape requirements have not been
complied with.

(2) Commission Consideration. The Planning Commission shall consider at a public
hearing each written request for additional modifications and for consideration of the open
space and streetscape requirements of the Planning Code compliance and may, by majority
vote, direct that a hearing be conducted to consider such modifications or compliance, which

hearing may be conducted at the same meeting that the written request is considered and

decided. Notice of such hearing shall be maHed-to-theproject-apphcantto-property-ewners

shewn-en-the-Citywide-Assessment-RollHn-the-Assesser's-Offiee-provided pursuant to the requirements

of Section 333 of this Code, provided that mailed notice shall also be provided to any person who

has requested such notice, and to any person who has submitted a request for additional
requirements. In determining whether to conduct such a hearing, the Planning Commission
shall determine whether, based upon a review of the project, reasonable grounds exist
justifying a public hearing in order to consider the proposed additional modifications and the
open space and streetscape requirements of the Planning Code compliance.

(3) Commission Action. If the Planning Commission determines to conduct a hearing
to consider the imposition of additional modifications or the open space and streetscape
requirements compliance, it may, after such hearing and after making appropriate findings,

approve, disapprove, or approve subject to conditions the building or site permit or project

Mayor Farrell
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authorization application. If the Planning Commission determines not to conduct a hearing,

the Zoning Administrator shall approve the application subject to any conditions imposed by

the Director of Planning to which the applicant has consented.

SEC. 315. AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT AUTHORIZATION.

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this Section 315 is to ensure that any project where the
principal use is affordable housing, defined in subsection (b) as an Affordable Housing
Project, is reviewed in coordination with relevant priority processing and design guidelines.

(b) Applicability. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Planning
Code, this Section 315 shall apply to any project where the principal use is housing comprised
solely of housing that is restricted for a minimum of 55 years as affordable for "persons and
families of low or moderate income," as defined in California Health & Safety Code Section
50093 (an "Affordable Housing Project"). The Affordable Housing Project shall be considered
a principally permitted use and shall comply with the administrative review procedures set

forth in this Section and shall not require conditional use authorization or a Planning

Mayor Farrell
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Commission hearing that otherwise may be required by the Planning Code, provided that the
site is not designated as public open space, is not under the jurisdiction of the Recreation and
Park Department, is not located in a zoning district that prohibits residential uses, or is not
located in an RH zoning district.

(1) If a conditional use authorization or other Planning Commission approval is
required for provision of parking, where the amount of parking provided exceeds the base
amount permitted as accessory in Planning Code Article 1.5, such requirement shall apply.

(2) If an Affordable Housing Project proposes demolition or change in use of a
general grocery store or movie theatre, this Section shall not apply.

(3) If a non-residential use contained in any proposed project would require
conditional use authorization, such requirement shall apply unless the non-residential use is
accessory to and supportive of the affordable housing on-site.

(c) Review Process.

(1) In lieu of any otherwise required Planning Commission authorization and

associated hearing, the Planning Department shall administratively review and evaluate the

physical aspects of an Affordable Housing Project and review such projects in coordination

with relevant priority processing and design guidelines. The review of an Affordable Housing

Project shall be conducted as part of, and incorporated into, a related building permit application or

other required project authorizations, and no additional application fee shall be required. An

Affordable Housing Project may seek exceptions to Planning Code requirements that may-be

are available through the Planning Code-reluding-but-net-limited-to-sections-253,-303,-304,-309;

limited to, those exceptions permitted through Sections 253, 303, 304, 309, and 329. The Planning

Department may grant such exceptions if it makes the findings as required in subsection (c)(2) below.

Mayor Farrell
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 15



http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=california(planning)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27253%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_253

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=california(planning)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27303%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_303

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=california(planning)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27304%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_304

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=california(planning)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27309%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_309

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=california(planning)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27329%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_329



© 00 N o o -~ w N kP

N NN N NN B B PR R R R R R R
O N W N P O © © N o O M W N B O

An Affordable Housing Project may seek exceptions from other Code requirements that could otherwise

be granted to a Planned Unit Development as set forth in Section 304, irrespective of the zoning district

in which the property is located and irrespective of lot size requirements set forth in Section 304, and

provided further that conditional use authorization shall not be required.

100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Projects seeking density bonuses,

zoning modifications, or Planning Code exceptions pursuant to Section 206.4 of this Code shall be

subject to the provisions and review process pursuant to Section 315.1 of this Code.

(2) This administrative review shall be identical in purpose and intent to any
Planning Commission review that would otherwise be required by the Planning Code,

including but not limited to Sections 253, 303, 304, 309, or 329, but shall not be considered a

conditional use authorization. a

the-Planning-Cede: If an Affordable Housing Project would otherwise be subject to such
Planning Code provisions, the Planning Department shall consider all the criteria set forth in
such Planning Code sections and shall make all required findings in writing when it approves,

modifies, conditions, or disapproves an Affordable Housing Project. If the project is seeking

exceptions solely as provided in this Section 315, the Department shall only make those required

findings set forth in Section 303(c) of this Code.

(3) Decision and Imposition of Conditions. The Planning Department, after
making appropriate findings, may approve, disapprove or approve subject to conditions the

Affordable Housing Project and any associated requests for exceptions as part of a related

building permit application or other required project authorizations. As part of its review and

decision, the Planning Department may impose additional conditions, requirements,
modifications, and limitations on a proposed Affordable Housing Project in order to achieve

the objectives, policies, and intent of the General Plan or the Planning Code. Such appreval-efr

Mayor Farrell
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disapprevaldetermination shall be made in writing and mailed to the project sponsor and
individuals or organizations who so request.

(4) Change of Conditions. Once a project is approved, authorization of a
change in any condition previously imposed by the Planning Department shall require
approval by the Planning Director subject to the procedures set forth in this Section 315.

(5) Discretionary Review. As long as the Planning Commission has delegated its

authority to the Planning Department to review applications for an Affordable Housing Project, the

Planning Commission shall not hold a public hearing for discretionary review of an Affordable

Housing Project that is subject to this Section 315. Fhis-Section-315-is-notintended-to-alterthe

(d) Appeals. The Planning Department’s administrative determination regarding an Affordable

Housing Project pursuant to this Section 315 shall be considered part of a related building permit. Any

appeal of such determination shall be made through the associated building permit.

SEC. 315.1 100 PERCENT AFFORDABLE HOUSING BONUS PROJECT AUTHORIZATION.

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this Section 315.1 is to ensure that all 100 Percent Affordable

Housing Bonus projects pursuant to Planning Code Section 206.4 are reviewed in coordination with

Priority Processing available for certain projects with 100% affordable housing. While most projects

in the 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Program will likely be somewhat larger than their

surroundings in order to facilitate higher levels of affordable housing, the Planning Director and

Department shall review each project for consistency with the Affordable Housing Bonus Design

Guidelines and any other applicable design guidelines, as adopted and periodically amended by the

Planning Commission, so that projects respond to their surrounding context, while still meeting the

City's affordable housing goals.

Mayor Farrell
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(b) Applicability. This Section 315.1 applies to all 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus

Projects that meet the requirements described in Section 206.4.

(c) Design Review. The Planning Department shall review and evaluate all physical aspects of

a 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Project as follows.

(1) The Planning Director may, consistent with the Affordable Housing Bonus Program

Design Guidelines and any other applicable design quidelines, make minor modifications to a project

to reduce the impacts of a 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Project on surrounding buildings.

The Planning Director may also apply the standards of Section 261.1 to bonus floors for all projects on

narrow streets and alleys in order to ensure that these streets do not become overshadowed, including

potential upper story setbacks, and special consideration for the southern side of East-West streets, and

Mid-block passages, as long as such setbacks do not result in a smaller number of residential units.

(2) As set forth in subsection (d) below, the Planning Director may also grant minor

exceptions to the provisions of this Code. However, such exceptions should only be granted to allow

building mass to appropriately shift to respond to surrounding context, and only when such

modifications do not substantially reduce or increase the overall building envelope permitted by the

Program under Section 206.4. All modifications and exceptions should be consistent with the

Affordable Housing Bonus Program Design Guidelines and any other applicable design guidelines. In

case of a conflict with other applicable design quidelines, the Affordable Housing Bonus Program

Design Guidelines shall prevail.

(3) The Planning Director may require these or other modifications or conditions in

order to achieve the objectives and policies of the Affordable Housing Bonus Program or the purposes

of this Code. This review shall be limited to design issues including the following:

(A) whether the bulk and massing of the building is consistent with the

Affordable Housing Bonus Design Guidelines.

Mayor Farrell
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(B) whether building design elements including, but not limited to, architectural

treatments, facade design, and building materials, are consistent with the Affordable Housing Bonus

Program Design Guidelines and any other applicable design quidelines.

(C) whether the design of lower floors, including building setback areas,

commercial space, townhouses, entries, utilities, and parking and loading access is consistent with the

Affordable Housing Bonus Program Design Guidelines, and any other applicable design guidelines.

(D) whether the required streetscape and other public improvements such as

tree planting, street furniture, and lighting are consistent with the Better Streets Plan, and any other

applicable design guidelines.

(d) Exceptions. As a component of the review process under this Section 315.1, the Planning

Director may grant minor exceptions to the provisions of this Code as provided below, in addition to

the development bonuses granted to the project in Section 206.4(c). Such exceptions, however, should

only be granted to allow building mass to appropriately shift to respond to surrounding context, and

only when the Planning Director finds that such modifications do not substantially reduce or increase

the overall building envelope permitted by the Program under Section 206.4, and the project, with the

modifications and exceptions, is consistent with the Affordable Housing Bonus Design Guidelines.

These exceptions may include:

(1) Exception from residential usable open space requirements per Section 135, or any

applicable special use district.

(2) Exception from satisfaction of loading requirements per Section 152.1, or any

applicable special use district.

(3) Exception for rear vards, pursuant to the requirements of Section 134, or any

applicable special use district.

(4) Exception from dwelling unit exposure requirements of Section 140, or any

applicable special use district.

Mayor Farrell
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(5) Exception from satisfaction of accessory parking requirements per Section 152.1,

or any applicable special use district.

(6) Where not specified elsewhere in this subsection (d), modification of other Code

requirements that could otherwise be modified as a Planned Unit Development (as set forth in Section

304), irrespective of the zoning district in which the property is located, and without requiring

conditional use authorization.

(e) Required Findings. In reviewing any project pursuant to this Section 315.1, the Planning

Director shall make the following findings:

(1) the use complies with the applicable provisions of this Code and is consistent with

the General Plan;

(2) the use provides development that is in conformity with the stated purpose of the

applicable Use District; and,

(3) the use contributes to the City's affordable housing goals as stated in the General

Plan.

(4) If a 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Project otherwise would require a

conditional use authorization due only to (1) a specific land use or (2) a use size limit, the Planning

Director shall make all findings and consider all criteria required by this Code for such use or use size

as part of this 100 Percent Affordable Housing Bonus Project Authorization and no conditional use

authorization shall be required.

(f) Decision and Imposition of Conditions. The Planning Director may authorize, disapprove

or approve subject to conditions, the project and any associated requests for exceptions and shall make

appropriate findings. The Director may impose additional conditions, requirements, modifications, and

limitations on a proposed project in order to achieve the objectives, policies, and intent of the General

Plan or of this Code. This administrative review shall be identical in purpose and intent to any

Planning Commission review that would otherwise be required by Section 206.4 of the Planning Code.

Mayor Farrell
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(q) Discretionary Review. As long as the Planning Commission has delegated its authority to

the Planning Department to review applications for an Affordable Housing Project, the Planning

Commission shall not hold a public hearing for discretionary review of a 100 Percent Affordable

Housing Bonus project that is subject to this Section.

(h) Appeals. The Planning Director’s administrative determination regarding a 100 Percent

Affordable Housing Bonus Project pursuant to this Section 315.1 shall be considered part of a related

building permit. Any appeal of such determination shall be made through the associated building

permit.
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Section 4. The Planning Code is hereby amended by revising Sections 202.5, 302,

303, 303.1, 305.1, 306.3, 306.7, 306.8, 306.9, 311, 317, 329, 330.7, 1006.3, and 1111.4,

deleting Sections 306.10 and 312; and adding new Section 333 to read as follows:

Mayor Farrell
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SEC 202.5. CONVERSION OF AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE STATIONS.

* ok %

(e) Criteriafor Zoning Administrator Conversion Determination. The Zoning
Administrator shall approve the application and authorize the service station conversion if the
Zoning Administrator determines from the facts presented that the owner of the subject
property is not earning a Fair Return on Investment, as defined in Section 102. The owner
shall bear the burden of proving that the owner is not earning a Fair Return on Investment.

(1) Application. A property owner's application under this Section shall be
signed by the owner or an authorized representative of the owner and, under penalty of
perjury, declared to contain true and correct information. The application shall be
accompanied by:

(A) An independent appraisal of the property stating its value;

(B) A written statement from an independent Certified Public Accountant
summarizing the applicant's financial records, including the property appraisal and stating the
return on investment calculated pursuant to Section 102;

(C) A certified statement from the Certified Public Accountant identifying
the owner of the property and the owner of the service station business;

(D) Such other financial information as the Zoning Administrator may
reasonably determine is necessary to make the determination provided for in this Section.

(2) Rebuttable Presumption. There shall be a rebuttable presumption that the
property owner is earning a Fair Return on Investment if the property owner has earned at
least a nine percent return on the property owner's total investment in the property for the 24-
month period immediately preceding the filing of the application, or in the case of a service
station business that ceased operations after October 12, 1989, for the 24-month period

immediately preceding the date the service station ceased operations. The property owner

Mayor Farrell
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may rebut this presumption by offering evidence demonstrating that because of special facts
regarding his or her property the property owner is not earning a Fair Return on Investment or
that because of special demonstrated circumstances the applicant would not earn a fair return
on investment from service station use during that 12-month period after the filing of the
service station conversion application.

(3) Notice of Hearing. Prior to conducting the hearing required by Subsection

(c)(1), the Zoning Administrator shall provide wsitten-netice public notification of the hearing
pursuant to the requirements of Section 333 of this Code. te-each-property-ownerwithin-300-feetin

(4) Determination. The Zoning Administrator shall render written determination
within 60 days of the hearing.

(5) Consultation With Other City Departments. If necessary, the Zoning
Administrator shall have the authority to consult with or retain the assistance of the staffs of
the Department of Public Works, Real Estate Department, and Mayor's Office of Workforce

and Economic Development in the review of applications for service station conversion.

* * * *

SEC. 302. PLANNING CODE AMENDMENTS.

(@) General. Whenever the public necessity, convenience and general welfare
require, the Board of Supervisors may, by ordinance, amend any part of this Code. Such
amendments may include reclassifications of property (changes in the Zoning Map), changes

in the text of the Code, or establishment, abolition or modification of a setback line. The

Mayor Farrell
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procedures for amendments to the Planning Code shall be as specified in this Section and in
Sections 306 through 306.6, and in Section 333.

(d) Referral of Proposed Text Amendments to the Planning Code Back to
Planning Commission. In acting upon any proposed amendment to the text of the Code, the
Board of Supervisors may modify said amendment but shall not take final action upon any
material modification that has not been approved or disapproved by the Planning
Commission. Should the Board adopt a motion proposing to modify the amendment while it is
before said Board, said amendment and the motion proposing modification shall be referred
back to the Planning Commission for its consideration. In all such cases of referral back, the
amendment and the proposed modification shall be heard by the Planning Commission
according to the requirements for a new proposal, except that rewspaper online notice required
under Section 306-3333 need be given only 10 days prior to the date of the hearing. The
motion proposing modification shall refer to, and incorporate by reference, a proposed

amendment approved by the City Attorney as to form.

SEC. 303. CONDITIONAL USES.

* % ok *

(f) Conditional Use Abatement. The Planning Commission may consider the
possible revocation of a Conditional Use or the possible modification of or placement of
additional conditions on a Conditional Use when the Planning Commission determines, based
upon substantial evidence, that the applicant for the Conditional Use had submitted false or
misleading information in the application process that could have reasonably had a substantial
effect upon the decision of the Commission or the Conditional Use is not in compliance with a

Condition of Approval, is in violation of law if the violation is within the subject matter

Mayor Farrell
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jurisdiction of the Planning Commission, or operates in such a manner as to create
hazardous, noxious, or offensive conditions enumerated in Section 202(c) if the violation is
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Planning Commission and these circumstances
have not been abated through administrative action of the Director, the Zoning Administrator
or other City authority. Such consideration shall be the subject of a public hearing before the
Planning Commission but no fee shall be required of the applicant or the subject Conditional
Use operator.

(1) Public Hearing. The Director of Planning or the Planning Commission may
schedule a public hearing on Conditional Use abatement when the Director or Commission
has obtained or received (A) substantial evidence submitted within one year of the effective
date of the Conditional Use authorization that the applicant for the Conditional Use had
submitted false or misleading information in the application process that could have
reasonably had a substantial effect upon the decision of the Commission or (B) substantial
evidence, submitted or received at any time while the Conditional Use authorization is
effective, of a violation of conditions of approval, a violation of law, or operation which creates
hazardous, noxious or offensive conditions enumerated in Section 202(c).

(2) Notification. The notice for the public hearing on a Conditional Use

abatement shall be subject to the notification procedure described in Sections-366-3-and-306-8
333 of this Code.

SEC 303.1 FORMULA RETAIL USES.

* * * *

(g) Neighborhood Notification and Design Review. Any application for a Formula

Retail use as defined in this section shall be subject to the notification and review procedures
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of subsections-312(d)-and-(e} Section 333 of this Code. A-Cenditional- Use-hearing-on-an-appheation

* * * *

SEC. 305.1 REQUESTS FOR REASONABLE MODIFICATION — RESIDENTIAL USES.
* ok %
(e) All Other Requests for Reasonable Modification — Zoning Administrator
Review and Approval.

(1) Standard Variance Procedure — With Hearing. Requests for reasonable
modifications that do not fall within Subsection (d) shall be considered by the Zoning
Administrator, who will make the final decision through the existing variance process
described in Section 305.

(2) Public Notice of a Request for Reasonable Modification. Notice for
reasonable modifications that fall with subsection (e)(1) are subject to the notice requirements

of Section 386-333 of this Code. If the request for reasonable modification is part of a larger

application, then the noticing can be combined.

* * * *

SEC 306.3. NOTICE OF HEARINGS.

(a) Except as indicated in subsection (b) below, notice of the time, place and purpose
of the hearing on action for an amendment to the Planning Code or General Plan, Conditional
Use or a Variance shall be given by the Zoning Administrator pursuant to the requirements of

Section 333 of this Code.as-felows:
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(b) In the case of Variance applications involving a less than 10% deviation as
described in Section 305(c), the Zoning Administrator need give only such notice as the

Zoning Administrator deems appropriate in cases in which a hearing is actually held.
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SEC 306.7. INTERIM ZONING CONTROLS.

ok k%

(@) Notice. Notice of the time and place of a public hearing on interim zoning controls
before the Planning Commission if the Planning Commission initiates the controls, or before
the Board of Supervisors or a committee of the Board if a member of the Board initiates the

controls, shall be provided pursuant to the requirements of Section 333 of this Code, and such other

notice as the Clerk of the Board or the Zoning Administrator may deem appropriate. . asfollows:
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Notice of a public hearing by the Board of Supervisors or a committee of the Board for
the ratification or disapproval of interim controls imposed by the Planning Commission shall

be given pursuant to Subseetions-{1){(2).(3)}and{5)-6f the requirements of this Subsection.

ofthe-hearing. The body imposing the interim zoning controls may not enlarge the area

affected by the proposed amendment or modify the proposed amendment in a manner that
places greater restrictions on the use of property unless notice is first provided in accordance
with the provisions of this Subsection and a hearing is provided on the modifications. Notice
may be provided pursuant to the provisions of this Subsection (g) prior to the completion of

the environmental review process.

* * * *

SEC. 306.8. POSTING OF SIGNS REQUIRED.
(a) Hearings for Which Notice Required. In addition to the requirements for notice

provided elsewhere in this Code, the requirements for notice set forth in this Section shall
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apply to hearings before the Planning Commission or the Zoning Administrator (1) on an
application for a conditional use or variance, (2) for every amendment to reclassify property
initiated by application as permitted in Section 302(b) where the area sought to be reclassified
is ¥2 acre or less (exclusive of streets, alleys and other public property) and where the
applicant owns all or a portion of the property to be reclassified or is a resident or commercial
lessee thereof, (3) for any permit application or project authorization application reviewed
pursuant to Sections 309 or 322, and (4) for any application for a building or site permit
authorizing a new building the consideration or approval of which is scheduled before the
Planning Commission. This Section shall not apply to variance applications involving a less
than 10 percent deviation as described in Section 305(c) or to hearings or actions relating to
environmental review.

(b) Signposting Requirements. Hearings that are required to be noticed pursuant to this

section 306.8 shall provide notice pursuant to the requirements of section 333 of this Code. Atleast20
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(dc) Notice of Reclassification by Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator
shall post signs providing notice of proposed reclassifications that are subject to this section

pursuant to the requirements of section 333 of this Code. atleast10-dayspriorto-the-hearing—Fhe
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(ed) Declaration Required; Failure to Comply. The applicant, other than an
applicant for a reclassification, shall submit at the time of the hearing a declaration signed
under penalty of perjury stating that the applicant has complied with the provisions of this
Section. If any person challenges the applicant's compliance with this Section, the
Commission or, as to variance hearings the Zoning Administrator, shall determine whether the
applicant has substantially complied and, if not, shall continue the hearing for that purpose. A
challenge may be raised regarding compliance with the provisions of this Section by any
person after the hearing by filing a written statement with the Zoning Administrator, or such
challenge may be raised by the Zoning Administrator, but no challenge may be filed or raised
later than 30 days following Commission action, or as to variance hearings 10 days following
the decision. If no challenge is filed within the time required, it shall be deemed conclusive
that the applicant complied with the provisions of this Section. If it is determined, after a
hearing for which at least five days' notice has been given to the person filing the challenge
and the applicant, that the applicant has not substantially complied with the provisions of this
Section, the action of the Planning Commission or the Zoning Administrator shall be deemed
invalid and the matter shall be rescheduled for hearing after the required notice has been
given. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, an application may be denied if
continuance or delay of action on the application would result in an application being deemed
approved pursuant to Government Code Sections 65920 et seq.

(ef) Permission to Enter Property. Every person who has possession of property
which is the subject of an application subject to this Section shall permit entry at a reasonable
time to an applicant who is seeking entry in order to allow the posting of the sign required
herein and no such person shall remove or cause the removal of such sign during the period
of time that posing is required herein and without reasonable cause to believe that such

removal is necessary in order to protect persons or property from injury.
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24
25

(fg) Rights Affected. The requirements of this Section are not intended to give any
right to any person to challenge in any administrative or judicial proceeding any action if such

person would not otherwise have the legal right to do so.

SEC. 306.9. NOTICE OF APPLICATIONS FOR BUILDING PERMITS FOR SUTRO TOWER.

* % * *

(c) Notification. Upon determination that an application is in compliance with the

requirements of the Planning Code, the Planning Department shall provide public notification

pursuant to the requirements of section 333 of this Code, except that no posted notice shall be required,

and that the mailed notice shall be mailed to all owners and, to the extent practicable, occupants of

properties within a 1,000 foot radius of the property line of the Sutro Tower site. cause-a-written-notice

w= This notice shall be in addition to

any notices required by the Building Code and in addition to other requirements for notice

provided elsewhere in this Code.
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SEC. 311. RESIBENHAL-PERMIT REVIEW PROCEDURES FORRH RM-ANDRTO

BASTRICTS.

(a) Purpose. The purpose of this Section is to establish procedures for reviewing
building permit applications fertetsir-R-Districtstr-erderto determine compatibility of the
proposal with the neighborhood and for providing notice to property owners and residents on
the site and neighboring the site of the proposed project and to interested neighborhood
organizations, so that concerns about a project may be identified and resolved during the
review of the permit.

(b) Applicability. Except as indicated herein, all building permit applications in

Residential, NC, NCT, and Eastern Neighborhoods Districts for a change of use; establishment of a

Micro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility; establishment of a Formula Retail Use;
demolition, ardfer-new construction,-and/or alteration of residential-buildings; and ineluding-the
removal of an authorized or unauthorized residential unit-ir-RH-RM--anrd-RFO-Districts-shall be

subject to the notification and review procedures required by this Section 311. Subsection-311{e)
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addition, all building permit applications that would establish Cannabis Retail or Medical Cannabis

Dispensary Uses, reqardless of zoning district, shall be subject to the review procedures required by

this Section 311. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other requirement of this Section 311, a change

of use to a Child Care Facility, as defined in Section 102, shall not be subject to the review

requirements of this Section 311.

(1) Change of Use. For the purposes of this Section 311, a change of use is defined as

follows:

(A) Residential, NC and NCT Districts. For all Residential, NC, and NCT

Districts, a change of use is defined as a change to, or the addition of, any of the following land uses as

defined in Section 102 of this Code: Adult Business, Bar, Cannabis Retail, Group Housing, Liquor

Store, Medical Cannabis Dispensary, Nighttime Entertainment, Outdoor Activity Area, Post-Secondary

Educational Institution, Private Community Facility, Public Community Facility, Religious Institution,

School, Tobacco Paraphernalia Establishment, and Wireless Telecommunications Facility.

(B) Eastern Neighborhood Districts. In all Eastern Neighborhood Districts a

change of use shall be defined as a change in, or addition of, a new land use category. A “land use

category” shall mean those categories used to organize the individual land uses that appear in the use

tables, immediately preceding a group of individual land uses, including but not limited to the

following: Residential Use; Institutional Use; Retail Sales and Service Use; Assembly, Recreation, Arts

and Entertainment Use; Office Use; Live/Work Units Use; Motor Vehicle Services Use: Vehicle

Parking Use; Industrial Use; Home and Business Service Use; or Other Use.

(23) Alterations. For the purposes of this Section, an alteration i+-RH-ard-RM

Bistricts-shall be defined as an increase to the exterior dimensions of a building except those features

listed in Section 136(c)(1) through 136(c)(26) in districts where those sections apply. any-change-in

use; In addition, an alteration in RH, RM, and RTO Districts shall also include the removal of more

than 75 percent of a residential building's existing interior wall framing or the removal of more
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than 75 percent of the area of the existing framing.-eran-tnrcrease-to-the-exterior-dimensions-of-a

(3) Micro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facilities. Building permit

applications for the establishment of a Micro Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility, other

than a Temporary Wireless Telecommunications Services Facility, shall be subject to the review

procedures required by this Section. Pursuant to Section 205.2, applications for Temporary Wireless

Telecommunications Facilities to be operated for commercial purposes for more than 90 days shall

also be subject to the review procedures required by this Section.

(c) Building Permit Application Review for Compliance and-Netification. Upon
acceptance of any application subject to this Section, the Planning Department shall review
the proposed project for compliance with the Planning Code and any applicable design
guidelines approved by the Planning Commission. Applications determined not to be in
compliance with the standards of Articles 1.2, 1.5, 2 and 2.5 of the Planning Code, Residential
Design Guidelines, including design guidelines for specific areas adopted by the Planning

Commission, or with any applicable conditions of previous approvals regarding the project,

Mayor Farrell
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shall be held until either the application is determined to be in compliance, is disapproved or a
recommendation for cancellation is sent to the Department of Building Inspection.

(1) Residential Design Guidelines. The construction of new residential
buildings and alteration of existing residential buildings in R Districts shall be consistent with
the design policies and guidelines of the General Plan and with the "Residential Design
Guidelines" as adopted and periodically amended for specific areas or conditions by the
Planning Commission. The design for new buildings with residential uses in RTO Districts
shall also be consistent with the design standards and guidelines of the "Ground Floor
Residential Units Design Guidelines" as adopted and periodically amended by the Planning
Commission. The Planning Director may require modifications to the exterior of a proposed
new residential building or proposed alteration of an existing residential building in order to
bring it into conformity with the "Residential Design Guidelines" and with the General Plan.
These modifications may include, but are not limited to, changes in siting, building envelope,
scale texture and detailing, openings, and landscaping.

(2) Removal of Residential Units. When removal or elimination of an authorized or

unauthorized residential unit is proposed, the Applicant shall provide notice as required in Section 333

of this Code. The Zoning Administrator shall determine any additional notification procedures to be

applied in such a case.

(3) Replacement Structure Required. Unless the building is determined to pose a

serious and imminent hazard as defined in the Building Code, an application authorizing demolition in

any R District of an historic or architecturally important building or of a dwelling shall not be

approved and issued until the City has granted final approval of a building permit for construction of

the replacement building. A building permit is finally approved if the Board of Appeals has taken final

action for approval on an appeal of the issuance or denial of the permit or if the permit has been issued

and the time for filing an appeal with the Board has lapsed with no appeal filed.

Mayor Farrell
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(A) The demolition of any building, including but not limited to historically and

architecturally important buildings, may be approved administratively when the Director of the

Department of Building Inspection, the Chief of the Bureau of Fire Prevention and Investigation, or the

Director of Public Works determines, after consultation with the Zoning Administrator, that an

imminent safety hazard exists, and the Director of the Department of Building Inspection determines

that demolition or extensive alteration of the structure is the only feasible means to secure the public

safety.

(2d) Notification. Upon determination that an application is in compliance with the

development standards of the Planning Code, the Planning Department shall provide eause-a

notice of the proposed project pursuant to the requirements of Section 333 of this Code. te-be-posted

Mayor Farrell
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(de) Requests for Planning Commission Review. A request for the Planning

Commission to exercise its discretionary review powers over a specific building permit
application shall be considered by the Planning Commission if received by the Planning
Department no later than 5:00 p.m. of the last day of the notification period as described
under Section 333 Subsection-{e}(3)-abeve, subject to guidelines adopted by the Planning
Commission. The project sponsor of a building permit application may request discretionary
review by the Planning Commission to resolve conflicts between the Director of Planning and
the project sponsor concerning requested modifications to comply with the Residential Design

Guidelines, or other applicable design quidelines.

(1) Scheduling of Hearing. The Zoning Administrator shall set a time for
hearing requests for discretionary review by the Planning Commission within a reasonable
period.

(2) Notice. Mailed notice of the discretionary review hearing by the Planning

Commission shall be given_pursuant to the requirements of Section 333 of this Code. retless-than-10

Mayor Farrell
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SEC. 317. LOSS OF RESIDENTIAL AND UNAUTHORIZED UNITS THROUGH

DEMOLITION, MERGER AND CONVERSION.

* * * *

(h) Notice of Conditional Use Hearing. Atleast-twenty-daysprierte For any hearing to
consider a Conditional Use authorization required under Subsection (9)(2), (9)(3), (9)(4), or

(9)(5), the Zoning Administrator shall eause-a-writter provide notice as required by Section 333 of

this Code €on
Unautherized-Units-in-the-building, in addition to any other notice required under this Code:
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SEC. 329. LARGE PROJECT AUTHORIZATION IN EASTERN NEIGHBORHOODS MIXED

USE DISTRICTS.
(e) Hearing and Decision.
(1) Hearing. The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing for all
projects that are subject to this Section.
(2) Notice of Hearing. Notice of such hearing shall be provided as required by
Section 333 of this Code.

(3) Director's Recommendations on Modifications and Exceptions. At the
hearing, the Planning Director shall review for the Commission key issues related to the
project based on the review of the project pursuant to Subsection (c) and recommend to the
Commission modifications, if any, to the project and conditions for approval as necessary. The
Director shall also make recommendations to the Commission on any proposed exceptions
pursuant to Subsection (d).

(4) Decision and Imposition of Conditions. The Commission, after public
hearing and, after making appropriate findings, may approve, disapprove or approve subject
to conditions, the project and any associated requests for exception. As part of its review and

decision, the Planning Commission may impose additional conditions, requirements,
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modifications, and limitations on a proposed project in order to achieve the objectives,
policies, and intent of the General Plan or of this Code.

(5) Appeal. The decision of the Planning Commission may be appealed to the
Board of Appeals by any person aggrieved within 15 days after the date of the decision by
filing a written notice of appeal with that body, setting forth wherein it is alleged that there was
an error in the interpretation of the provisions of this Code or abuse of discretion on the part of
the Planning Commission.

(6) Discretionary Review. No requests for discretionary review shall be
accepted by the Planning Department or heard by the Planning Commission for projects
subject to this Section.

(7) Change of Conditions. Once a project is approved, authorization of a
change in any condition previously imposed by the Planning Commission shall require

approval by the Planning Commission subject to the procedures set forth in this Section.

SEC. 330.7. PUBLIC NOTICE.
In addition to the notice standards of Sections 306 through 306.5 in this Code, and any
other notice requirement by the Building Code or any other notice required by the Municipal

Code, the Zoning Administrator shall mail-retice provide notice of a Coastal Zone Permit
Application as required by Section 333 of this Code. to-residents-within-100-feet-of the-subject

SEC. 333. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION PROCEDURES
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(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to establish procedures for all public

notifications required by this Code.

(b) Applicability. The requirements of this Section 333 shall apply to any hearing before the

Planning Commission, Historic Preservation Commission and/or the Zoning Administrator for which

public notice is required in this Code, and to certain Building Permit Applications under review by the

Planning Department pursuant to Section 311 of this Code. The Zoning Administrator shall determine

the means of delivering all forms of public notice pursuant to this Code, provided that the requirements

of this Section 333 are satisfied.

() Notification Period. For the purposes of this section 333, the Notification Period shall

mean no fewer than 20 calendar days prior to the date of the hearing, or in the case of a Building

Permit Application a period of no fewer than 20 calendar days prior to any Planning Department

approval of the application.

(d) Content of Notice.

(1) All notices provided pursuant to this section 333 shall have a format and content

determined by the Zoning Administrator, and shall at a minimum include the following:

(A) the address and block/lot number(s) of the subject project; and

(B) the Planning Department case number or Building Permit Application

number, as applicable, for the subject project; and

(C) the basic details of the project, including whether the project is a demolition,

new construction, alteration, or change of use; and basic details comparing the existing and proposed

conditions at the property including building height, number of stories, dwelling unit count, number of

parking spaces, and the use of the building; and

(D) instructions on how to access the online notice and plan sets for the project,

including how to obtain paper copies of the plan sets, and additional information as follows:
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(i) for Building Permit Applications subject to section 311 of this Code:

the beginning and end dates of the notification period along with instructions on how to contact the

project planner, and for how to file an application for Discretionary Review; and contact information

for the appropriate City agency or resource to contact for assistance in securing tenant counseling or

legal services, as applicable; or

(i1) for any public hearings required by the Planning Code and for which

public notification is required for a development application: the date, time and location of the

hearing; instructions for how to submit comments on the proposed project to the hearing body; and an

explanation as to why the hearing is required.

(2) Multiple Language Requirement.

(A) Definitions. The following definitions shall apply for the purposes of this

Subsection:

(i) Dedicated Telephone Number means a telephone number for a

recorded message in a Lanquage of Limited English Proficient Residents. The recorded message shall

advise callers as to what information they should leave on the message machine so that the Department

may return the call with information about the notice in the requested language.

(i1) Language of Limited English Proficient Residents means each of the

two languages other than English spoken most commonly by San Francisco residents of limited English

proficiency as determined by the Planning Department based on its annual review of United States

census and other data as required by San Francisco Administrative Code Section 91.2.

(B) All forms of required notice established in this section 333 shall include a

statement, provided in each Lanquage of Limited English Proficient Residents and, to the extent

available Department resources allow, such other languages that the Department determines desirable,

providing a Dedicated Telephone Number at which information about the notice may be obtained in the

language in question. The Department shall maintain a Dedicated Telephone Number for each
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Language of Limited English Proficient Residents. The Department shall place a return telephone call

by the end of the following business day to each person who leaves a message, and when the caller is

reached, provide information to the caller about the notice in the language spoken by the caller.

(e) Required Notices. Except as provided in subsection 333(f) below, all notices provided

pursuant to this section 333 shall be provided in the following formats:

(1) Posted Notice. A poster or posters with minimum dimensions of 11 x 17 inches,

including the content set forth in subsection 333(d) above, shall be placed by the project applicant at

the subject property and for the entire duration of the Notification Period as set forth herein. This

notice shall be in addition to any notices required by the Building Code, other City codes or State law.

One poster shall be required for each full 25 feet of each street frontage of the subject property. For

example, 2 posters would be required for a 50 foot street frontage; 3 posters would be required for

either a 75 foot frontage or a 99 foot frontage. Multiple posters shall be spread along the subject street

frontage as reqularly as possible. All required posters shall be placed as near to the street frontage of

the property as possible, in a manner to be determined by the Zoning Administrator.

(2) Mailed Notice. Written notice with minimum dimensions of 4-1/4 x 6 inches,

including the contents set forth in subsection 333(d), shall be mailed to all of the following recipients in

a timely manner pursuant to the Notification Period established herein:

(A) Neighborhood organizations that have reqgistered with the Planning

Department,to be included in a list that shall be maintained by the Planning Department and available

for public review for the purpose of notifying such organizations of hearings and applications in

specific areas; and

(B) Individuals who have made a specific written request for to be notified of

hearings and applications at a subject lot; and

(C) All owners and, to the extent practicable, occupants of properties, within no

less than 150 feet of the subject property, including the owner(s) and occupant(s) of the subject
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property, including any occupants of unauthorized dwelling units. Names and addresses of property

owners shall be taken from the latest Citywide Assessor's Roll. Failure to send notice by mail to any

such property owner where the address of such owner is not shown on such assessment roll shall not

invalidate any proceedings in connection with such action. The Zoning Administrator shall determine

the appropriate methodology for satisfying this requirement. If applicable State law requires notice to

be provided in a different manner, such notice will be provided consistent with applicable State

requirements.

(3) Online Notice. For the entire duration of the Notification Period established

herein, the following notification materials shall be provided on a publicly accessible website that is

maintained by the Planning Department:

(A) A digital copy formatted to print on 11 x 17 inch paper of the posted

notice including the contents set forth in subsection 333(d) for the hearing or application; and

(B) Digital copies of any architectural and/or site plans that are scaled and

formatted to print on 11 x 17 inch paper, are consistent with Plan Submittal Guidelines maintained and

published by the Planning Department, and that describe and compare, at a minimum, the existing and

proposed conditions at the subject property, the existing and proposed conditions in relationship to

adjacent properties, and that may include a site plan, floor plans, and elevations documenting

dimensional changes required to describe the proposal.

(f) Notice of Hearings for Legislative Actions. Notwithstanding the foreqoing, for all

hearings required for consideration of legislation, including but not limited to a Planning Code

Amendment, Zoning Map Amendment, General Plan Amendment, or Interim Zoning Controls, an

online notice shall be provided for the entire duration of the Notification Period established herein on a

publicly accessible website that is maintained by the Planning Department, and shall include the date,

time, and location of the hearing; the case number for the subject action; a general description of the

subject and purpose of the hearing; and instructions for how to contact the planner assigned to the case
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and provide comment to the hearing body. For any leqgislative proposal to reclassify property through a

Zoning Map Amendment, or to establish Interim Zoning Controls, if the area to be reclassified or the

area in which the interim controls are applicable is 30 acres or less in total area, excluding the area of

public streets and alleys, the information specified in this Subsection (f) shall be provided in a mailed

notice consistent with the requirements of subsection 333(d) above, and the notices shall also include a

map or general description of the area proposed for reclassification or action. For any legislative

proposal to reclassify property through a Zoning Map Amendment, if the area to be reclassified

comprises a single development lot or site, the required information shall also be provided in a posted

notice consistent with the requirements of subsection 333(d) above.

(0) Elimination of Duplicate Notice. The notice provisions of this Section may be waived by

the Zoning Administrator for applications that have been, or prior to any approval will be, the subject

of an otherwise duly noticed public hearing before the Planning Commission or Zoning Administrator,

provided that the nature of work for which the application is required is both substantially included in

the hearing notice and was the subject of the hearing.

(h) Newspaper Notice. If newspaper notice is required by applicable State law, the City

shall provide such newspaper notice.

SEC. 1006.3. SCHEDULING AND NOTICE OF HEARING.

(a) If a public hearing before the HPC on a Certificate of Appropriateness is required,
a timely appeal has been made of an Administrative Certificate of Appropriateness, or the
HPC has timely requested review of an Administrative Certificate of Appropriateness, the
Department shall set a time and place for said hearing within a reasonable period. Notice of

the time, place and purpose of the hearing shall be given provided as required by Section 333 of
this Code. by-the-Departmentasfolews:
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SEC. 1111.4. SCHEDULING AND NOTICE OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
HEARINGS.
(a) If a public hearing before the HPC is required under this Section 1111, the

Department shall set a time and place for the hearing within a reasonable period. Notice of the

timeplaceand-purpese-of-the hearing shall be given-by-the-Department provided as required in
Section 333 of this Code. netless-than20-days-priorto-the-date-of the-hearing-asfolows:
1 | ” : ;
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Section 5. The Planning Code is hereby amended by revising Sections 1005, 1111.1,

and 1111.2 to read as follows:

SEC. 1005. CONFORMITY AND PERMITS

* % x *

(e) After receiving a permit application from the Central Permit Bureau in accordance
with the preceding subsection, the Department shall ascertain whether a Certificate of
Appropriateness is required or has been approved for the work proposed in such permit
application. If a Certificate of Appropriateness is required and has been issued, and if the

permit application conforms to the work approved in the Certificate of Appropriateness, the
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permit application shall be processed without further reference to this Article 10. If a
Certificate of Appropriateness is required and has not been issued, eof or if the permit
application does not conform to what was approved, the permit application shall be
disapproved or held by the Department until such time as conformity does exist either through
modifications to the proposed work or through the issuance of an amended or new Certificate
of Appropriateness. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the following cases the Department
shall process the permit application without further reference to this Article 10:

(1) When the application is for a permit to construct on a landmark site where
the landmark has been lawfully demolished and the site is not within a designated historic
district;

(2) When the application is for a permit to make interior alterations only on a
privately-owned structure or on a publicly-owned structure, unless the designating ordinance
requires review of such alterations to the privately- or publicly-owned structure pursuant to
Section 1004(c) hereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any proposed interior alteration
requiring a permit would result in any significant visual or material impact to the exterior of the
subject building, a Certificate of Appropriateness shall be required to address such exterior
effects;

(3) When the application is for a permit to do ordinary maintenance and repairs
only. For the purpose of this Article 10, "ordinary maintenance and repairs" shall mean any
work, the sole purpose and effect of which is to correct deterioration, decay or damage of
existing materials, including repair of damage caused by fire or other disaster;

(4) When the application is for a permit to maintain, repair, rehabilitate, or
improve streets and sidewalks, including sidewalk widening, accessibility, and bulb-outs,
unless such streets and sidewalks have been explicitly called out in a landmark's or district's

designating ordinance as character defining features of the landmark or district:;
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(5) When the application is for a permit to alter a landing or install a power-assist

operator to provide an accessible entrance to a landmark or district, provided that the improvements

conform to the requirements outlined in Section 1006.6;

(6) When the application is for a permit to install business signs or awnings as defined

in Section 602 of this Code to a landmark or district, provided that signage, awnings, and transparency

conform to the requirements outlined in Section 1006.6;

(7) When the application is for a permit to install non-visible rooftop appurtenances to

a landmark or district, provided that the improvements conform to the requirements outlined in Section

1006.6; or

(8) When the application is for a permit to install non-visible, low-profile skylights,

provided that the improvements conform to the requirements outlined in Section 1006.6; or

(9) When the application is for a permit to install a City-sponsored Landmark plague to

a landmark or district, provided that the improvements conform to the requirements outlined in Section

1006.6 of this Code.

* * * *

SEC. 1111.1. DETERMINATION OF MINOR AND MAJOR ALTERATIONS.
* * % *
(c) All applications for a Permit to Alter that are not Minor Alterations delegated to
Department staff shall be scheduled for a hearing by the HPC pursuant to the procedures in

Section 1111.4 and 1111.5 below. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the following cases the

Department shall process the permit application without further reference to the Permit to Alter

procedures outlined herein:
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(1) When the application is for a permit to make improvements to provide an accessible

entrance to a Significant or Contributory building or any building within a Conservation District

provided that the improvements conform to the requirements outlined in Section 1111.6 of this Code;

(2) When the application is for a permit to install business signs to a Significant or

Contributory building or any building within a Conservation District provided that signage and

transparency conform to the requirements outlined in Section 1111.6 of this Code; or

(3) When the application is for a permit to install non-visible rooftop appurtenances to

a Significant or Contributory building or any building within a Conservation District provided that the

improvements conform to the requirements outlined in Section 1111.6 of this Code.

SEC. 1111.2. SIGN PERMITS.

(&) New general advertising signs are prohibited in any Conservation District or on
any historic property regulated by this Article 11.

(b) If a permit for a sign is required pursuant to Article 6 of this Code, the
requirements of this Section shall apply to such permit in addition to those of Article 6.

(c) In addition to the requirements of Article 6, an application for a business sign,
general advertising sign, identifying sign, or nameplate to be located on a Significant or
Contributory Building or any building in a Conservation District shall be subject to review by-the

HPC pursuant to the provisions of this Article. The HPC, or the Planning Department pursuant to

Section 1111.1 of this Code, shall disapprove the application or approve it with modifications to

conform to the requirements outlined in Section 1111.6 of this Code, including # the proposed

location, materials, typeset, size of lettering, means of illumination, method of replacement, or
the attachment would-adversely-affect so that the special architectural, historical or aesthetic
significance of the subject building or the Conservation District are preserved. No application

shall be denied on the basis of the content of the sign.
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Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after
enactment. Enactment occurs when the Mayor signs the ordinance, the Mayor returns the
ordinance unsigned or does not sign the ordinance within ten days of receiving it, or the Board

of Supervisors overrides the Mayor’s veto of the ordinance.

Section 7. Operative Dates.

(&) The Amendments contained in Sections 3 and 5 of this ordinance, including
revisions to Planning Code Sections 206.4, 309, 315, 1005, 1111.1, and 1111.2; the addition
of new Planning Code Section 315.1; and deletion of Planning Code Section 328, shall
become operative on the Effective Date.

(b) The Amendments contained in Section 4 of this ordinance, including amendments
to Planning Code Sections 202.5, 302, 303, 303.1, 305.1, 306.3, 306.7, 306.8, 306.9, 311,
317, 329, 330.7, 1006.3, and 1111.4, deletions of Planning Code Sections 306.10 and 312,

and addition of new Planning Code Section 333, shall become operative on January 1, 2019.

Section 8. Scope of Ordinance. In enacting this ordinance, the Board of Supervisors
intends to amend only those words, phrases, paragraphs, subsections, sections, articles,
numbers, punctuation marks, charts, diagrams, or any other constituent parts of the Municipal
Code that are explicitly shown in this ordinance as additions, deletions, Board amendment
additions, and Board amendment deletions in accordance with the “Note” that appears under
I
I
I
I
I
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the official title of the ordinance.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
DENNIS J. HERRERA, City Attorney

By:

KATE H. STACY
Deputy City Attorney

n:\legana\as2018\1800565\01275336.doc
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From: Secretary, Commissions (CPC

To: Eeliciano. Josephine (CPC)

Subject: FW: May 16, 2018 - 3333 California Street - Revisions Requested by Staff
Date: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 10:05:28 AM

Attachments: 20180515165142.pdf

20180515165310.pdf

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

From: Kathy Devincenzi [mailto:krdevincenzi@gmail.com]

Sent: Tuesday, May 15, 2018 2:37 PM

To: Andrew Wolfram; Aaron Hyland; Black, Kate (CPC); ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com; rsejohns;
dianematsuda@hotmail.com; Jonathan Pearlman

Cc: Secretary, Commissions (CPC); Smith, Desiree (CPC); Moore, Julie (CPC); John Rothmann
(johnrothmann2@yahoo.com)

Subject: May 16, 2018 - 3333 California Street - Revisions Requested by Staff

Re: 3333 California Street
May 16, 2018 San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission

Dear President Wolfram and Commissioners:

Please see attached letter and attachments thereto regarding revisions requested by Planning
staff and letter from devel oper to Commission.

We appreciate your consideration of these matters.
Laurel Heights Improvement Association of SF, Inc.

By: Kathy Devincenzi, Vice-President
(415) 221-4700


mailto:commissions.secretary@sfgov.org
mailto:Josephine.Feliciano@sfgov.org
mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
http://www.sfplanning.org/

Laurel Hri\q/lffs h‘?’lPP‘UI-’(TV}’M‘.Hf- Association of S Francisco. b

BY E-MAIL May 15, 2018
President Andrew Wolfram and

Commissioners Hyland, Black, Johnck, Johns, Matsuda and Pearlman
San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission

Re: 3333 California Street/2018-004346FED
May 16, 2018 San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission

Dear Commissioners,

We are delighted that staff proposes that this Commission adopt a resolution in overall support of
our nomination of the Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company Home Office for listing on the
National Register of Historic Places (Nomination).

Staff agrees that the property is locally significant under National Register Criterion C as an
example of a corporate headquarters in San Francisco that reflects modernist design principles;
as the embodiment of postwar decentralization and suburbanization of San Francisco given it
was the first major office building constructed outside of downtown; and for its association with
the master engineer, John J. Gould & H.J. Degenkolb, and the master landscape architecture firm
of Eckbo, Royston & Williams (ERW)/Eckbo, Austin, Dean and Williams (EDAW).

We appreciate staff’s agreement that the property is also significant under Criterion A for its
“embrace of new ideas, symbolized by its move away from downtown to an outlying location.”
In other words, it is significant as an important example of a suburban corporate property type
adapted to an urban setting in San Francisco.

In the revisions to the nomination which historians Michael Corbett and Denise Bradley
submitted to the State of California Office of Historic Preservation on April 20, 2018, the period
of significance was changed to end in 1967, which is the year in which the final construction by
Fireman's Fund was completed. (see Nomination, pp. 18, 31) Also, the typographical errors were
corrected

However, the revisions proposed by San Francisco Planning staff are inappropriate, because they
request more than the National Register criteria require, or are based on omission of pertinent
portions of the nomination. Staff does not reference the National Register criteria as support for
these revisions.

1. Architect Edward B. Page

Criterion C. Carey & Company’s 2011 UCSF Historic Resources Survey states that the 3333
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California Street property appeared to be eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic
Places and California Register of Historic Resources under criteria A/1 and C/3 and that as to its
architect Edward B. Page:

“While Edward B. Page was not the most prominent architect in San Francisco during the
postwar period, his resume does accord him master architect status.” (See
Attachment 1 hereto, Carey & Company, UCSF Historic Resources Survey (2011), p. 46
emphasis added)

Carey & Company is one of the oldest and most established historical architecture firms in San
Francisco and their survey was commissioned by UCSF which was then the owner of the

property.

San Francisco Planning Department staff fails to relate their conclusion to the definition of a
master in the National Register criteria. A “master” includes “a known craftsman of
consummate skill, or an anonymous craftsman whose work is distinguishable from others by its
characteristic style and quality” as well as “a figure of generally recognized greatness in a field.”
“The property must express a particular phase in the development of the master’s career, an
aspect of his or her work, or a particular idea or theme in his or her craft.” (See Attachment 2
hereto, U.S. Department of the Interior, National Register Bulletin, How to Apply the National
Register Criteria for Evaluation (1995) p. 20, emphasis added.) The criteria do not require that
an architect be “prolific” or have had significant influence on the architectural community, as
staff suggests.

Also, the nomination explains that:

On the Fireman’s Fund project, Page coordinated the contributions of all. He was
described as ‘the master’ by Loring Wylie, an engineer in the Degenkolb office who had
a major role working on the additions of the 1960s. Wylie remembered Page’s deep
involvement with and lead in solving issues with expansion joints as representative of his
high level of competence and control. On another technical matter, he designed an
innovative system of dispersed lighting for Fireman’s Fund in an effort to provide better
working conditions. (Nomination, p. 43)

Also, Planning staff omits many projects of architect Edward Page documented in the
nomination and bases its arguments on staff’s inaccurate characterization of which of Mr. Page’s
“later” projects were “major.”

Staff fails to mention many other projects of Edward Page documented in the nomination,
including the following:
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“In 1947, Page opened his own office in San Francisco, Many of his early projects were
in association with others, including the Glen Crags Housing Project with Wilbur D.
Peugh in 1951 and two schools with Cantin & Cantin in 1952. His design for the 1954
Mason B. Wells house in Belvedere won an Award of Merit from the Northern
California Chapter of the American Institute of Architects...

Following the success of the first phase of the Home Office in 1957, Page designed three
subsequent additions in 1963-1967, and branch offices in Fresno, Riverside, San Jose,
and Los Angeles. He also consulted on the designs of branches outside of California
including those in New York, New Orleans, and Atlanta, where he advised primarily on
matters related to the way the insurance business works.” (Nomination p. 43, emphasis
added)

“As to earlier projects when working in the office of Bakewell &Weihe, “...Page was
allowed to work there on his own projects and in 1937-1938 was a draftsman for the
Golden Gate International Exposition (G.G.LE.). Later in life he remembered his design
for the Island Club (demolished) at the G.G.L.E. with particular pride....

After receiving his architectural license in 1938, Page worked for himself and for others
on small projects from 1939 to 1942. On one of these projects, for Lewis Hobart, another
prominent Beaux-Arts architect, he worked on drawings for the floor of Grace Cathedral.
From 1942-1947, he worked as the Chief of Architecture and Engineering for San
Francisco architect Wilbur D. Peugh supervising wartime projects for U.S. Naval
Operations.” (Nomination, p. 42)

Staff erroneously argues that to be a “master” an architect must have been “prolific,” or
have “had significant influence on the professional architectural community” or that the
architect’s “notoriety and influence” be compared with that of other firms. The National
Register’s definition of a “master” as including “a known craftsman of consummate skill”
does not set forth the hurdles proposed by staff. The work on the Fireman’s Fund building that
represented a phase in his career and made Edward Page locally recognized as a master is
sufficient, and the criteria do not require that he have built a string of buildings. Evaluation of
quality is not equivalent to quantity.

2. Criterion A - Significant Contribution to Development of a Community

Criterion A. An important event that satisfies criterion A includes “A pattern of events or a
historic trend that made a significant contribution to the development of a community, a State,
or the nation.” (See Attachment 2 hereto, U.S. Department of the Interior , National Register
Bulletin, How to Apply the National Register Criteria for Evaluation (1995) p. 12, emphasis
added. The nomination documents the manner in which the insurance industry and Fireman’s
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Fund made a significant contribution to the development of San Francisco and does not have
show it was the most important industry or had a statewide influence.

Staff erroneously argues that a statewide contribution is required. The nomination clearly states
that property is eligible under “Criteria A and C at the local level.” (Nomination p. 32)

The nomination states that *

“Under Criterion A, it is significant in the area of Commerce for its association with the
San Francisco insurance industry, an important industry in the history of the city from the
Gold Rush to the present. In particular, it represents the postwar boom in San Francisco’s
insurance industry when many companies built new office buildings. At that time,
Fireman’s Fund was one of the largest insurance companies in the United States. It was
the only major insurance company headquartered in San Francisco. It was a leader
among all insurance companies in San Francisco in its embrace of new ideas, symbolized
by its move away from downtown to an outlying location. Under Criterion A, the
Fireman’s Fund Home Office is significant in the area of Community Planning and
Development as one of the principal embodiments of the postwar decentralization and
suburbanization of San Francisco. Fireman’s Fund was the first major office building to
be built outside of downtown in a suburban setting and it was the first whose design was
fully adapted to the automobile.” (Nomination, p. 32)

Again, UCSF’s historical consultant Carey & Company agreed that the Laurel Heights building
“stands as the most prominent postwar commercial development in the Laurel Heights
neighborhood and dramatically transformed the former cemetery site, rendering it eligible for the
NRHP/CRHP under Criterion A/1.” (See Attachment 1 hereto, Carey & Company, UCSF
Historic Resources Survey (2011), p. 46)

Instead of focusing on the contributions of Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company and the insurance
industry to a pattern of events or a historic trend that made a significant contribution to the
development of the community of San Francisco, staff erroneously claims that a contribution
must be shown “to the broad patterns of California’s history and culture.” Only a significant
contribution to the development of a local community is required, and the nomination shows that
the insurance industry had significance in San Francisco and Fireman’s Fund was a significant
insurance company in San Francisco. Also, staff erroneously argues that the acrospace,
technology, and film and television industries, “have shaped not only the built environment in
California, but have also directly influenced California’s cultural heritage.” Criterion A relates to
a pattern of events or a historic trend that made a significant contribution to the development of a
community and does not require a showing of influence on cultural heritage.

The nomination explains that the Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company building is important for
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its association with the growth and development of the San Francisco insurance, an important
industry in the history of the city from the Gold Rush to the present. (Nomination p. 40) One
outcome of the rapid growth of the city was the haphazard construction of its buildings in
flammable materials, which resulted in destruction by fire six times in the 1850s of large parts of
the city. (Nomination p. 36) San Francisco’s reliance upon maritime commerce and its frequent
large and destructive fires quickly gave rise to an insurance industry. (Nomination p. 36) This
industry would play an important role in the local economy as an employer and as a source of
investment money in the region, and San Francisco became a center for the insurance industry on
the west coast. (Nomination p. 36) Among more than thirty local insurance companies formed
in San Francisco in the 1850s-1860s, Fireman’s Fund, formed in 1863, was among the few San
Francisco companies that became well-established and among these it was the only one left in
business by 1985. (Nomination, p. 37)

Fireman’s Fund succeeded because it established branch agencies, paid its claims in a number of
high risk and high profile situations which gave it a reputation for honesty and reliability, had
wealthy owners who could provide enough capital to survive in more than one case, and made
key innovations on a number of occasions that proved to be influential within the industry.
(Nomination, p. 37) In 1867, the company built an imposing headquarters in a prestigious
location at California and Sansome Streets. (Nomination p. 37). For the rest of the 19™ century,
the company prospered while taking over other San Francisco insurance companies and
expanding its operations. (Nomination p. 37)

Fireman’s Fund was by far the leading local insurance company at the time of the 1906 San
Francisco earthquake and fire. It paid all claims by assessing its stockholders and paying in
installments. (Nomination p. 38) Like the most prestigious banks, San Francisco insurance
companies preferred to locate on California Street near Montgomery. After repairing its old
building after the earthquake, in 1915, Fireman’s Fund completed a new building on the old site
in the form of a Roman temple. Located across the street from the Bank of California building,
which was also in the form of a Roman temple, the Fireman’s Fund building “asserted the
wealth, stability, and historic roots of the Fireman’s Fund Insurance Company.” From 1912
through 1927, many other insurance industry buildings were built including a new eight-story
office building on Sansome Street for Fireman’s Fund which was enlarged with another five
stories in 1929. (Nomination p. 38) Collectively these buildings asserted the importance of the
industry and its associations with San Francisco history and finance. (Nomination p. 39)
Between 1950 and 1960, seven major insurance companies built new offices in San Francisco,
and this was a period of growth for San Francisco’s insurance industry. (Nomination p. 39)

Staff argues that “the majority of the company’s innovations within the insurance industry
occurred while the business was housed in its previous location at 401-407 California Street.”
However, Criterion A focuses on a pattern of events or a historic trend that made a significant
contribution, rather than on the location of a majority of the company’s innovations. All that is
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needed is association with certain events and if one innovation occurred when the Home Office
was in existence, a minority of the company’s innovations could be significant. A majority of
innovations at the location is not required.

The nomination actually documents innovations that occurred after the opening of the Fireman’s
Fund Home Office Building. At that time, “An important and newsworthy source of new
business was in the category of inland marine insurance which “will insure any insurable interest
against all perils anywhere in the world. This covered motion pictures and their casts, rodeo
performers, professional athletes, and other types of activity. Fireman’s Fund was second
internationally to Lloyd’s of London in providing this type of insurance and was often in the
news for this line of work.” (Nomination p. 40) In 1963, Fireman’s Fund combined with the
American Insurance Company of Newark, New Jersey, with Fireman’s Fund becoming a holding
company and stating in an advertisement that it was “the largest property and casualty insurance
company headquartered in the West. It offers every basic line of insurance for both personal and
commercial coverage through more than 25,000 agents and brokers...”. In this period, substantial
additions to the Laurel Heights building were made. Thus, the Fireman’s Fund Home Office
was associated with a pattern of events that made a significant contribution to the development of
San Francisco.

3. Additional Accolade for Landscape Architect

Criterion C. Master Landscape Architect. Staff agrees that the property is locally significant for
its association with the master landscape architecture firm of Eckbo, Royston & Williams
(ERW)/Eckbo, Austin, Dean and Williams (EDAW). Staff suggests that reference could be
made to a number of accolades and associations not mentioned in the nomination, including a
memorial tribute. However, such supplementation is unnecessary, as the nomination discusses a
history that accompanied an award presented to EDAW by the American Society of Landscape
Architects that noted that ERW “established a compelling portfolio of modernist landscapes™ and
the partnership became “one of the leading firms in the country, highly regarded for its advanced
planning, innovative vocabulary, and the quality of execution.” The nomination also discussed
that in 1950, ERW was awarded the Gold Medal in Landscape Architecture by the New York
Architectural League. (Nomination p. 46) The nomination also explained that ERW was
regularly written about in popular magazines, completed gardens in four states and was a pioneer
ins expanding the practice of landscape architecture into the scale of neighborhood and
community design. (Nomination p. 47) Park and playground projects gained the attention of the
national media, and the firm worked on numerous new housing projects and public outdoor
spaces including the Venetian Room Roof Garden at the Fairmont Hotel, the entrance court to
the Palace of the Legion of Honor and St. Mary’s Park. (Nomination p. 47-48) The criteria do
not require mention of every accolade or association of the master.
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4. Contributing Resource - Service Building.

Service Building. Staff also uses the wrong standard in arguing that the Service Building , as “an
auxiliary building that is secondary to the much-larger main Office Building, the Service
Building does not play a critical role in the overall design of the landscape or setting to convey
the property’s significance.” A critical role in the overall design is not required.

The rules for counting resources explain that a contributing building or structure adds to the
historic associations or historic architectural qualities if “it was present during the period of
significance, related to the documented significance of the property, and possesses historic
integrity or is capable of yielding important information about the period. (See Attachment 3
hereto, U.S. Department of the Interior, National Register Bulletin, How to Complete the
National Register Registration Form, pp. 16-17)

The nomination explains that the Office Building and Service Building “were designed to
complement each other in character and materials. The Office Building is a glass walled building
with an open character. The Service Building is a brick building with a closed character.”
(Nomination p. 5) Brick is used as a secondary material in the Office Building, but also as a
visual connector to features of the landscaped grounds and to the Service Building. (Nomination
p. 7) The “almost windowless Service Building encloses its machinery and utilitarian work
space.” Ibid. “A brick wall, which takes different forms, provides a continuous and unifying
element around the edges of the site.” (Nomination p. 11) “The brick in various sections of this
wall and in the pavement patterns of the Terrace and Entrance Court was the same as that used in
the Office Building and Service Building and helped to integrate the architecture and landscape.”
(Nomination p. 21)

“Together the buildings and landscape of the Fireman’s Fund Home Office constitute a single
resource that possesses integrity.” (Nomination p. 27) The nomination describes the character
defining features of the Service Building as “Massing of rectangular volumes” and “Brick walls
with a minimum of openings.” (Nomination p. 28) The “design of International Style buildings
depended on physical features like new technologies and materials. It also depended on a deep
understanding of the purpose of buildings and on research on how they are to be used.”
(Nomination p. 55) The International Style “also had to do with the expression of the
relationship between structure and technology, represented by Louis Sullivan’s statement that
‘form follows function.” ” (Nomination p. 56).

Since the design of the Service Building addressed contemporary needs and used contemporary

materials, that Building related to the documented significance of the property as an example of
the International Style of architecture, and was designed to fit within the unifying brick wall and
to be a component of it. Thus, the Service Building is a contributing resource that was designed
and built during the period of significance.





San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission
May 15, 2018
Page 8

S. Errors and Inaccuracies in Developer’s Letter to Commission President

The April 23, 2018 letter from developer Laurel Heights Partners LLC incorrectly asserts
that as a result of its objection to the nomination of the property, “at most” the property could be
“determined eligible” for listing. As the State of California Office of Historic Preservation has
explained to the Laurel Heights Improvement Association (LHIA):

“In addition, as of January 1, 1993, all National Register properties are now automatically
included in the California Register of Historical Resources (California Register) and
afforded consideration during the State (CEQA) environmental review process. This
includes properties formally determined eligible for the National Register.” (See
Attachment 4 hereto- Letter dated March 15, 2018 from Office of Historic Preservation to
LHIA)

With reference to the Planning Department’s Modern Design Historic Context Statement,
Appendix B thereto relates to “Additional Modern Architects,” and states that “future research is
required to document their significance and works in San Francisco.” (See Attachment 5 hereto,
San Francisco Planning Department, Modern Design Historic Context Statement, Appendix B, p.
1) Architect Edward Page and Eckbo, Royston & Williams (landscaping) were listed in
connection with the Fireman’s Fund Indemnity Company at 3333 California Street on Appendix
B, but the developer erroneously characterizes the Historic Context Statement as a
“comprehensive review and analysis of modern architecture in San Francisco.” Rather, the
Historic Context Statement makes it clear that it was developed “to provide the framework for
consistent, informed evaluations of San Francisco’s Modern buildings and landscapes” and was
intended to be used “to inform historic and cultural resource surveys and to ensure that property
evaluations are consistent with local, state, and federal standards.” (Attachment 5, p. 1)

Importantly, the Laurel Heights Improvement Association has consistently advocated for all-
residential redevelopment of the site and has opposed the developer’s request to commercialize
the site and change its zoning to allow retail uses and a new office building. (See Attachment 6
hereto - May 31, 2017 letter to the Honorable Mark Farrell and excerpt from Petition supporting
all-residential redevelopment and opposing rezoning for retail and new office use.) LHIA has
consistently maintained that the residentially-zoned site (RM-1) is appropriate for residential
development, but the developer doggedly seeks to change the entitlements allowed on the
property. LHIA supports adaptive reuse of the office building for housing, following the
Secretary of Interior’s standards.

Also, contrary to the developer’s false statement, LHIA informed the developer and the UC
Regents of the nomination before LHIA submitted it to the State Office of Historic Preservation.
(See Attachment 7 hereto, e-mail dated February 8, 2018 to the Regents of the University of
California, copied to Dan Safier) During the months that the State evaluated the nomination for
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compliance with the National Register criteria, the developer made no objection to the
substantive content of the nomination. During that period, the developer concentrated on
securing a deed from the Regents of the University of California ostensibly transferring the fee
interest in the property so that the developer could assert an objection to the listing on the
National Register without statement of reasons. A public entity such as the Regents is not
entitled to object to the listing of a property on the National Register.

Notably, both UCSF and the developer concealed the historic significance of the property from
LHIA and its members during the public meetings held by UCSF and the developer prior to the
submission of the developer’s proposed plans to the City of San Francisco. LHIA learned of the
historic significance of the property at the inception of the CEQA review process when the
CEQA scoping notice stated that the existing building on the project site is considered a
historical resource under CEQA. LHIA then requested the information that the developer had
submitted to the City and received a State of California Resources Agency report that referred to
the 2010 Carey & Company survey that stated that the property appeared to be eligible for listing
in the National Register of Historic Places and California Register of Historic Resources under
Criteria A/1 and C/3. (See Attachment 8 hereto, excerpts of State of California - The Resources
Agency, Primary Record, p. 3 reporting Carey & Co. UCSF Historic Resources Survey.)

Since the developer’s plans propose to demolish 51 percent of the Fireman’s Fund Home Office
Building and a substantial amount of its integrated landscaping (See Attachment 9 hereto,
developer’s plan excerpts), the fact that the developer will now study modifications to his plans
that would mitigate adverse impacts to this historic resource, indicates that the developer is also
wrong in denigrating the determination of eligibility for the National Register as providing no
additional CEQA protection for the resource.

Further, it is quite odd that the anonymous private investors in the limited liability companies
formed to profit from developing the property would point to the fact that a neighborhood
organization such as the Laurel Heights Improvement Association is a non-profit corporation.

Conclusion
The State Office of Historic Preservation evaluated the nomination for compliance with the
National Register criteria, found the criteria satisfied, and placed the matter on the State
Commission calendar. Staff’s recommendation that the Commission adopt a resolution overall
supporting the nomination is consistent with the Commission’s role of providing overall
assessment and comment.

We appreciate your consideration of this matter.

Very truly yours,





San Francisco Historic Preservation Commission

May 15,2018
Page 10
Laurel Heights Improvement Association of San Francisco, Inc.
W ﬁmk
By: Kathryn Devincenzi, Vice-President
22 Iris Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94118
Telephone: (415) 221-4700
Attachments:

1- Carey & Company, UCSF Historic Resources Survey (2011)

2 - U.S. Department of the Interior, National Register Bulletin, How to Apply the
National Register Criteria for Evaluation (1995) pp. 12, 20

3 - U.S. Department of the Interior, National Register Bulletin, How to Complete the
National Register Registration Form, pp. 16-17

4 - Letter dated March 15, 2018 from Office of Historic Preservation to LHIA

5 - San Francisco Planning Department, Modern Design Historic Context Statement,
p. 1 and Appendix B, p. 1

6 - May 31, 2017 letter to the Honorable Mark Farrell and excerpt from Petition
supporting all-residential redevelopment and opposing rezoning for retail and
new office use

7 - E-mail dated February 8, 2018 to the Regents of the University of California, copied
to Dan Safier

8 - Excerpts of State of California - The Resources Agency, Primary Record, p. 3
reporting Carey & Co. UCSF Historic Resources Survey

9 - Developer’s plan excerpts
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The materials Rockrise used for the student housing, their scale, their immediate access to the outdoors —
particularly the sliding glass door and wide balconies — and their siting and landscaping, which landscape
architect Lawrence Halprin designed, all conform to the principles of the Second Bay Region Tradition.
In terms of integrity Aldea 10 retains a high degree of integrity of location, design, setting, workmanship,
feeling and association. Some materials have been replaced, such as wood railings or siding, but these
alterations are visually compatible. Therefore, Aldea 10 appears to be eligible for listing NRHP/CRHR
under Criterion C/3 as an intact example of Second Bay Region Tradition.

745 Parnassus Avenue/Faculty Alumni House

‘Built in 1915, this two-story building occupies a heavily wooded lot at the southeast corner of 5th
Avenue and Judah Street. The L-shaped building faces northwest and wraps around a small enclosed
courtyard covered with brick pavers. Textured stucco clads the structure. The primary window type is
wood sash, casement. The clay tile-clad, cross-gable roof features exposed rafter tails. The main entrance,
which faces the courtyard at the northwest corner of the building, consists of a round projection with a
conical toof clad with clay tiles; its door is framed by a deep shaped opening. Three wood, glazed double
doors are located at the first story on other side of the main entrance. At the second story, each facade
contains four sets of paired casement windows with shutters featuring prominent rivets. The second floor
of the west-facing fagade overhangs the first and is supported by machicolations. Each gable end features
a paired double door at the second story that opens to a small balcony supported by decorative brackets.

The Faculty Alumni House is not known to be associated with persons of significance and therefore does
not appear to be eligible for the NRHP/CRHR under Criterion B/2. It does, however, appear to be
eligible for the NRHP/CRHR under Criteria A/1 and C/3, for its association with significant
developments in the history of UCSF and as an excellent example of Spanish Eclectic architecture with
high artistic value. Built for dental students in 1915, the building marks the first attempt to address
— studentneeds-outside of the classroom. Recreational facilities also coordinated by the dental students .

followed within a few years. Thus the building expresses early attempts to foster student life at UCSF,
rendering it eligible under Criterion A/1. With its stucco cladding, clay tile roof, heavy brackets,
rounded entrance and carved archway, the Faculty Alumni House also stands as a fine example of ~ —
Spanish Eclectic architecture, which was entering its peak of popularity in 1915. The building has not
been moved or undergone significant alterations and stands in a residential neighborhood that has

—  changed little since 1915. It thus retains its integrity of location, setting, design, materials, wotkmanship,
feeling, and association.

3333 California Street/Laurel Heights Building

Built in 1957, this four-story building has an irregular plan and occupies the approximate center of an
irregular-shaped city block. The intervening spaces are filled with extensive landscaping or parking lots.
The concrete slab floors extend beyond the wall surface to form projecting cornices at each floor, and

———between theseprojections, an aluminun=sashrwindow wall-with dark;slightly-mitrored-glass forms the
exterior walls. Brick veneer covers the walls in certain locations, and the roof is flat. The main entry
opens on the north side of the building and features a covered entry with the roof supported on large
square brick piers, a small ground-level fountain, and sliding aluminum doors.

7 The Laurel Heights building appears to be eligible for listing in the NRHP/CRHR under Criteria A/1 =~
and C/3. It stands as the most prominent postwar commercial development in the Laurel Heights
neighborhood and dramatically transformed the former cemetery site, rendering it eligible for the
NRHP/CRHR under Criterion A/1. No persons of significance are known to be associated with the
building; thus it does not appear to be eligible under Criterion B/2. While Edward B. Page was not the
most prominent architect in San Francisco during the postwar period, his resume does accord him master
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example of mid-century Modernism and the International Style. Its horizontality makes it a patticularly
good regional example of the architectural style. For these reasons the building appears to be eligible for
the NRHP/CRHR under Criterion C/3.

architect status. More importantly, this main building at the Laurel Heights campus is an excellent \

The Firemen’s Fund Insurance Company Building at Laurel Heights retains excellent integrity. It has not
been moved and its surroundings have not undergone many alterations. Thus the building retains its
integrity in all seven categories — location, setting, design, materials, workmanship, feeling, and
association.

513 Parnassus Avenue/Medical Sciences Building

Built in 1954, this L-shaped building rises 17 stories on a steel structural frame and forms the east
boundary and part of the north boundary of the Parnassus Heights campus’ Saunders Courtyard. The
north elevation faces Parnassus Avenue and features ten structural bays. Masonry panels clad the first
and tenth bays. In the remaining bays, masonry spandrels with horizontal ribbing separate horizontal
bands of aluminum windows. Four exhaust shafts enclosed in masonry panels project from the wall
surface and rise from the second story to above the roof line. The ground floor features floor-to-ceiling
aluminum windows separated by dark masonry panels at the structural columns. Monumental stairs rise
approximately four feet above the sidewalk level to the main entry, where three columns support a flat
entry roof. On the south and west elevations facing Saunders Courtyard, masonry panels cover the wall
surfaces and separate horizontal bands of aluminum windows. Projecting metal brackets used to support
exposed mechanical pipes and ducts attach to the wall surface in line with the structural columns.

The Medical Sciences Building was constructed at a time when UCSF was undergoing its most
significant metamorphosis since the Affiliated Colleges were founded in the 1890s, Enrollment
__ skyrocketed during the postwar years and the institution received unprecedented levels of government
funding for research and curriculum development. New buildings were added rapidly to meet the demand
and reflect the growing prestige. Within this context, MSB appears eligible for listing in the
~ NRHP/CRHR under Criterion A/1, for its association with events or historic themes of significancein -~

UCSPFs history. It also stands as a good example of mid-century hospital architecture and the shift from -
Palladian Style campuses to International Style, highrise buildings. Blanchard and Maher, while not the

— - most prominent architects in the San Francisco Bay Area, also rise to the level of master architects and
this building stands as one of the firm's most prominent buildings in San Francisco. Thus, MSB appears
to be eligible for the NRHP/CRHR under Criterion C/3. The building is not known to be associated
with persons significant to history and therefore does not appear to be eligible for the NRHP/CRHR
under Criterion B/2.

MSB has undergone some alterations but appears to retain a good degree of integrity to convey its

~historical significance: It-has-not been-meved-and-continues-tostard-betweenMoffitt Hospital-and the
Clinical Sciences building, down the road from LPPI, and among hospital and medical school facilities.
Thus it retains its integrity of location, setting, association, and feeling. The building has undergone
some alterations, most notably a new exit to Saunders Court and a glass shaft containing a stairwell and
vents on the west elevation. As these alterations occur on secondary elevations and are not notable on
—-— -the primary, Parnassus Avenue fagade, they do not significantlydetract from the building’s overall
design, materials, and workmanship. Thus the building retains a good degree of integrity in these areas.

707 Parnassus Avenue/School of Dentistry

Built in 1979, this L-shaped building rises four stories and steps back to form terraces. The lot contains a
parking lot to the south and a partially wooded green space at the north. This reinforced concrete
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CRITERION A: EVENT

Properties can be eligible foc the “wational Kevster if they are associated with events that have made a significant
contribution to the broad prottorn s ob g history,

UNDERSTANDING
CRITERION A:
EVENT

Por b v vae wlered Tar ]isling under

Corrlornn vy prroperty must be
acacaded with one or more events
mnporlant i the defined historic
ronlext Crilerion A recognizes

Ptopurtics associated with single
cvents, such as the founding of a
town, or with a pattern of events,
repeated activities, or historic trends,
such as the gradual rise of a portcity’s
prominence in trade and commerce.
The event or trends, however, must
clearly be important within the
associated context: setllement, in the
case of the town, or development ofa
_maritime economy, in the case of the
portcity—Moreover, the property — —
must have an important association
with-the event or historic trends, and
it must retain historic integrity. (See
Part V: How to Evaluate a Property
Within its Historic Context.)
Several steps are involved in

determining whether a property is
significant for its associative values:

* Determine the nature and origin
of the property,

e Identify the historic context with
which it is associated, and

¢ Evaluate the property’s history to
determine whether it is associ-
ated with the historic context in
any important way.

~a list of specific examples.

——— "’TI'CheOngi cabsites well 'wr\"-"'d =

EXAMPLES OF PROPERTIES
ASSOCIATED WITH EVENTS

Properties associated with specific events:

APPLYING
CRITERION A:
EVENT

TYPES OF EVENTS

e The site of a battle.

® The building in which an important
inventioin was developed.

* A factory district where a significan
A property can be associated with strike occurred.
either (or both) of two types of events:

A archeological site at wlich a ma-
jor new aspect of prehistory was dis-
covered, such as the first evidence of
man and extinct Pleistocene animals
being contemporaneous.

° A specific event marking an im-
portant moment in American pre-
history or history and

* A pattern of events or a historic
trend that made a significant con-
tribution to the development of a
community, a State, or the nation.

® Asite where an inportant facet of
Ewropean exploration occurred.

Properties associated with a pattern of

. cvenlts:

Refer to the sidebar on the right for S _
® A trail associafed with western mi-

——oratini —

ASSOCIATION OF THE

* A railroad station that served as the

PROPERTY WITH THE focus of a community’s transporta-
EVENTS tion system and conmmerce.

* A mill district reflecting the impor-
tance of textile nanufacturing dur-

The property you are evaluating
ing a given period.

must be documented, through ac-
cepted means of historical or archeo-
logical research (including oral
history), to have existed at the time of
the event or pattern of events and to
have been associated with those
evenis. A property is not eligible if its
associations are speculative. For

* A building used by an important lo-
cal social organization.

® A site where prehistoric Native
Americans annualily gathered for
seasonally available resources and
for soctal interaction.

inferences drawn from data recovered
at the site can be used to establish the
association between the site and the
events.

SIGNIFICANCE OF THE
ASSOCIATION

* Adowntown district representing a
town's growth as the commercial fo-
cus of the surrounding agricultural
area.

Mere association with historic
events or trends is not enough, in and
of itself, to qualify under Criterion A:
the property’s specific association
must be considered important as well.
For example, a building historically in
commercial use must be shown to

~havebeensignificant-incommercial -
history.





W ORKSOF A MASTER = PROPERTIES POSSESSING™

A master is a figure of generally
recognized greatness in a field, a
known craftsman of consummate
skill, or an anonymous craftsman
whose work is distinguishable from
others by its characteristic style and
quality. The property must express a
particular phase in the development
of the master’s career, an aspect of his
or her work, or a particular idea or
theme in his or her craft.

A property is not eligible as the
work of a master, however, simply
because it was designed by a promi-
nent architect For example, not every
building designed by Frank Lloyd
Wright is eligible under this portion
of Criterion C, although it might meet
other portions of the Criterion, for
instance as a representative of the
Prairie style.

The work of an unidentified
craftsman is eligible if it rises above
the level of workmanship of the other
properties encompassed by the
historic context.

HIGH ARTISTIC VALUES

High artistic values may be ex-
pressed in many ways, including
areas as diverse as community design
or planning, engineering, and sculp-
ture. A property is eligible for its
high artistic values if it so fully
articulates a particular concept of
design that it expresses an aesthetic
ideal. A property is not eligible,
however, if it does not express
aesthetic ideals or design concepts
more fully than other properties of its
type.

Eligible

* A sculpture in a town square
that epitomizes the design
principles of the Art Deco style
is eligible.

oA building that is a classic ex-
pression of the design theories
of the Craftsman Style, such as
carefully detailed handwork,
is eligible.

* A landscaped park that syn-
thesizes early 20th century

tecture and expresses an aes-
thetic ideal of environment can
—be-eligible. —

» Properties that are important
representatives of the aesthetic
values of a cultural group,
such as petroglyphs and
ground drawings by Native
Americans, are eligible.

Neot Eligible

e A sculpture in a town square
that is a typical example of

principles of landscape archi-=— |

_sculpture design during its pe- |

Entity Whose Components May Lack
Individual Distinction. This portion
of Criterion C refers to districts. For
detailed information on districts, refer
to Part IV of this bulletin.

riod would not qualify for
high artistic value, although it
might be eligible if it were sig-
nificant for other reasons.

e A building that is a modest ex-
ample (within its historic con-
text) of the Craftsman Style of
architecture, or a landscaped
park that is characteristic of
turn of the century landscape
design would not qualify for
high artistic value.
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This limepol is one of many contributing archeological sites in Burke's Garden Rural Historic
District, in Tazewell County, Virginia. The site contains evidence of the industrial activities
that teok place during the area’s early settlement. (Virginia Depariment of Historic Resources)

tional Register Multiple Property Docu-
mentation Form. Checkawith the
SHPPO or FPO for further information
about multiple property listings.
Enter “N/A” for other propertics

NUMBER OF
RESOURCES
WITHIN PROPERTY

Enter the number of resources that
make up the property in each cate-
gory. Count contributing resources
separately from noncontributing

- ones—Totaleach column.=Do notin---—

clude in the count any resources al-
ready listed in the National Register.
Completing this item entails threc
steps:
» Classify each resource by cate-
gory: building, site, structure, or
object. (See National Register Prop-

erty and Resource Types on page
15.)

s Determine whether each resource
does or does not contribute to the
historic significance of the prop-

16

erty. (See Determining Contribui-

~ =g and Noncontributing-Resources ——-

below.)

* Count the contributing and non-
contributing resources in cach cat-
egory. (See Rules for Counting
Resources on page 17).

DETERMINING
CONTRIBUTING AND
NONCONTRIBUTING
RESOURCES

The physical characteristics and his-
toric significance of the overall prop-

e it was present during the period
of significance, relates to the doc-
umented significance of the prop-
erty, and possesses historic
integrity or is capable of yielding
important information about the
period; ot

e it independently meets the Na-
tional Register criteria. (Identify
contributing resources of this
type and explain their signifi-
cance in section 8).

A noncontributing building, site
structure, or object does not add to
the historic architectural qualities, his-
toric associations, or archeological
values for which a property is signifi-
cant because:

* it was not present during the pe-
riad of significance or does not re-
late to the documented
significance of the property;

» due to alterations, disturbances,
additions, or other changes, it no
longer possesses historic integrity
or is capable of yielding impor-
tant information about the pe-
riod; or

¢ it does not independently meet
__the National Register criteria. _

NUMBER OF .
CONTRIBUTING
RESOURCES
PREVIOUSLY
LISTED IN THE
NATIONAL
REGISTER

Enter the number of any contribut-

erty-provide the basisfor evaluating.—— ing resources already-listed in the-

component resources. Relate informa-
tion about each resource, such as
date, function, associations, informa-
tion potential, and physical character-
istics, to the significance of the over-
all property to-determine whether or _
not the resource contributes.

A contributing building, site, struc-
ture, or object adds to the historic as-
sociations, historic architectural quali-
tics, or archeological values for
which a property is significant be-
cause:

National Register. This includes pre-
viously listed National Register prop-
erties, National Historic Landmarks,
and historic units of the National
Park system.

_ If no resources are already listed,
enter “N/A.

For the nomination of a district with 5
previously listed buildings, enter “5."

For a district being enlarged from 26
buildings to 48, enter “26.”





'RULES FOR COUNTING RESOURCES

e Count all buildings, structures, sites, and objects located within the
property’s boundaries that are substantial in size and scale. Do not
count minor resources, such as small sheds or grave markers, unless
they strongly contribute to the property’s historic significance.

¢ Count a building or structure with attached ancillary structures, cov-
ered walkways, and additions as a single unit unless the attachment
was originally constructed as a separate building or structure and later
connected. Count rowhouses individually, even though attached.

* Do not count interiors, facades, or artwork separately from the building

or structure of which they are a part.

¢ Count gardens, parks, vacant lots, or open spaces as “sites” only if they

contribute to the significance of the property.

* Count a continuous site as a single unit regardless of its size or com-

plexity.

* Count separate areas of a discontiguous archeological district as sepa-

rate sites.

* Do not count ruins separately from the site of which they are a part.

* Do not count landscape features, such as fences and paths, separately
from the site of which they are a part uniess they are particularly
important or large in size and scale, such as a statue by a well-known
sculptor or an extensive system of irrigation ditches.

If a group of resources, such as backyard sheds in a residential district,
was not identified during a site inspection and cannot be included in the
count, state that this is the case and explain why in the narrative for sec-

tion 7.

For additional guidance, contact the SHPO or refer to the National

" Register bulletin entitled Guidelines for Counting Resources.

EXAMPLES OF RESOURCE COUNTS

A row of townhouses containing 12 units

12 contributing buildings

A train station consisting of a depot with an attached
system of canopies, platforms, tunnels, and waiting ‘
rooms '

| one contributing building

A firetowerconsisting-of-a-towerand-attached
ranger’s dwelling

onecontributing-structure — =

A church adjoined by a historically associated ceme-
tery 1

one contributing building or one contributing site

A district consisting of 267 residences, five carriage
houses, three privies of a significant type, a small land-
scaped park, and a bridge built during the district’s
period of significance plus 35 houses, 23 garages, and
an undetermined number of sheds built after the pe-
riod of significance

275 contributing buildings, one contributing structure,

one contributing site, and 58 noncontributing build-
ings. The sheds are not counted.

[ Anarcheological district consisting of the ruins of one
pueblo, a network of historic irrigation canals, and a
modern electric substation

one contributing site, one contributing structure, and
one noncontributing building

17
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State of California » Natural Resources Agency : Edmund G. Brown Jr., Governor

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION Lisa Ann L. Mangat, Director
. OFFICE OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION

Julianne Polanco, State Historic Preservation Officer

1725 23rd Street, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95816-7100

Telephone: (916) 445-7000 FAX: (916) 445-7053
calshpo.ohp@parks.ca.gov www.chp.parks.ca.gov

March 15, 2018

John Rothman, President

Kathryn Devincenzi, Vice President

Laurel Heights Improvement Association of San Francisco
22 Iris Avenue

San Francisco, California 94118

RE: - National Register of Historic Places Nomination for Fireman’s Fund Insurance
Company Home Office &

Dear Mr. Rothman and Ms. Devincenzi:
[ am pleased to inform you that the State Historical Resources Commissjon’ (SHRC), at its next
meeting, intends to consider and take action on the nomination of the above named property
to the National Register of Historic Places (National Reglster) Details regarding the meeting

~ are enclosed. The National Register is the United States’ official list of historical properties
worthy of preservation. Listing in the National Reglster provides recognition and assists in
preserving California's heritage. Listing in the National Register assures review of federal -
__projects that might adversely affect the character.of the historic property. in addition, as of
January 1, 1993, all National Register properties are now automatically included in the
California Register of Historical Resources (California Register) and afforded consideration
during the State (CEQA) environmental review process. This includes properties formally
determined eligible for the National Register: Llstmg in the National Register does not mean
that the federal or state government will attach restrictive covenants to the proper”cy_or fry to
acquire it. Public visitation rights are not required of owners. National Register listed
properties may qualify for state and federal benefits. Additional information may be found at
our website at www.ohp.parks.ca.gov.

You are invited to attend the SHRC’s meeting at which the nomination will be considered and
acted upon by the SHRC. Written comments regarding the nomination may be submitted to
California State Parks, Attn: Office of Historic Preservation, Julianné Polanco, State Historic
~Preservation Officer, 1725 23¢ Street, Suite~100;Sacramento; California-85816. So thatthe-
SHRC may have adequate time to consider the comments, it is requested, but not required,
that written comments be received by the Office of Historic Preservation fifteen (15) days in
advance of the SHRC’s meeting. Should you have any questions about this nomination,
please contact the Registration Unit at (816) 445-7008.

Sincerely,

Julianne Polanco
State Historic Preservation Officer

Enclosure: Meeting Notice NR_ Preparers Notice_Final
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PLANNING DEPARTM ENT

Modern Design Historic Context Statement
Case Report

HEARING DATE: FEBRUARY 2, 2011

Date: January 26, 2011

Case No.: 2011.0059U

Staff Contact: Mary Brown - (415) 575-9074
Reviewed By: Tim Frye (415) 575-6822

Recommendation:  Adoption

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

1830 Miseion
Sure 400

San Francisea
CA94103-2479

Reraplion
415.558.6378

Fa
415.558.6408

Planning
information

415.558.6377

Development of the San Francisco Modern Architecture and Landscape Design 1935-1970 Historic Context
Statement (Modern context statement) was funded, in part, by a $25,000° grant from the California Office
of Historic Preservation (OHP). The San Francisco Planning Department (Department) provided the 40%
match as required by the OHP. The grant period ran from October 1, 2009 to September 30, 2010. A draft

of the Modern context statement subrmtted to the OHP on September, 30 2010, was approved

The Department developed the Modern context statement in order to provide the framework for

consistent, informed evaluations of San Francisco’s Modern buildings and landscapes. The Modern

context statement links specific property types to identified themes,~geographic patterns, and time
periods. Tt identifies character-defining features of Modern architectural and landscape design and
documents significance, criteria considerations and integrity thresholds. This detailed information
specific to property types will provide futuré surveycrs with a consistent framework w?d‘?n which to

contextually identify, interpret and evaluate individual properties and historic districts.

The Modern context statement is intended to be used, along with past surveys such as the 1976
Department of City Planning Architectural Survey, to inform historic and cultural resource surveys and

to ensure that property evaluations are consistent with local, state, and federal standards.

REQUIRED HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION "ACTION

The Planning Department requests the Historic Preservation Commission to adopt, modify or disapprove

the San Francisco Modern Architecture and Landscape Design 1935-1970 Historic Context Statement.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Historic context statements are exempt under Class 6 of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA). Section 15306, Information Collection of the CEQA Guidelines states the following: “Class 6
consists of basic data collection, research, experimental management, and resource evaluation activities
which do not result in a serious or major disturbance to an environment resource. These may be strictly





APPENDIX B: Additional Modern Architects

This table includes designers of known Modern buildings constructed in San Francisco from 1935-1970.
These architects were uncovered while researching the San Francisco Modern Architecture and Landscape
Design, 1935-1970, Historic Context Statement. Names and works were uncovered during field visits and
review of historic resource evaluations, context statements, building permit applications, and San Francisco
architectural guidebooks. Architects listed below are not included in the architect biographies found in
Chapter 9 of the Modern context statement. With a few exceptions, little is known about many of these

architects and future research is required to document their significance and works in San Francisco.

Architect

Amandes, F.F

Anderson, Roger

Bakewell, John, Jr.; Day,
William P.; and Kelham,
George W.

Belluschi, Pietro

__Beuttler, John F.____

Bliss and Fairweather; Hobart,

Lewis P.

Bloch, Bernard J.

Brown, Arthur jr.

Buckley, J.D

Chen, Clement and
Associates

Coblentz, Dorothy-Wormser

Cohen, Clyde B. and
Leverson, James K,

Confer, F.W.

Building
Name/Address

Masonic Lodge, 2668
Mission Street

52 Turquoise Way

Marina Junior High, 3500
Fillmore Street

Cathedral of St. Mary of
the Assumption, 111
Gough Street

unknown

Glen Park Elementary
School, 151 Lippard
Avenue -

180 San Marcos Avenue

Holly Courts, block of
Appleton Avenue,
Highland Avenue, Patton
Street, Holly Park Circle

-3406 Market Street

Glenridge, south side of
Gold Mine Hill

--Smith-House; -| 95 Santa

Ana Avenue

Red Rock Hill, Diamond
Heights

3560 Jackson Street.

Building Type

Cultural
Single-family
residence

School

Church

School

Single-family
residence

Public housing

Two-unit
residence

Multi-family
housing

Single-family
residence

Townhouses

Single-family
residence

Year Built

1962

c.193

1965-1971

Notes

Remodeled as Moderne

Diamond Heights custom-
designed.

PWA Project.

Expressionist style. Designed
in collaboration with Robert

--—- Brannen; McSweeney, Ryan

& Lee; andthe structural
consultant Pier Luigi Nervi

__ ___ WWorked with Charles .

1965

1940

1968

1969

1948

1962

1939

Fenton Stauffacher.

Public Works
Administration project.

Belvedere-based architect.

Third Bay Tr-adition.

275-unit cooperative
housing project.

-- Credited to-firm-of- H.H:

Gutterson.

Redevelopment area
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~ Mosias, Leonard S.

Architect =

Lackey, Lawrence

MacDonald, Earl R. .

Major, Harold K.
Malone & Hooper

Marchand, Henry L.
(engineer)

Mayhew, Clarence

Meyer, Frederick

Mohr, N.W

Mooser, William A. Il (city

ir.

Morris & Lohrbach

Nakamura, Van Bourg

- -

Nordin, Robert

O'Brien, Smith;

Rist, Martin Jr;
Schroepfer, Albert; and
Strothoff, Charles F.

Page, Edward; and Eckbo,
Royston & Williams

Building
" 'Name/Address

Diamond Heights
jandscape

2721-2725 Mission Street

344 Carl Street

49 Twin Peaks Boulevard

Hunter's Point public

housing

Town School,

2750 Jackson Street

Coffin-Reddington Bldg.,
30! Folsom.Street

234 Ottawa_Avenue

Aquatic Park

Shopping Center

1295 Shafter Street
1443 Grove Street

3880 26t Street

Tennis Clubhouse,
Golden Gate Park

Japan Center

Building

4731-33 Mission Street

Buena Vista Elementary

—

Diamond Heights

-

Japanese-American
Religious Fedération

sl oo NS —— i~ ==  \WorksProgress ——

Notes-— -

__Architecture of the SF Bay
Region.”

Designed the community
landscape between Red
~Rock and Gold Mine Hills.

Midcentury Modern
storefront remodel.

~Engineer for several-Modern—
projects. Angus McSweeney
listed as architect for
Hunter’s View.

Master Architect

Designed Streamline
Moderne tract development
in Cayuga Terrace.

Streamline Moderne style.

~— — —Administration project———-—

School., 2641 25 Avenue

Fireman’s Fund Indemnity

Building Type Year Built
Commercial 1947
Multi-family 1962
residence
Single-family 1950
residence
Public housing T
School 1956
Office 1936-1937;

1945-1946.
Tract housing 1940
Recreational 1939
Commercial 1965
Institutional 1956
Institutional 1958
Institutional 1958
Recreational 1958
Commercial/ 1965-1968
cultural

[

Cultural 1971
Commercial 1949
School
Commercial 1958

Company, 3333 California

Master architects

——

Firehouse.

Firehouse.

Firehouse.

Collaboration with Minoru
Yamasaki

Collaboration with Royston,
Hanamoto, Mayes & Beck

—

Midcentury Modern
storefront.

Presidio Heights.





. Building &= .

Architect Narne/Address Building Type Year Built Notes

(tandscaping) Street ,

Pereira, William & Associates  “Transamerica Building, Commercial 1969 Master Architeyy il
600 Montgomery Street,

Perry, Warren Charles unknown Solo practice, =, /gt

Peugh, W.D. Sears shopping center on ~ ‘Commercial - 1951
Geary Boulevard
Patrick Henry School, 693  School 1934 PWA project with coy e’
Vermont Street (remodel) Dailey

- Woest Portal Branch of the  Commercial 1935 D
San Francisco Bank
Abraham Lincoln High School With Timothy— Pl
School Frederick Mey— __ % r1,,,,
Rist

Pflueger, Milton University of San School 1962 Law school, in « o g

Francisco’s Kendricks Hall slender piers A xg 500 it ol
New Formalises )
Alemany public housing, Public housing 1955
845-999 Ellsworth Street
Teaching Hospital at Institutional
UCSF -
Buildings at San Francisco  Educational Several building
Junior College (Now City—- - - - =
College)
— T

Pollack and Pope Potrero Branch Library, Institutional Library

1616 20th Street
L. —— . . . ——
= - Golf Clubhouse, Golden Recreational 1951

Gate Park N

Reid Brothers Spreckels Building, 703 Office 1938 _ Collaboration W'th Alberc

—' - — — Market Street. ~ - - — remedel ™ Roller. 7 T~

Reid, Johh_l_yon & Partners Fredric Burk School, School 1956 Parkmercea_. \
Arballo Drive & Front
Boulevard

Reidy, Dodge A Sunset Health Center Medical - City Architect

Reimers, Frederick H. Balboa Park Pool Recreational 1958 Balboa Park.

, e A T eciationat =t N -

- ““Richards, Albert

Riddell, Jerry

R: M |
NG TTdremn Je

Sazevich & Walsh

Seyranian, Albert

~—--——— Coffin-Reddington o

2000 Kirkham Street ~ Single-family ~
residence
299 Vermont Street Institutional

Building, 301 Folsom
Street

225 San Marcos Avenue Residence

101 Mountain Spring Residence

Avenue

1950

1955

Officer - ———1936-37—Public Works

1962
1960

Firehouse.

Administration Projece by

Meyer, Peugh, Rlsg
Pflueger

Second Bay Tragig, design-

Architect-Builder. See tcond

Bay Tradition deSlgn
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BY HAND May 31, 2017

The Honorable Mark Farrell
Supervisor, District 2

City Hall, Room 244

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102-4689

Re: 3333 California Street, San Francisco, CA (UCSF Site)
Dear Supervisor Farrell:

Enclosed is a petition signed by 756 residents opposing the proposed rezoning of the
3333 California Street site.

As explained, 558 new residential units occupying 818,247 square feet would generate
abundant return on the developers’ investment ($88 million for 99 years).

The site has already been up-zoned twice, and the City agreed to restrictions to allow the
oversized building to be constructed. The developers’ current concept would retain the bulkof - _
that building, divide it into two sections and convert it to residential use. In addition, 6 very large
new structures and 7 duplexes would be added to the site.

It is still our hope that you will work with us to facilitate revisions that will make the

project an asset, rather than a detriment, to the area.

Laurel Heights Improvement Association of SF, Inc.

By: Kathryn Devincenzi, Vice-President

Enclosures





PETITION
To: The Honorable Mark Farrell, Supervisor District 2

We are deeply concerned that the immense scale of Fa proposed 1,373,600 square foot
development at the 10.2 acre UCSF 3333 California street site would have substantial adverse

impacts on the surrounding residential neighborhoods. |

We respectfully urge you not to sponsor ot support Nosmum changes for the 3333 California

Street site because: A

|

° The developers® proposal to add to the site 54,967 square feet of retail sales would
generate approximately 13,030 new vehicle trips per day, a parking spill-over of
approximately 600 vehicles and substantial traffic-related noise.

] 558 new residential units occupying 8

18,247 square feet would generate abundant return

on the developers’ investment ($88 million for 99 years) .

° The site has already been up-zoned twice and the City agreed to restrictions to allow the
oversized building (352,800 square feet plus 97,500 square feet of underground parking)

to be constructed.
|

NAME .
.\.\‘ A \Kﬂ -
.q‘ u( L Nﬂﬁw\ o § \ﬂ

ADDRESS

Y \

e \L\\v N

2t .Jﬁi 34% __

JELY (uieainis ST

i/ -

/] - N Qnﬁ . /

e f  p)eSh o fn 57

PLEASE RETURN SI GNED PETITIONS TO laurelhe

J

= 5 ' ) _
25109 Jaule - SE

ights

2016@email.com or 525 Laurel St.
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—Kathy Devincenzi<krdevincenzi@gmail.com> —— -

Nomination for Listing on National Register of Historic Places
6 messages

Kathy Devincenzi <krdevincenzi@gmail.com> Thu, Feb 8, 2018 at 4:31 PM
To: president@ucop.edu, Esther.Morales@ucsf.edu
Cc: Dan Safier <dsafier@pradogroup.com>

To: The Regents of the University of California
c/o President Janet Napolitano and
Esther Morales, Assistant Vice Chancellor, UCSF Real Estate Assets and Development

As | stated in my telephone message to Ms. Morales today, the Laurel Heights Improvement Association of San
Francisco, Inc. will be nominating the Fireman's Fund Insurance Company Home Office at 3333 California Street, San
Francisco for listing on the National Register of Historic Places.

The California Office of Historic Preservation has asked me to ask UC to advise me or their office as to the person who
will be the official contact person for the Regents of the University of California for this matter. As you know, the Regents
own the fee simple title to the property, and Laurel Heights Partners LLC is the holder of a ground lease on the property.

Also, we would like to request a tour of the property for myself and our architect. Since the building is public property, it
should be made available for a tour. Please contact us for an appointment.

Very truly yours,
Laure! Heights Improvement Association of San Francisco, Inc.

By: Kathryn Devincenzi, Vice-President
(415) 221-4700

cc: Laurel Heights Partners LLC
c/o Dan Safier, Manager
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State of California — The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HR! #

PR'MARY RECORD Trinomial

NRHP Status Code

Other Listings
Review Code Reviewer Date
Page 1 of 4 *Resource Name or #: Laurel Heights Building
P1. Other Identifier:
*P2. Location: O Not for Publication [ Unrestricted *a. County: San Francisco
and (P2b and P2¢ or P2d. Attach a Location Map as necessary.)
“b. USGS 7.5° Quad: San Francisco North Date:1995 T ; R 5 % of %of Sec ; M.D. B.M.
c. Address: 3333 California Street City: San Francisco Zip: 94118
d. UTM: Zone: 10 ; mE/ mN (G.P.S))
e. Other Locational Data: Laurel Heights Campus Elevation

*P3a. Description:

Built in 1957, this four-story building has an irregular plan and occupies the approximate center of an irregular-shaped city block
The intervening spaces are filled with extensive landscaping or parking lots. The concrete slab floors extend beyond the wall
surface to form projecting cornices at each floor, and between these projections, an aluminum-sash window wall with dark,
slightly mirrored glass forms the exterior walls. Brick veneer covers the walls in certain locations, and the roof is flat. The main
entry opens on the north side of the building and features a covered entry with the roof supported on large square brick piers, a
small ground-level fountain, and sliding aluminum doors,

*P3b. Resource Attributes: HP15. Educational building; HP6. 1-3 story commercial building.
*P4. Resources Present: BBuilding  OStructure OObject CISite ODistrict OElement of District  OOther (Isolates, etc.)

P5b. Description of Photo:

Foa, FOgiC QE BRI View looking south; May 5, 2010.

*P6. Date Constructed/Age and Sources:
EHistoric
OPrehistoric - OBoth
Constructed in 1953. Courtesy of UCSF

records.

*P7. Owner and Address:
University of California, San Francisco
San Francisco, CA 94143

*P8. Recorded by:
Carey & Co., Inc.
460 Bush Street
San Francisco, CA 94108

*P9. Date Recorded:
July 31, 2010

— .

*P10. Survey Type: Intensive

*P11. Report Citation: Carcy & Co, “UCSF Historic Resources Survey, San Francisco, Califomia,” December 3, 2010

*Attachments: ONONE DOLocation Map OSkelch Map ®Continuation Sheet ®Building, Structure, and Object Record
DArchaeological Record [District Record [Ollinear Feature Record [OMilling Station Record [ORock Art Record

DArtifact Record OPhotegraph Record O Other (List):

DPR 523A {1/95) *Required information





State of California — The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#

BUILDING, STRUCTURE, AND OBJECT RECORD

Page2 of 4 *NRHP Status Code 35

B1
B2.
B3.
*B5.
*B6.

*B7.
*BS.

B9a.
*B10. Significance: Theme: University expansion

*Resource Name or # Laurel Heights Building

Historic Name: Firemen’s Insurance Company Building

Common Name:
Original Use: Offices B4. Present Use: Offices/Laboratories

Architectural Style: International Style
Construction History: Constructed in 1957.

Moved? FINo [OYes DOUnknown Date: Origlinal Locatlon:
Related Features: none

Architect: Edward B. Page b. Builder: Unknown

Period of Significance: 1953 Property Type: Educational

Area: UCSF Laurel Heights campus, San Francisco
Applicable Criteria: A/1,C/3

The Laurel Heights Building was constructed on the site of a former cemetery. Lone Mountain Cemetery was dedicated on

May 30, 1854 (later renamed Laurel Hill Cemetery). One of the few places in the city where one could find landscaped

open space, Lone Mountain Cemetery served as much as a public park and leisure space as it did a cemetery. Population

pressures and land scarcity, however, compelled the San Francisco government in 1880 to pass an ordinance banning

cemeteries within the city’s boundaries, and in 1901 the City prohibited any further burials within the city limits. With no

revenue from new interments to fund the maintenance of the cemeteries, they fell to ruin. By the 1930s, mausoleums with

broken windows and burial plots with toppled tombstones and overgrown with weeds characterized the once celebrated
___ cemetery. The bodies of 35,000 people interred at Laurel Hill Cemetery were removed in 1939 and 1940. World War Il then

stalled plans to build houses, commercial establishments, and Lowell High School at the site, but in 1946 the earth was

cleared and graded for development

B11.

*B12.

See continuation sheet.

B13.

*B14. Evaluator: Carey & Co., Inc. !

Additional Resource Attributes:

awr

References:

il

Remarks:

*Date of Evaluation: July 31, 2010 i

DPR 523B (1/95)

.

*Required information





State of California — The Resources Agency Primary #

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#

CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial

Page 3 of 4 *Resource Name or # 1 aurce! Heights Building

*Recorded by: Carey & Cu, [nc. *Date: July 31, 2010 Continuation O Update

Continuation of B10. Significance:

It 1933 the Firemen's Fund Insurance Company bought a ten-acre site at the pinnacle of the former cemetery and
constructed a 354,000 square-foot, sprawling four-story Internativnal Style building and its 13,000 square-foot annex
Edward B Page was the architect. Later, the Presidio Corporate Center occupied the site,

Fdward Bradford Page (1905-1994) wa- born in Alameda, California, and received an international education in
architecture. He earned a Bachelor of Science degree from Yale University and Sheffield Scientitic School, in England.
in 1928, then purused graduate studies at the Fontainebleu School in France and Yale Universily School of Fine Arts.
After carning his second Bachelors degree from Yale, Page traveled m France, Germany, [laly, Austria. Mexico, and
Canada, and upon returning to the San Francisco Bay Arca, Page worked for a number of praminent firms They
included a vear in the offices of John Bakewel! and Ernest Weihe (1933-1939), followed by six years with Wilbur D.
I'eugh, during which time Page was most likely involved in defense work, a hospital and Navy personnel center at
Camp Shoemaker and war housing in Livermore. In 1947 Page established his own firm. Early commissions consisted
of schools and housing The Fireman's Fund Insurance Co. Otfice marked one of Page’s carliest large, independent
commissions. Subsequent prominent commissions include the branch office of the Fireman's Fund American
Insurance Company in Fresno, as well as the airport garage at San Francisco International Airport and the Faculty
Club at Stanford University, In 1968 Page formed the firm Page, Clowdsley, & Baleix, a firm that “basically did

commercial architecture that was fairly routine - but it never leaked.”

In 1685 the Regents of the University of California purchased the Presidio Corporale Center site to help alleviate space
__constraints al the Parnassus campus. Converns over the potential dangers in a residential neighborhood of conducting
“scientific research using toxic chemicals, carcinogens, and radivactive materials” prompted an EIR. Satisfied that
LCSE implemented sufficient measures Lo mitigate the potential environmental impacts ot scientific research at the
| Heights Neighburthood Improvement ——

T aurel Heights site, the Regents certified the EIR. In cesponse, the Laure
Association successfully sought to vverturn the EIR New EIRs and further titigation followed and was not settled
until 1995 In the meantime, UCSF implemented an alternative plan for usce of the space: academic and adminislrative
offices, office-based instruction, and social and behavioral research that required no toxic chemicals or other

environmentaily hazardous materials.

The Laure! Heights building appears to be eligible for listing in the NRHP/CRHR under Criteria A/1 and C/3. It stands
as the most prominent postwar commercial development in the Laurel Heights neighborhood and dramatically
transformed the former cemelery site, rendering it eligible for the NRHP/CRHR under Criterion A/1. No persons of
significance are known to be associated with the building; thus it does not appear to be eligible under Criterion B/2
While Edward B. Page was not the most prominent architect in San Francisco during the postwar period, his resume
does accord him master architect status. More importantly, this main building at the Laurel Heights campus is an

excellent example of mid-century Madernism and the International Style Its harizontality makes it a particularly
good regional example of the architectural style For these reasons the building appears to be eligible for the
NRHP/CRHR under Criterion C/3

The Firemen’s Fund [nsurance Company Building at Laurel Heights retains excelient integrity. [t has not been moved
and it nor its surroundings have undergone-many alterations. Thus-the building retains its integrity in all seven
categories — Jocation, setting, design, materials, warkmanship, feeling, and association.

DPR 523L (1/95) *Required information





State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#

CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial

Page 3 of 4 *Resource Name or# Laurel Heights Building

*Recorded by: Carey & Co., Inc. *Date: July 31, 2010 Continuation O Update

Continuation of B12. References:

AlA Directory (1952, 1962, 1970).

Carey & Co., “UCSF Historic Resources Survey, San Francisco, California,” December 3, 2010.

O'Connell, Kim A, “Seismic Forces.” Traditional Building, http:/fwww.traditional-building.com/Previous-Issues-
07/OctProfile07.htm (accessed July 27, 2010).

Peugh, Wilbur D. “Architects’ Roster Questionnaire.”
http://communities.aia.org/sites/hdoaa/wiki/AIA%20scans/Rosters/PeughWD _roster.pdf (accessed July 27, 2010).

Stanford Historical Society. Historic Houses [V: Early Residential Communities of the Lower San Juan District, Stanford University.
Stanford: Stanford Historical Society, 2007.

DPR 523L (1/95) “*Required information
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

Subject: FW: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REJECTION OF POLICE
COMMISSION REAPPOINTMENTS

Date: Wednesday, May 16, 2018 10:24:21 AM

Attachments: 5.15.18 Police Commission Reappointments.pdf

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

Sent: Tuesday, May 15, 2018 5:17 PM

To: MayorsPressOffice, MYR (MYR)

Subject: *** STATEMENT *** MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REJECTION
OF POLICE COMMISSION REAPPOINTMENTS

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Tuesday, May 15, 2018
Contact: Mayor’s Office of Communications, 415-554-6131

*** STATEMENT ***
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS REJECTION OF POLICE COMMISSION
REAPPOINTMENTS

“1 am extremely disappointed that the Board of Supervisors decided to paliticize the
appointment process of the Police Commission at such acrucia timein our city. Rejecting the
reappoi ntments of Joe Marshall, an African American leader and longtime anti-violence
pioneer, and Sonia Melara, aLatinawoman and chief advocate of police reform, is
outrageous.

Without these appointments, the Police Commission lacks quorum and cannot meet. Citizen
oversight of the Police Department is not occurring. We will not have afull commission until
September, due to the politicization of these nominees.

Most importantly, in rejecting Commissioners Melara and Marshall, the Board has halted the
critical work of overseeing implementation of police reforms. This includesinstitutionalizing
our new use-of-force policies, training for Tasers, partnerships with the California Department
of Justice and officer discipline cases.”


mailto:jonas.ionin@sfgov.org
mailto:dennis.richards@sfgov.org
mailto:Milicent.Johnson@sfgov.org
mailto:Joel.Koppel@sfgov.org
mailto:kathrin.moore@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:Myrna.Melgar@sfgov.org
mailto:planning@rodneyfong.com
mailto:richhillissf@gmail.com
mailto:aaron.hyland.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:andrew@tefarch.com
mailto:kate.black@sfgov.org
mailto:dianematsuda@hotmail.com
mailto:ellen.hpc@ellenjohnckconsulting.com
mailto:jonathan.pearlman.hpc@gmail.com
mailto:rsejohns@yahoo.com
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
MAYOR MARK FARRELL ON THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
REJECTION OF POLICE COMMISSION REAPPOINTMENTS

“I am extremely disappointed that the Board of Supervisors decided to politicize the appointment
process of the Police Commission at such a crucial time in our city. Rejecting the reappointments
of Joe Marshall, an African American leader and longtime anti-violence pioneer, and Sonia
Melara, a Latina woman and chief advocate of police reform, is outrageous.

Without these appointments, the Police Commission lacks quorum and cannot meet. Citizen
oversight of the Police Department is not occurring. We will not have a full commission until
September, due to the politicization of these nominees.

Most importantly, in rejecting Commissioners Melara and Marshall, the Board has halted the
critical work of overseeing implementation of police reforms. This includes institutionalizing our
new use-of-force policies, training for Tasers, partnerships with the California Department of
Justice and officer discipline cases.”

1 DR. CARLTON B. GOODLETT PLACE, Room 200
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94102-4681
TELEPHONE: (415) 554-6141









BART

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

BART Market Street Canopies and Escalators Modernization Projeit
Attention: Janie Layton, Environmental Administrator ‘
P.O. Box 12688 (Mail Stop LKS — 22) \
Oakland, CA 94604-2688 '

SF HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
SAN FRANCISCO PLANNING DEPARTMENT
1650 MISSION STREET, SUITE 400

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94103
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What:

Where:

When:

Comments:

Contact:

Public Meeting, Notice of Availability, and Notice of Intent to Adopt a Draft Initial Study/Mitigated
Negative Declaration for the BART Market Street Canopies and Escalators Modernization Project

The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) has prepared a Draft Initial Study/Mitigated
Negative Declaration (Draft IS/MND) pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the
BART Market Street Canopies and Escalators Modernization Project (Proposed Project). The Proposed
Project would include the installation of canopy covers over 22 of the Downtown San Francisco BART/MUNI
station entrances/exits along Market Street leading to the underground Embarcadero, Montgomery Street,
Powell Street, and Civic Center/UN Plaza station concourses, as well as replacement and refurbishment of
existing street-level escalators. Each protective canopy would be equipped with a motorized security grille
that would lock at the sidewalk level of the station entrance/exit when the stations are closed. These
improvements would be constructed in accordance with the American Society of Mechanical Engineers
(ASME) A17.1-2007 Section 6.1.8, which requires that outdoor escalators be covered to protect them from
weather related damage and for the safety of passengers.

The Draft IS/MND provides an environmental evaluation of potential impacts and mitigation measures. The
study concludes that the project’'s mitigation measures would ensure that all impacts remain at a less-than-
significant level. This notice is to advise the public and agencies that the Draft IS/MND is available for
review and that a public meeting will be held.

San Francisco Main Library

Latino/Hispanic Community Room, Lower Level

100 Larkin Street

San Francisco, 94102

This public meeting is not sponsored by the San Francisco Public Library.

Wednesday May 16t from 5:30 PM - 7:30 PM

The 30-day review period will begin on Monday, April 30, 2018 and will end on Wednesday, May 30, 2018.
Comments must be received by 5:00 PM on May 30, 2018. Comments on the Draft IS'MND must be = =2
at the public meeting or submitted in writing by regular mail or email. Comments submitted by email should
be sent to: jlayton@bart.gov. Written comments may be mailed to the following address:

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

BART Market Street Canopies and Escalators Modernization Project
Attention: Janie Layton, Environmental Administrator

P.O. Box 12688 (Mail Stop LKS - 22) Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Verbal comments will be accepted at the public meeting through a court reporter/transcriber. If you require
special accommodation needs or if you need language assistance services, please call (510) 464-6752 at
least 72 hours prior to the date of the event.

The Draft IS/MND is available for review on the BART website at:
https://www.bart.gov/about/planning/sfentrances and at the following locations:

BART District Office San Francisco Main Library
300 Lakeside Drive, 2" Floor 100 Larkin Street
QOakland, CA 94612 San Francisco, CA 94102

All questions regarding the BART Market Street Canopies and Escalators Modernization Project or how to
comment on the Draft IS/MND can be directed to the project information telephone line at (510) 287-4745.
Verbal comments will not be accepted by telephone.




Queé:

Donde:

Cuando:

Comentarios:

Contacto:

Reunion Publica, Aviso de Disponibilidad y Notificacion de Intencion de adoptar un Borrador de
Estudio Inicial/Declaracion Negativa Atenuante para el Proyecto de Modernizacion de Doseles y
Escaleras Eléctricas de la estacion Market Street de BART

El San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) ha preparado un Borrador de Estudio
Inicial/Declaracion Negativa Atenuante (Borrador de IS/MND) de conformidad con la Ley sobre la Calidad
Ambiental de California (CEQA) para el Proyecto de Modernizacion de Doseles y Escaleras Eléctricas de la
estacion Market Street de BART (Proyecto Propuesto). El Proyecto Propuesto incluiria la instalacion de
doseles protectores sobre 22 de las entradas/salidas de las estaciones de BART/MUNI del Centro de San
Francisco a lo largo de Market Street que conducen a las explanadas de las estaciones subterraneas
Embarcadero, Montgomery Street, Powell Street y Civic Center/UN Plaza, asi como el reemplazo y la
renovacion de las escaleras eléctricas existentes a nivel de la calle. Cada dosel protector estaria equipado
con una reja de seguridad motorizada que se cerraria a nivel de la acera de la entrada/salida de la estacion
cuando esta esta cerrada. Estas mejoras se construirian de conformidad con la norma A17.1-2007, Seccidn
6.1.8 de la Sociedad Americana de Ingenieros Mecanicos (ASME), la cual establece que las escaleras
eléctricas en exteriores deben estar cubiertas para protegerlas de los dafios causados por inclemencias
climaticas y para la seguridad de los pasajeros.

El Borrador de IS/MND establece una evaluacién ambiental de los potenciales impactos y medidas de
mitigacion. El estudio llega a la conclusién de que las medidas de mitigacion del proyecto garantizarian que
todos los impactos se mantengan en un nivel no significativo. Este aviso tiene como fin informar al publico y
a las agencias que el Borrador de IS/MND esta disponible para su revision y que tendra lugar una reunion
publica.

San Francisco Main Library

Latino/Hispanic Community Room, Nivel Inferior

100 Larkin Street

San Francisco, 94102

Esta reunion publica no estd patrocinada por la Biblioteca Publica de San Francisco.

Miércoles, 16 de mayo, de 5:30 p.m. a 7:30 p.m.

El periodo de revision de 30 dias comenzara el lunes, 30 de abril de 2018 y finalizara el miercoles, 30 de
mayo de 2018. Los comentarios deben recibirse a mas tardar a las 5:00 p.m. del 30 de mayo de 2018. Los
comentarios sobre el Borrador de IS/MND deben hacerse en la reunion publica o bien presentarse por
escrito por correo regular o correo electrénico. Si se presentan por correo electrénico, los comentarios
deben enviarse a: jlayton@bart.gov. Los comentarios por escrito pueden enviarse por correo a la siguiente
direccion:

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

BART Market Street Canopies and Escalators Modernization Project

A la atencion de; Janie Layton, Environmental Administrator

P.O. Box 12688 (Mail Stop LKS - 22) Oakland, CA 94604-2688

En la reunion publica se aceptaran comentarios verbales a través de un taquigrafo/transcriptor judicial. Si
usted tiene necesidades de adaptaciones especiales 0 necesita servicios de asistencia para comunicarse
en otro idioma, por favor llame al (510) 464-6752 al menos 72 horas antes de la fecha del evento.

El Borrador de IS/MND esta disponible para su revision en el sitio web de BART:
https://www.bart.gov/about/planning/sfentrances y en los siguientes lugares:

BART District Office San Francisco Main Library
300 Lakeside Drive, 2nd Floor 100 Larkin Street
Qakland, CA 94612 San Francisco, CA 94102

Todas las preguntas relativas al Proyecto de Modemizacion de Doseles y Escaleras Eléctricas de la
estacion Market Street de BART o sobre cdmo realizar comentarios sobre el Borrador de IS/MND pueden
dirigirse a la linea telefénica de informacion del proyecto, (510) 287-4745. No se aceptaran comentarios
verbales por teléfono.
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Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development
City and County of San Francisco

Mark Farrell
Mayor

Kate Hartley

Director

May 8, 2018

Please join the Mayor’s Office of Housing and Community Development in
continued conversation regarding an interim use for 730 Stanyan, the former
McDonald’s site.
730 STANYAN COMMUNITY MEETING
Thursday, May 17, 2018, 6pm — 7:30pm
John Adams Center — 1860 Hayes Street, auditorium

For those who cannot attend in person, the meeting will be live streamed:
http://sfgovtyv.org/mohcd-meeting

We will discuss the results of community input gathered at the meeting held April
26" and summarize 3 proposals we’ve received to date. If you have a proposed use
you’d like to share with the community and the use serves or employs low to
moderate income persons, benefits the community as a whole, and is financially self-
sufficient, please contact Joan.McNamara@sfgov.org to submit your proposal for
staff review. If your proposal meets all the requirements listed above, we will
summarize your proposal at an upcoming meeting.

We will hold an additional community meeting on Saturday, June 16, 2018, 10am —
12 noon. Location information will be announced prior to the meeting.

We value the input of all community members and look forward to seeing you on
May 17, or to hearing from you via https://sfmohcd.org/730-stanyan.

One South Van Ness Avenue, Fifth Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103
Phone: 415.701.5500 Fax: 415.701.5501 TDD: 415.701.5503 www.sfmohcd.org
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